
 
 
 

Health and Well Being Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 9 September 2010 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Andrew Mossop 
Tel: 0151 691 8501 
e-mail: andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

/ PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
  
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the Health and Well Being Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee held on 21 June, 2010. 
 

3. NHS WHITE PAPER - 'LIBERATING THE NHS' (Pages 9 - 10) 
 
4. MANAGING THE BUDGET ACROSS HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 

(Pages 11 - 12) 
 
5. CARE QUALITY COMMISSION INSPECTION REPORT (Pages 13 - 

16) 
 

Public Document Pack



6. PRESENTATION ON FIRST QUARTER PERFORMANCE 2010/11  
 
 The Quarter 1 Performance Report on activities relevant to Health and 

Well Being Overview and Scrutiny Committee is available to view in 
the web library and a presentation will be made by the Director of Adult 
Social Services. 
 

7. CHANGES TO INDEPENDENT LIVING FUND (ILF) (Pages 17 - 20) 
 
8. WIRRAL LOCAL INVOLVEMENT NETWORK (LINK) ANNUAL 

REPORT 2009/10 (Pages 21 - 42) 
 
9. NHS WIRRAL PUBLIC AND PATIENT INVOLVEMENT ANNUAL 

REPORT - APRIL 2009 - MARCH 2010 (Pages 43 - 94) 
 
10. PROSTATE CANCER (Pages 95 - 100) 
 
11. UPDATE ON PODIATRY SERVICE AND WAITING TIMES (Pages 

101 - 106) 
 
12. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
 Report to follow. 

 
13. FORWARD PLAN  
 
 The Forward Plan for the period September to December 2010 has 

now been published on the Council’s intranet/website and Members 
are invited to review the Plan prior to the meeting in order for the 
Committee to consider, having regard to the Committee’s work 
programme, whether scrutiny should take place of any items contained 
within the Plan and, if so, how it could be done within relevant 
timescales and resources. 
 

14. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



�����������	����
�����������	�����
������������������

�
��������	
�����	�
��

�
������� ����������� ���������������������

�
� ������������ ����������

���� ����
��!��� ���
��"����
#���������
�
�

����$����
��%�����&�
'�# ����
!������

��(�)���� *���� � ���������������
+�,������-./���
#���0��#�$���
1���������2������
����)��

#�#���������3�
��  �������
#�������2����

� � � �


� 	�������
�
'��������0��� ��$��*���� ��� �����  ����� ��� )���������� �0�� *��� ����
����/�����)�$������������������������������������&����������0��/��$�����)����&0�
�������������4�
�

	� ���
����� ���� �� ������� �� ������������ �� ��������� �� ������
	�����
�
� *���0����/�������������0���������������)����������)�5���������������
������� ���������*���������������� �����������&���������������� ����������
0��������0�4�� *���0��� ���������������������������������)�����������
)������)�� 
6� �&� ��� 2$�$�0� ���� #�������� �������� %����� 0����� ���� 0��
��*5��������)�����0��)��������������0�������� ��������*����������������&��������
����������������������������&����0��))���������� ��4�
�
�������������!��� ������������)������������� ���������������  *���&����
&� ����*���� )������������0����/�,��)����4�
�

7� ���������
�
� *���0�� �8����� ��� ���$� ��� ������ �&� ��� ����� �&� ���,����� ����
���������2$�$�0�����#����������  �����������	9��������	�
�4�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��$%&'#���(��"))*�����"��"�+�**�+#�*�+�*�,�
�

:� �������������������������
�
'����  ����0����8���������))�������;��(�����4�
��

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2���� ������*�������������������*�������������# ��������0���(�
��
��������� �� �!"#� ��'&+%���*� 
*%"&� -�&&.� (�� "))�%&#��� �%+���!"%*� �/� #!%��
��$$%##��,�
�

9� ��������������������������������������������	�������������
�
'�� +������� �&� ������ #������ #�$���� )������ �� �)���� ��))� ���� *�� ��
)���������� 0����� )��$���� ��� �$�$�0� �&� ��� 0��/� ��� ���� *���� ������� ���� ���
�����&�� �������#������#�$�������������4�
�
'��+)��� �����������������)����&��������&�� ������&�������������������/��
���������&�)��������������� ����������������� ������������ ������$�� ��� �����������
��0�� ��� <����������)�� =����>4� '�� �������� �&����� ��� �������� �&�� � ����
�������������������)��&�����������������4�'�� ��������0�����&����0���
�
��������
�� 3&&���$� )��������)�� 0���� ��)�� ������ ��$����� ������ ���� �����

����������?���
��������	�� #�&(���������))��������)�������*������
��������7�� ��$���������������&&���$���$����
��������:�� -�&�� ������������$���
��������9�� ��������  ����������
�
'��!�$�� ������������������������ ������������������������0�����������
������������&������ ������� ���)������� )������������������ ��������)�)������
������ ��� ����� 8������� ��&�� ������ ���� ��$���� �))��)����� ����� ����$������� ����
������@������������������������$�������$����������))�����������4�-�������
�8����� ��$�� ��� ��� ���������������))���� &��� ���0��/&���� �����*�� ��������� ���
 �� ��� ��������� �&� ��� �0�0���� �&�0��/���4�'�� ��))���� ����� �����&�� ������ ��
%&�� � !����� ���� *��  ��� �$����*�� &��� ��������� ��� ��$��� ��� ��� ��������
�$��) ���4�
�
'�� ���$��� �&� ����� ������ 0��� ���� �� ���� ��� )�*���� ��$���� ������� ��� )�)��
����*��&����������))���4�-��0���������*������0�)�)����)���� ��$����������
������������$������������������)��������  �������������0����� ���*�������&�
������������$����*��&�����������?��������������4�
�
'�� ������ ��  ���� �)��� ��� ���� �������� 0����� ��� �����&�� ������ ������
)������������0�*���������������*� �����4�
�
"����� +������ ���&� 3@����$� �&� .,#� �������� ��&�� �� ��� ��  ���� ����� ��
!�$�� �������� ��)��0��� ��� ��� ���,����� #�$��� ��� ����� ����� ��� ��������
0�����������$�������&����.,#4�
�
��������� ��
�
012��!"#���$$%##����'))�*#�� #!���%*�+#%�&��/� #*"���� /�*���'�#���+%"����*�%+��3�
"����#"%����%&�#!��*�)�*#�"&��)*���&#"#%�&,�
�
042��!"#�"�/'*#!�*�*�)�*#�(��(*�'5!#�#��#!%����$$%##����&�#!��#*"&�/�*$"#%�&��/�
"�'�#���+%"��+"*��%&�	%**"�,�
�

Page 2



A� ��������������������6������������������4778�17��
�
��/�=�0����,����&�#�$����=������������&�� �������$���)����������������
)������� ��� �������� ��� ����������� &��� 	��BC	�
�� ��� ��� &������ 8������ ���� /��
)��5���� 0����� 0�� ��$���� ��� ��� ,����� �������(�����2$�$�0� ���� #��������
��  ���4�
�
2���������0����0���0��/����0�������)��������&����0�����
�

•� 
��7D�)�)����))�����*��.,#�#��)�# �/����#�$����������6BA��

•� 6AE��D96�)�)������$�������� ���������0������������� �7� �����������

•� BB47:E��&�8��) ������$���0������D�������������B7E��

•� 699��0����������������&��������$�'����������������D9���

•� 
�
�B�������)��/����������������&��(�*� ����������
�
����

•� D	7�)�)�������������������))����&����0�����(�*� �����$����

•� 	A46E��&������&������������$��������$����������	
49E��

•� - )��$�� �������������&�� ���������������������������@����*��	6E��
�
-�� ���� )����������� ��/� =�0��� ����� �&���� ��� /�� )�&�� ���� ������ 0�����
0��>������$������������������������������
��

•� ��)�����$�������$�0����������

•� �������0������������������*�������������������  ��������

•� �������0������������������*���������)���� )��� ���

•� ��)�����$������&����������))����
��
-�� ��)��� �&� ��� &��������� )�������� ��� )��5���� �$��)��� &��� ��� ���� ��� 0���
F	4: 4�
�
�������8�����&���������������)���&����<3����&�G�����&�� ����%)����	��BC
�>��
0�����0����$����*���������������>��0*���*���������������*�����������4�
�
%�)����������� *��>���  ������/�=�0���@)����������������  *���&����
����0�������� ���)��� *��� ��/���� ���*� ����������� ������ *�  ������ ���
�� )���������������������������������������4����/������������������&�����&������
&&�������4��
�
�� � *�� ��  ���� �)��� ��� ��� &��� ��� �)��&��� ���� �������� ����� ��� ���
�)����0���������*������������)���������������0����0���0��/����0������������<��&�
@)������� � )��$���>�� *��� *�� ��0�  ���� ���� ��� �� *��� ��������� <)�������
*�����>4�
�
��/�=�0�����/��0��������� )��$ ��������&�������)���4�
�
2���� ������*����������������������������0���H�
�
��������� ��
�
012��!"#�#!��)*���&#"#%�&�"&��*�)�*#�(��&�#��,�
�

Page 3



042��!"#� #!����$$%##��� ���9�"#� #!������*/�*$"&+�� �&�%+"#�*���%#!�*��&�*����*�
"$(�*� "&�� �%#!�*� ��#�*%�*"#%&5� �*� &�#� %$)*��%&5� "&�� *�:'��#��$�*�� ��#"%����
*�)�*#���&�#!����"&��#!����(��%&+�'����%&�#!����$$%##��;��<�*9�)*�5*"$$�,�
�

D� 6�����������������������
�
'��+��������&�������#������#�$������* ��������)�����)������������  �������
I���������������4�'�����&��I���������������&��� ���.���������� *������#�$���
0�������������0��������)�����������  �������&�� ��-./���������������1��$������
'�������,��)�����.,#�=����������'������������������������������������������)�
.,#�=����������'��������������*�����������4�
�
-�� ��������� ��� I������� �������� &�� � ��$�)���� ,���� ���� ����� ,��)����� .,#�
=���������� '����� ���� *�� ���������� ���� ����� ��� ����� &�� � ��� ������� ����
�������������#����������  �������������������������������������)�'�����I�������
�������4�
�
'�� ������ �������� ����� &����� 8�������� �)����� ������ *� �)����� ��� �� ��&&����
 ���������������  �������0�����/���������������8���������������4�
�
2���� ������*������������������*�������������"��������0���H�
�
��������� ��
�
012��!"#�#!%����$$%##���"++�)#��#!��+�$$�&#"*.�/*�$����9��"&��#!"&9�����9��
/�*� #!�� �%5&%/%+"&#� )%�+�� �/� <�*9� #!�.� "*�� ��%&5� "&�� /�*� #!�%*� )��%#%���
+�&#*%('#%�&�"+*����	%**"�,�
�
042��!"#�#!��)*�+����/�*�/'#'*��')�"#����&�"�:'"*#�*�.�("�%��(��"5*���,�
�
0=2��!"#� #!��+�$$�&#"*.��&� #!��:'"*#�*�.� *�)�*#��(��'����"�� #!�� /���("+9� #��
#!��!�"�#!�)*��%��*��/�*�4717�11�)'*)����,�
�

6� ������������������>������������0����2���������
�
=������ ���  ����� 77� �
�C

C�B��� ���� ,�������� ���������� +������� �&� #������� ����
�����������������1��$������'�������,��)�����.,#�=����������'�������$�����)����
������)�������0���������*�� ��������)����&��� �������� �@���@�0��������
����0� ���/� ,��)����4� '�� ���� ,����� #������� ���� ��������� ��� �������� �����
)�&�� ���� ������0����� *� )��� ��� )���� $��� ��� ��������� ��������� &�� ��)����
	�
�� ��� ����� ����� �� � �@� ����  ��������0��� )��$���� &��� $��� )�����4� ���
�������)����0����������* �����0��������)���4�
�
#���)��������������0��������������0���������-�����$������,����+)������
�����������������1�����*�������0����������� �����*���������*��������0��/��
0�����0�����*��8�����������$���� ��@�����  ��������0���������������4�
�
%�)������������  ����&�� �� *�������,���������&�� �������  �����������
 ���������� ���� �0��� ��� )���� ���� ���� *������0�� �)����� ��� �����'4�'��
����������������������&�
��E��� )���������������������&�����������*�����������
���������)���������������������&����������� *���&��������@���� ��0���*����
����$��*���������������������&������4�#���������������������0�����*���))��

Page 4



���*�����������������*��/���������  �����&���)��������������#�8������������
0����� ���� ����� �������� �����)������ �� 8������� ��� ���$����� �� � �@�
����  �������4�
�
��� *���������� ����� ����������� &����������)������ ��� �/� ������$���������
����� �)������ ������ ������ �@�� 0��� ������� ���� 0�� ����� )��������� 0��� ��
������4��
�
'�� ������ ���� ����� � *��� ��  ���� ����� &���  ���� )�)�� ����� 0��� �� $���
� )������������������������������������������$�������0��*����)����>����������
���)��$����0����� )�� ���4���
�
��� %��������� ���&� 3@����$� �&� ������� 1��$������ '������� ,��)����� .,#�
=����������'������ �����)���������  ����&�� �� *�����&�� �������  ����
�����)���������������0� �/����������&�*�����*�� ���*����*�� ������& ���
���&&4�
�
��������� �� �!"#� #!�� ��$$%##��� &�#��� #!�� )*�5*���� (�%&5� $"��� "#� 	%**"��
�&%��*�%#.� ��"+!%&5� ���)%#"�� ���� ��'&�"#%�&� �*'�#� #�� ���%��*� �"$�� ��?�
"++�$$��"#%�&�"&��#!"#� *�5'�"*� *�)�*#���&�#!�� %��'��(��(*�'5!#�("+9� #�� #!��
��$$%##���#!*�'5!�#!��6'"�%#.��++�'&#�,�
�

B� �����������������������������
�
'�� +������� �&� ������ #������ #�$���� ��* ����� �� �)���� 0����� )��$���� ���
��  ���� 0���� *��/������� ��&�� ������ ��� ��� ��������� ����*������ �������� &��� ������
#������ ����� ����� �)����� ��� �������� ��� =*������ 	�
�� ����  ���
���  ��������������  ����&��� ���&������))����������&����=��#��=����������
�������#�$���������*������*����4�'���)����0�����*����������*����*�����������
 ��������	:������	�
�4�
�
-������������&���������&�� ���������������� ��������)������������������0�����*�
@)����� ���� *�&������ ��� ������/� �� 0���� ������������� @����� ��� ���
�))��������� �&� =��#� ��� ������� ��� ����� ��  ��� �� )�����$� ������������� &�� �
)�)�� 0��� ���� ��$���� ���� ��  ������ ����)�� �*���� ���� �))��������4� ����
���  �����������������&�� �������������������0�����&�� �)�����&����&������)�����
���3������ *��������� ���������&�����=��#�*������4�
�
��� �&� ������ 	�
��� 9
9D� )�)�� 0��� 0�� ���$���� ��$���� 0�� ������� ���
��$���� ��*��������� ���� ���� 
9
� )�)�� ���$���� ��$���� 0�� ������� ���
��$����������������4����
�
'�� 	�
�(

� *����� ���� *�� ��� ��� ��� *����� �&� ��� @������� =��#� �������� �&�
J��*��������� ���� ��������K4� %������� ��� ��������� ��� J��������K� ����� 0����� ��� ����
)�)�� ��$���� ��$���� � �$�� 0����� 0����� ����� �)������ ��� ��� ������ �� 4�
,�0$���)�)��0����J��*��������K����0�����8���/������������������������0�������
��))���� ���� ���� ��������� ������ ��� ��� ����� �� 4����$������ ������������� ����
��0���������������������������J �����K��������)�����&�������������$������
����)�$�����������4�'��3�����-���$������#���������� �����6��)�����0�����
&�� �)�����&����)��)����0�����$�04�

Page 5



%�)����������� *��>���  �������+���������������������$�0�������*�����
0������ �� A� ����� )����4� %������ ���� *�� ������/�� ������� ��������� )��5����
�����������������)�&���2������)�4�
�
��������� ��
�
012� �!"#� #!%�� ��$$%##��� �&��*���� #!�� ��+%�%�&� #�� +�&#%&'�� #�� )*��%��� ��+%"��
+"*����*�%+���#��%&�%�%�'"���%&�	%**"��<!��!"���+*%#%+"��"&���'(�#"&#%"��&����,�
�
042���$$%##���&�#���#!��*��%����5'%�"&+���&������"&��#!��&����/�*���'&+%���
#���'))�*#�'&%��*�"����*�%+���<!%+!�)*�$�#��*�"(��$�&#�"&��)*���&#%�&,�
�
0=2���$$%##����&��*����#!����+%�%�&�#��'&��*#"9��"�<%��*�+�&�'�#"#%�&��&�#!��
��'&+%�;�� ����� +*%#�*%"� #�� �&"(��� ��'&+%�� #�� ��#�*$%&�� ����� ������� /�*�
4711�14,�
�


�� ���������������������������������	�������
�
'�� +������� �&� ������ #������ #�$���� �)����� �)��� ��� 3����� -���$������ ����
��$������#�������� ����&� ���/�� �����&�� �������� )��5�����&� ���+)��� ����&�
������#������#�$���4� -���&&�����0���&��0����&��� ��� �����������������������������
&&����������*����������)�)������)�)��0��������*����������*������������)���������
����0����������0��0��*���4�
�
'�� ����$� ��� $������ ��� ���� ��� ��� ��������� ���� ���� ��� *� ��$�� ��� ���
)�$�����$�������  ������*������$��������� ����������&�������)�)�4�'����
0������8���������$�� �������� ���$������������������$�����������0���������
)�����$������ �4�3���������$����������)�$������0�����*�����������������������
���0��/��&�����)��� ��4�-��0������8��������))���������@���������$������$���
��������������)�)�������/����������&�������0����&���&&���������������*���
�����$������������������������4�
�
#������������&����������*��$ �����$�������*������������0�����)��/��
�)��������D����6��&��������0/4�=�������&��������$���0��������������������4�
#������� �&���� ��� �����$���)��$����*���%1#3�*��$ �������0�����0���
�*���������������������4�
�
"����� +������ ���&� 3@����$�� .,#� ������� ��)����� ����� .,#� ������� ����
��  �����������)�������������&���&���������*��$ �����$����&�� �;���������
������  ����������������������� �;�������������0����� �����* ����� �)����*��
�������&��������)���������*������&�.,#����������������$�����8����4�
�
%�)������� ��� &������ ��  ����� ���+������� ������ ����� �$���� &��0����0���� ���
�������� 0����� *� �� ���� ���� ��� ��������� ��� 0��� ��$���� 0�� )��$���� ���� ���
��  ���������� ���  ����� �&� ����� ����$������ &&���$��4� '�� �$�� 0��/�
���� �� 0�����  ��� �)� ��� �������� 0����� *� ��&������� &�@�*�� ���� �����������
$��$���4�
�
2���� ������*�������������������*�������������������������0���H�
�
��������� ��
�

Page 6



012� �!"#� ��$$%##��� #!"&9�� #!�� �%*�+#�*� /�*� #!�� )*��'+#%�&� �/� #!�� �"*�.�
�&#�*��&#%�&��#*"#�5.�/�*�	%**"��"&��&�#���%#��+�&#�&#�,�
�
042� �!"#���$$%##��� *�+�5&%���� #!�� %$)�*#"&+�� �/� %#� "&�� #!�� &���� #�� ������)�
#!���� ��*�%+��� <!%+!� �'))�*#� #!�� �%�%�&� �/� "� ��+%�#.� <!%+!� �"�'��� "��� %#��
+%#%@�&�� "&�� �&"(���� #!�$� #�� /'��.� )"*#%+%)"#�� %&� #!�%*� +�$$'&%#%��� "&�� %&�
"**"&5%&5�#!�%*��<&��'))�*#,�
�



� 	�-�����������
�
'����  �������$������)�����������0��/�)�����  ��������������������������
������&���������&������� ��&��������  �����������������)�����  ����&����0����
�

•� ��������%�����,��)������� ��������

•� <2����&�,��)����>�#�� �

•� �������������������������������������

•� ,��)�����+��������%$�0C+��������'����������'� �

•� ,���������,� �������1)����

•� <G����%������G�������>�(�#��)�# �/������ )�����

•� '����&�� ����������#����������

•� 1)�����&�������/�������  �
�
-��������������0�������������������������� ������&�� ����-�������������<��>����
<� *�>�*��������� �����DA���������� ���+ �����%$�0��������������� ����
����������4�'���&�����������������0������� ����
�

•� '��� )�����&����*����������$�����

•� �����)������$����

•� %)���� &�� � ������ ��������� ��� ��� ���������� !�$�� ��>�� ������� ��� ���
��������$���

�
%�)������� ��� ��� ������ )������"�����+���������&�3@����$��.,#��������� ��������
�� � �&� ��� ������� 5���� ��������� ���������� ��� �$������ �&� ������� ���������
�����������!��0������:6�����������)������))���� ����0������
6�0/������:������
0��������� �������0������������������������3 �����4�
�
���������  � �!"#� "��� #!�� �'55��#%�&�� /�*� #!�� ��$$%##��;�� 	�*9� �*�5*"$$��
�%�#��� "(���� (�� "5*���� "&�� #!�� �!"%*� "&�� �"*#.� �)�9��)�*��&�� $��#� �&� "�
*�5'�"*�("�%��#���%�+'���#!��)*�5*"$$�,�
�


	� ��	����������
�
'����  ��������*����$��������$�0����=��0���������)����������� ��������
�����&��������������������$������������������  ���>��0��/�)�����  ��0�����
���������������� ��/�)�����&����� �� �����������0������ ������������� �&�������0� ���
������*�����0��������$������ �����������������4�
�
��������� ��!"#�#!��/�*<"*��)�"&�(��&�#��,�
�
�

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 1 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:   
9

 
SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

NHS WHITE PAPER - LIBERATING THE NHS 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

Executive Summary 
 
This report introduces a presentation to be made to the Committee regarding 
NHS White Paper - ‘Liberating the NHS’. 
 

1 NHS White Paper 
 
1.1 The NHS White paper published in summer 2010 heralds a fundamental 

change to the way health services are organised across the UK. The 
Implications for Wirral could be far reaching and guidance continues to be 
issued by the Department of Health.  

 
1.2 A presentation will be made to the Committee on the strategic issues 

announced in the White Paper and the latest guidance on how these will 
be implemented locally. Key issues that are brought to the Committee’s 
attention include: 

 
(a) Independent NHS Commissioning Board 

(b) General Practitioner commissioning consortia 

(c) A new Public Health Service 

(d) Community Services to be separated from NHS Wirral 

(e) The move to Foundation Trust 

(f) The Council’s role in joining up local NHS services, social care and 
health improvement 

 

2 Financial Implications 
 
2.1 Whilst there are no specific financial implications arising from the report, 

the way local health and social care services are organised in the future 
will have far reaching financial impact. 

 

3 Staffing Implications 
 
3.1 There are no immediate staffing implications arising from this report. 

However the long term impact of changes in the way Council and Health 
services are organised in Wirral could have major implications for the 
workforce which is currently the major source of employment in the 
Borough. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



 

 2 

 

4 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment  
 
4.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 

 

5 Community Safety Implications 
 

5.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 

6 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
  
6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 

 

7 Planning Implications 
 

7.1 There are no specific planning implications arising from this report. 
 

8 Anti Poverty Implications 
 

8.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 

9 Social inclusion Implications  
 
9.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 

10 Local Member Support Implications  

 
10.1 There are no local member support implications arising from this report. 

 

11 Health Implications 

 
11.1 The way health and social care is arranged will have major implications for 

health of people in Wirral. These implications will feature in further reports 
to this and other Committees as proposals become clearer. 

 

12 Background Papers  
 
12.1 None. 
 

13 Recommendations 
 
13.1 That the Committee note the report and receive the presentation. 
 
 

JOHN WEBB 

Director of Adult Social Services 
 

Page 10



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:   
9
 
SEPTEMBER 2010 

 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

MANAGING THE BUDGET ACROSS HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
________________________________________________________________ 
 

Executive Summary 
 
This report introduces a presentation to be made to the Committee regarding the 
financial pressures facing the NHS and the Council. It sets out how, at a strategic 
level, the organisations are collaborating to deliver improved outcomes for local 
people and reduce inequalities whilst facing significant reductions in available 
resources.   
 

1 Working Together 
 
1.1 The presentation will confirm the Council’s, and the NHS commitment to 

working together which is reflected in the Local Area Agreement. Key 
issues to be addressed by the seven workstreams across the health and 
social care economy include:- 

 
(a) Too many avoidable admissions to hospital 

(b) Longer stays in hospital than is necessary 

(c) High numbers of people supported in residential and nursing home 
care 

 

2 Financial Implications 
 
2.1 Whilst there are no specific financial implications arising from the report, 
 the way local health and social care services are organised in the future 
 will have far reaching financial impact 
 

3 Staffing implications  
 
3.1 There are no specific staffing implications arising from this report. 

However the long term impact of changes in the way Council and Health 
services are organised in Wirral could have major implications for the 
workforce which is currently the major source of employment in Wirral. 

 

4 Equal Opportunities implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
4.1 Reducing health inequalities within limited resources is the major driver for 

the health and social care economy. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



 2 

5 Community Safety implications  
 

5.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 

6 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
  
6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 

 

7 Planning implications  
 

7.1 There are no specific planning implications arising from this report. 
 

8 Anti Poverty implications  
 

8.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 

9 Social inclusion implications  
 
9.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 

10 Local Member Support implications  

 
10.1 There are no local member support implications arising from this report. 

 

11 Health Implications 
 
11.1 The way health and social care is arranged will have major implications for 
 health of people in Wirral. These implications will feature in further reports 
 to this and other Committees as proposals become clearer. 
 

12 Background Papers  
 
12.1 None. 
 

13 Recommendations 
 
13.1 That the Committee note the report and receive the presentation. 
 
 

JOHN WEBB 

Director of Adult Social Services 
 

Page 12



 

 

WIRRAL COUNCIL         
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE:   
9 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
CARE QUALITY COMMISSION INSPECTION REPORT: SAFEGUARDING 
ADULTS, MAKING A POSITIVE CONTRIBUTION FOR ADULTS WITH A 
LEARNING DISABILITY AND INCREASED CHOICE AND CONTROL FOR 
ADULTS WITH A LEARNING DISABILITY 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an introduction to the 
Care Quality Commission Inspection findings from its review undertaken in May 
2010.  The focus of the inspection was on safeguarding adults, making a positive 
contribution for adults with a learning disability and increased choice and control for 
adults with a learning disability.  
 
As part of the inspection process the Care Quality Commission will formally present 
their findings to Cabinet on 2 September 2010, until this date the report which has 
been shared with Cabinet, will remain embargoed to members of the public. It will 
then be available on the Care Quality Commission website and in Easyread 
versions.  Copes of the report and improvement plan will be sent to members of this 
Committee on 3 September. 
  
1 Background 
 
1.1 An inspection team from the Care Quality Commission visited Wirral Council 

in May 2010 to find out how well the council was delivering social care.  The 
inspection team looked at how well Wirral Council was:  

 

• Safeguarding adults whose circumstances made them vulnerable 

• Making a positive contribution for adults with a learning disability 

• Increasing choice and control for adults with a learning disability 
 
2 Inspection Process 
 
2.1 Before visiting Wirral Council, the inspection team reviewed a range of key 

documents supplied by the Council and assessed other information about 
how the council was delivering and managing outcomes for people.  This 
included the Council’s own assessment of performance.  The team then 
refined the focus of the inspection to cover those areas where further 
evidence was required to ensure that there was a clear and accurate picture 
of how the Council was performing. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



 

 

2.2 During the inspection the team met with people who used services and their 
carers, staff and managers from a number of Council Departments and 
representatives of other organisations. 

 
2.3 The Council has produced an action plan in response to the inspection report. 

This plan provides detailed responses to address all areas for improvement. 
In turn it recognises that working with partners is key, where good practice is 
identified the council will seek to build upon it.  

 
2.4  The Care Quality Commission will return to Wirral in six months time 

(approximately end of January 2011) to undertake a follow up inspection to 
check on progress of the recommendations. 

 
3 Inspection Judgements 
 
3.1 The Inspection Report will identify what the Care Quality Commission found 

the Council was doing well and areas for development and make 
recommendations for improvements in each of the areas inspected. 

 
3.2 The Care Quality Commission judges the performance of councils using the 

following four grades: ‘performing poorly’, ‘performing adequately’, 
‘performing well’ and ‘performing excellently’.  In addition the Care Quality 
Commission rates a council’s capacity to improve its performance using the 
following four grades: ‘poor’, ‘uncertain’, ‘promising’ and ‘excellent’.  

 
4 Improvement Plan 
 
4.1 There are a number of issues raised by the Inspection and the 

recommendations from the Care Quality Commission that need to be 
addressed through a robust Improvement Plan. 

 
4.2 Cabinet recognised that improvements will need to be made, both to 

Safeguarding and Services for People with Learning Disabilities. 
 
4.3 The initial Improvement Plan approved by cabinet has been submitted to the 

Care Quality Commission. This will be kept under close scrutiny with 
progress reports to Cabinet submitted at two monthly intervals. 

 
5 Financial Implications 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications directly arising out of this report. 
 
6 Staffing Implications 
 
6.1 A range of issues have been addressed within the Improvement Plan to 

ensure that Wirral provides competent staffs, who have appropriate support 
and training. 

 

Page 14



 

 

7 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
7.1 An equality impact assessment was undertaken on the safeguarding 

improvement plan which was implemented and delivered between June 2009 
and June 2010. 

 
8 Community Safety Implications 
 
8.1 None arising from this report. 
 
9 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
9.1 None arising from this report. 
 
10 Planning Implications 
 
10.1 None arising from this report.  
 
11 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
11.1 None arising from this report.  
 
12 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
12.1 None arising from this report.  
 
13 Local Member Support Implications 
 
13.1 None arising from this report. 
 
14 Background Papers 
 
14.1 CQC Inspection Report (embargoed until 2 September) and Wirral’s 

improvement plan. 
 
15 Recommendations 
 
 That; 
 

(1) Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive the findings from the Care 
Quality Inspection Report on 2 September 2010 and accept their 
recommendations. 

 
(2) Overview and Scrutiny Committee receives the initial improvement 

plan and determines how it will scrutinise this work. 
 
 
JOHN WEBB 
Director of Adult Social Services 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
9 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
CHANGES TO INDEPENDENT LIVING FUND (ILF) 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report highlights the recent changes made to the independent living fund, 
the impact this may have on supporting adults with complex needs to live 
independently and the possible related impact on the Department of Adult Social 
Services (DASS) budget. 
 
This items falls within the Social Care and Inclusion portfolio. 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The Independent Living Fund (ILF) is a source of income administered 
 through a national government charity to enable people to pay for a 
 range of support services, or to provide access to other services such as 
 individual support to go to college or leisure activities that are not statutory.   
 
1.2 ILF is not a source of income to DASS.  The funds have been 
 predominantly used to support people with complex needs as part of 
 wider packages of funding and support to allow them to live independently.  
 Often, people may receive a combination of social care, health and ILF 
 funding alongside other funding streams such as Supporting People.  This 
 enables them to be comprehensively supported to live independent lives.  
 Often, people choose Supported Living tenancies as a direct alternative to 
 residential placements.  Over a number of years the fund has built a 
 reputation of allowing people to achieve independence, maximise the 
 quality of their lives and achieve their aspirations.  
 
1.3 Demand for ILF funding has increased year on year, primarily as a 
 reflection of the increasing numbers of people with complex needs being 
 supported, particularly in the area of adult learning disabilities.  However, 
 due to this significant growth in demand and the incremental  increase in 
 costs, ILF advised in March 2010 that it would it would be changing its 
 regulations.  This change meant they would only accept new applications 
 from people working 16 hours or more per week with effect from May 
 2010.  However, the consequence of this was a significant rise in ILF 
 applications.  Thereafter, and in response to this unprecedented demand, 
 the ILF issued a statement advising that they would not be in a position to 
 process or honour any of these new applications.  This decision was made 
 without notice.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



 

 The advice ILF have given those that have recently applied, is that they 
 must take further steps to manage within available funding and protect 
 existing awards.  As a result they are currently unable to commit any 
 further funding to new applicants, except for those who have already 
 received a formal offer of funding. 
 
1.4 This more recent decision has created significant concern and anxiety for 
 people who have been planning over a long period of time to move to 
 independent living arrangements and have been expecting ILF to 
 contribute to these support arrangements.  In view of the very short notice 
 given of this decision alongside the longer time frame of planning for these 
 arrangements, people have been left stunned and distressed by these 
 changes.  The implication is that this change will significantly affect long-
 term decisions about independent living. 
 
1.5 The ILF have taken steps to advise and reassure people of their 
 commitment to continue funding for existing people but has indicated that 
 they are unable to increase individual awards above the amount currently 
 paid. 
 
1.6 It is understood that ILF will make a further announcement in the near 
 future; however, there is no further detail on their website www.ilf.org.uk. 
 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 There are currently 118 people supported by DASS who also receive ILF 
 funding.  ILF funding for these people totals £37,143 per week 
 (£1,931,436 per year).  The average funding per person is £315 per week.   
 
2.2 Information for the past 5 years shows an average of 12.8 new 
 applications per year for people supported by DASS.  At an average 
 of £315 per week per application this equates to additional ILF funding of 
 £209,664 in total per year. 
 
2.3 There are currently 13 people supported by DASS who have outstanding 
 applications for ILF funding and a further 3 where applications were in the 
 process of being submitted.  This is an increase on the previous year’s 
 average figures over a two month period when applications under the old 
 regulations were being allowed.  Based on the average funding this 
 equates to a total of £5,040 per week and £262,080 in a full year.  Some of 
 these people were weeks away from moving into Supported Living 
 accommodation with friendship groups, and this decision has severely 
 disrupted financing of these schemes and has delayed “moving in dates” 
 which in some cases were only weeks away. 
 
3 Potential Impact 
 
3.1 It is too early to say what impact the withdrawal of ILF will have.  This 
 may be small as DASS should meet the Fair Access to Care Services 
 (FACS) eligible needs of people in receipt of ILF.   

Page 18



 

 However, a review of the 16 people referred to in 2.3, will need to be 
 undertaken to confirm that this is the case.  However, there is an 
 interdependence of funding arrangements across different funding 
 streams, so matters are not simple.  Clearly, the expectations of some 
 people and their parents is that it should be the responsibility of the  local 
 authority to make up ILF shortfalls.  From a support planning point of 
 view and without alternative funding available, the local authority may 
 need to reconsider the people where moves into Supported Living require 
 additional ILF funding, the support coming from other less expensive 
 FACS eligible services.  These may not afford the same opportunity for 
 independence, such as care placements.  Additionally, this could increase 
 cost pressures in DASS. 
 
3.2  The speed of the changes to ILF have also left a number of issues 

 unresolved which in include the following: 
 

• there appears to be no appeals procedure for those applications that 
have already been submitted 

• there are tenancy agreements currently being processed that cannot 
be completed as the ILF funding was part of the support package 

• there are some people that are in the process of moving into their new 
homes and were expecting payments to start 

• the review process for ILF may further reduce the number of claimants 
in Wirral and impact on the ability of people with complex health and 
social care needs to live fully independent lives 

• in light of the current position regarding public sector finances there is 
no indication that this decision will be reversed 

• this unilateral decision will inevitably create pressures on local 
authorities to make good funding shortfalls, even though this may not 
be appropriate or lawful, and further reduce the opportunities for people 
to live independently 

 
Further information is now being sought from other Councils in the North West to 
compare the of these ILF changes. 
 
4 Financial Implications 
 
 To be determined. 
 
5 Staffing Implications 
 
 None. 
 
6 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
 May reduce and restrict opportunities for adults with complex needs to live 

independently. 
 

Page 19



 

7 Community Safety Implications 
 
 None. 
 
8 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
 None. 
 
9 Planning Implications 
 
 None.  
 
10 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
 None. 
 
11 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
 May reduce and restrict opportunities for adults with complex needs to live 

independently. 
 
12 Local Member Support Implications 
 
 None. 
 
13 Health Implications 
 
 None. 
 
14 Background Papers 
 
 None. 
 
15 Recommendations 
 
 That; 
 

(1) Committee Members are requested to note the contents of this 
report and the possible impact of pressures on the community care 
budget in year. 

(2) It be noted that further direction may be required from Cabinet in 
addressing the impact of ILF changes. 

 
 
JOHN WEBB 
Director of Adult Social Services 
 
Name  Rick O’Brien 
Title  Head of Branch - Access & Assessment 
Ext no  666 4761 
Date  23 August 2010 

Page 20



Growing Stronger Communities
by joining together, many whispers become one voice

Wirral Local Involvement Network (LINk)

Annual Report 2009/2010
Our Health · Our Care · Our Say

Agenda Item 8

Page 21



W
ir

ra
l 
Lo

ca
l 
In

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

N
e
tw

o
rk

V
C

A
W

 ·
 F

ir
e 

St
at

io
n 

· 
Ex

m
ou

th
 S

tre
et

 
Bi

rk
en

he
ad

 ·
 C

H
4
1
 4

N
F

Te
l: 

0
1
5
1
 2

0
3
 2

1
1
1

in
fo

@
lin

kw
ir
ra

l.o
rg

.u
k 

· 
w

w
w

.li
nk

w
ir
ra

l.o
rg

.u
k

Fo
re

w
or

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ha

ir
m

an
 

In
tro

du
ct

io
n

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
2

3
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

C
on

te
nt

s
D

ur
in

g
 th

is
 la

st
 y

ea
r 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
ha

s 
st

a
rt
ed

 to
 m

a
ke

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
a
nt

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
vi

a
 th

e 
w

or
k 

th
a
t w

e 
a
re

 d
oi

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

he
a
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

he
 

in
d
iv

id
ua

ls
 a

nd
 o

rg
a
ni

sa
tio

ns
 th

a
t m

a
ke

 
up

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
ha

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d
 to

 g
iv

e 
th

ei
r 

kn
ow

le
d
g
e,

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

a
nd

 ti
m

e 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
p
ro

vi
d
er

s 
a
nd

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

of
 

he
a
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 m
a
ke

 
su

re
 th

a
t t

he
 v

ie
w

s 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

re
 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
.

W
e 

ha
ve

 e
st

a
b
lis

he
d
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

N
H

S 
a
nd

 W
ir
ra

l 
C

ou
nc

il,
 a

nd
 r

em
a
in

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 to

 
w

or
ki

ng
 i
n 

p
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
N

H
S 

W
ir
ra

l, 
W

ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

Te
a
ch

in
g
 H

os
p
ita

l, 
C

la
tte

rb
ri
d
g
e 

C
en

tr
e 

fo
r 

O
nc

ol
og

y,
 C

he
sh

ir
e 

&
 W

ir
ra

l 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 a

nd
 W

ir
ra

l C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 
ta

ke
n 

us
 s

er
io

us
ly

 a
nd

 tr
ea

te
d
 u

s 
w

ith
 

re
sp

ec
t, 

w
hi

ch
 i
s 

ve
ry

 p
le

a
si

ng
. 
Th

e 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 (
O

SC
) 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
ve

ry
 k

ee
n 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

LI
N

k,
 a

nd
 w

e 
ha

ve
 w

or
ke

d
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

ith
 th

em
 to

 i
d
en

tif
y 

a
re

a
s 

w
he

re
 w

e 
ca

n 
w

or
k 

to
g
et

he
r.
 

So
, 
w

e’
ve

 m
a
d
e 

so
m

e 
g
oo

d
 p

ro
g
re

ss
 

a
nd

 w
e’

ve
 g

ot
 a

 lo
t o

f 
w

or
th

w
hi

le
 a

nd
 

in
te

re
st

in
g
 w

or
k 

a
he

a
d
 o

f 
us

. 
W

e’
ll 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

ha
rd

 to
 e

ng
a
g
e 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, 
a
nd

 to
 b

e 
se

en
 to

 b
e 

m
a
ki

ng
 

a
 d

iff
er

en
ce

 to
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

.

Fi
na

lly
, 
I w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 to
 th

a
nk

 a
ll 

th
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
of

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
b
oa

rd
 a

nd
 th

e 
a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

b
er

sh
ip

 f
or

 th
ei

r 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
a
nd

 s
te

rli
ng

 w
or

k 
ov

er
 th

e 
p
a
st

 y
ea

r,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
Su

p
p
or

t T
ea

m
 f
or

 th
ei

r 
d
ed

ic
a
tio

n,
 g

ui
d
a
nc

e 
a
nd

 s
up

p
or

t, 
a
nd

 
ev

er
yo

ne
 w

ho
’s

 g
iv

en
 u

p
 th

ei
r 

tim
e 

a
nd

 
ex

p
er

tis
e 

to
 m

a
ke

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
a
 s

uc
ce

ss
.

D
ia

ne
 H

ill
, 
LI
N

k 
C

ha
ir
m

a
n

Fo
re

w
o
rd

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
2

In
tr

o
d
u
ct

io
n

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

3

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 &
 S

tr
u
ct

u
re

 ..
...

...
...

.6

Fi
n
a
n
ci

a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
0

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t,

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 
&

 N
e
tw

o
rk

in
g

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

11

R
e
la

ti
o
n
sh

ip
s 

&
  

R
e
p
re

se
n
ta

ti
o
n

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
13

S
u
cc

e
ss

 S
to

ri
e
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
15

W
h
a
t 

W
e
’v

e
 D

o
n
e
 S

o
 F

a
r 

...
...

..
18

W
h
e
re

 d
o
 w

e
 g

o
 f

ro
m

 h
e
re

?
 ..

26

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
27

A
 L

oc
a
l I

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t N

et
w

or
k,

 o
r 

LI
N

k,
 i
s 

a
n 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

t n
et

w
or

k 
m

a
d
e 

up
 o

f 
a
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f 
lo

ca
l i

nd
iv

id
ua

ls
 a

nd
 o

rg
a
ni

sa
tio

ns
 - 

su
ch

 a
s 

vo
lu

nt
a
ry

 o
rg

a
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
s.

LI
N

k 
p
a
rt
ic

ip
a
nt

s 
a
re

 a
ll 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 f
ro

m
 a

cr
o
ss

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

Ea
ch

 b
ri
ng

s 
w

ith
 th

em
 d

iff
er

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

st
a
nd

in
g
 

o
f 
he

a
lth

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

o
 h

el
p
 th

em
 d

o
 th

ei
r 

jo
b
, 
th

e 
le

g
is

la
tio

n 
es

ta
b
lis

hi
ng

 L
IN

ks
 g

iv
es

 th
em

 c
er

ta
in

 p
o
w

er
s 

- s
uc

h 
a
s 

b
ei

ng
 a

b
le

 to
 m

a
ke

 v
is

its
 to

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
se

e 
th

em
 i
n 

a
ct

io
n.

V
is

io
n

“O
ur

 V
is

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
is

..
.m

a
ki

ng
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 
so

ci
a
l c

a
re

 w
or

k 
fo

r 
yo

u 
b
y 

d
ev

el
op

in
g
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
a
t t

ru
ly

 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 p
eo

p
le

 li
vi

ng
 a

nd
 w

or
ki

ng
 i
n 

W
ir
ra

l.

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
lre

a
d
y 

es
ta

b
lis

he
d
, 
a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
, 
a
 

d
iv

er
se

 n
et

w
or

k 
of

 lo
ca

l p
eo

p
le

, 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, 
g
ro

up
s 

a
nd

 
or

g
a
ni

sa
tio

ns
.

W
ith

 y
ou

r 
he

lp
 w

e 
w

ill
 c

re
a
te

 a
 s

tr
on

g
er

, 
m

or
e 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

t v
oi

ce
, 
to

 w
or

k 
to

g
et

he
r 

to
 h

el
p
 s

ha
p
e 

fu
tu

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 s
tr
en

g
th

en
 a

nd
 w

id
en

 th
e 

in
flu

en
ce

 o
f 

p
a
tie

nt
s 

a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 i
n 

th
e 

p
la

nn
in

g
, 
d
el

iv
er

y 
a
nd

 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t o

f 
he

a
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
W

ir
ra

l.”

W
ha

t d
oe

s 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
do

?

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
is

 f
o
cu

se
d
 o

n 
a
d
d
re

ss
in

g
 lo

ca
l n

ee
d
s 

a
nd

 p
ri
o
ri
tie

s,
 

b
y 

fin
d
in

g
 o

ut
 w

ha
t p

eo
p
le

 w
a
nt

 f
ro

m
 th

ei
r 

he
a
lth

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 m

o
ni

to
ri
ng

 th
e 

ca
re

 th
a
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

p
ro

vi
d
e 

a
nd

 
re

p
o
rt
in

g
 o

ur
 fi

nd
in

g
s.

 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

a
r 

it 
b
ec

a
m

e 
a
p
p
a
re

nt
 th

a
t t

he
re

 a
re

 s
ev

er
a
l i

ss
ue

s 
a
ro

un
d
 d

is
ch

a
rg

e 
fr
o
m

 h
o
sp

ita
l. 

W
hi

ls
t t

he
re

 i
s 

so
m

e 
g
o
o
d
 

w
o
rk

 b
ei

ng
 d

o
ne

 b
y 

th
e 

ho
sp

ita
ls

, 
w

e 
fe

el
 th

a
t t

he
re

 i
s 

sc
o
p
e 

fo
r 

ca
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 w
o
rk

 m
o
re

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
a
ry

 a
nd

 
in

d
ep

en
d
en

t s
ec

to
rs

, 
a
nd

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

o
rk

in
g
 to

 e
nc

o
ur

a
g
e 

a
nd

 m
o
ni

to
r 

th
is

.

Page 22



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
4

5
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

O
ne

 o
f 
o
ur

 m
a
in

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

is
 p

a
st

 y
ea

r 
a
nd

 o
ne

 th
a
t w

e 
a
re

 
ve

ry
 p

ro
ud

 to
 h

a
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

vo
lv

ed
 i
n 

is
 th

e 
D

ig
ni

ty
 i
n 

C
a
re

 
C

a
m

p
a
ig

n 
o
n 

W
ir
ra

l. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 w

o
rk

ed
 i
n 

p
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 w

ith
 

th
e 

D
ep

a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 In
d
ep

en
d
en

t N
ur

si
ng

 
H

o
m

es
, 
N

H
S
 W

ir
ra

l, 
Vo

lu
nt

a
ry

 &
 C

o
m

m
un

ity
 A

ct
io

n 
W

ir
ra

l, 
W

ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 T

ea
ch

in
g
 H

o
sp

ita
l N

H
S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t a

nd
 

th
e 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

’s
 P

a
rl
ia

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

 W
o
rk

in
g
 

G
ro

up
 to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

w
a
re

ne
ss

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
p
o
rt
a
nc

e 
th

a
t d

ig
ni

ty
 

a
nd

 r
es

p
ec

t m
ea

ns
 to

 th
e 

g
en

er
a
l p

ub
lic

 w
he

n 
ca

re
 a

nd
 

tr
ea

tm
en

t i
s 

b
ei

ng
 g

iv
en

.

It 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
ev

id
en

t t
ha

t m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

a
 

la
rg

e 
p
a
rt
 o

f 
th

e 
LI
N

k’
s 

w
o
rk

 s
o
 f
a
r.
 O

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 y
ea

r 
m

en
ta

l 
he

a
lth

 m
a
y 

b
e 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
fo

cu
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

LI
N

k,
 p

a
rt
ic

ul
a
rl
y 

a
ro

un
d
 

th
e 

A
cu

te
 C

a
re

 M
o
d
el

 f
o
r 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

s 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 W

a
rd

s.
 

Pe
rs

o
na

lis
a
tio

n 
re

m
a
in

s 
a
 f
o
cu

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
LI
N

k,
 a

nd
 w

e’
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

vo
lv

ed
 i
n 

th
e 

o
rg

a
ni

sa
tio

na
l s

id
e 

o
f 
th

e 
p
ro

ce
ss

. 
W

e 
re

co
g
ni

se
 

th
a
t t

he
re

 i
s 

a
 lo

t t
o
 le

a
rn

 a
b
o
ut

 th
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

, 
b
ut

 w
e 

ex
p
ec

t t
o
 b

e 
fu

lly
 i
nv

o
lv

ed
 i
n 

th
e 

Pe
rs

o
na

lis
a
tio

n 
a
nd

 tr
a
ns

fo
rm

a
tio

n 
o
f 
so

ci
a
l 

ca
re

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 y
ea

r.

W
ho

 d
o 

w
e 

w
or

k 
w

ith
?

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
is

 a
n 

in
d
ep

en
d
en

t o
rg

a
ni

sa
tio

n 
b
ut

 w
o
rk

s 
in

 
p
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 w

ith
 b

o
th

 lo
ca

l a
nd

 n
a
tio

na
l o

rg
a
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 
 

M
o
st

 i
m

p
o
rt
a
nt

ly
 w

e 
w

o
rk

 w
ith

 m
em

b
er

s 
o
f 
th

e 
p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 to

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

re
p
re

se
nt

 th
ei

r 
vi

ew
s 

to
 th

o
se

 
o
rg

a
ni

sa
tio

ns
 w

ho
 p

ur
ch

a
se

 a
nd

 c
o
m

m
is

si
o
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 lo
ca

lly
 

su
ch

 a
s 

N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l, 
D

ep
a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
in

d
ep

en
d
en

t r
eg

ul
a
to

rs
 a

nd
 o

f 
co

ur
se

 a
ll 

th
o
se

 w
ho

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

he
a
lth

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 i
n 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
.

“W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 p

la
y 

a
 v

a
lu

a
b
le

 r
o
le

 i
n 

re
p
re

se
nt

in
g
 th

e 
vi

ew
s 

o
f 
p
eo

p
le

 w
ho

 u
se

 
se

rv
ic

es
, 
ca

re
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

w
id

er
 c

o
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
f 
W

ir
ra

l i
n 

th
e 

w
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e 
d
ep

a
rt
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 i
ts

 
p
a
rt
ne

rs
. 
LI
N

k 
a
re

 r
ep

re
se

nt
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ke
y 

st
ra

te
g
ic

 a
nd

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

a
ki

ng
 b

o
d
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
Tr

a
ns

fo
rm

a
tio

n 
B
o
a
rd

, 
th

e 
S
a
fe

g
ua

rd
in

g
 A

d
ul

ts
 P

a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 B

o
a
rd

 a
nd

 h
a
ve

 a
 p

la
ce

 a
t t

he
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
o
m

m
itt

ee
.

Th
e 

LI
N

k’
s 

2
0
0
9
/
1
0
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n,
 w

hi
ch

 h
a
s 

p
ro

g
re

ss
ed

 w
el

l, 
ha

s 
se

en
 L

IN
k 

b
ei

ng
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

in
vo

lv
ed

 i
n 

is
su

es
 s

uc
h 

a
s 

“D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

” 
a
nd

 P
er

so
na

lis
a
tio

n,
 a

nd
 th

e 
LI
N

k 
ha

s 
su

p
p
o
rt
ed

 th
e 

D
ep

a
rt
m

en
t m

o
vi

ng
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
n 

th
es

e 
a
g
en

d
a
s.

 T
he

 r
o
le

 a
nd

 p
la

ce
 o

f 
LI
N

ks
 

is
 u

nd
er

st
o
o
d
 a

nd
 r

es
p
ec

te
d
 b

y 
a
g
en

ci
es

 i
n 

W
ir
ra

l a
nd

 o
w

es
 m

uc
h 

to
 th

e 
o
rg

a
ni

se
d
 a

nd
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l a
p
p
ro

a
ch

 ta
ke

n 
b
y 

th
em

.”

Jo
hn

 W
eb

b,
 D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 A

du
lt 

So
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 W
ir

ra
l C

ou
nc

il

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 
H

ea
lth

 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

Po
lic

e
Ed

uc
a
tio

n
H

o
us

in
g

Fi
re

 S
er

vi
ce N
H

S

N
o
rt
h 

W
es

t 
A

m
b
ul

a
nc

e 
Tr

us
t

C
a
re

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n

D
ep

a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s

LI
N

k 
Re

g
io

na
lly

 &
 

N
a
tio

na
lly

Vo
lu

nt
a
ry

 &
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ec
to

r
U

se
r 

G
ro

up
s

Se
lf 

H
el

p
 G

ro
up

s
O

rg
a
ni

sa
tio

ns

EV
ER

Y
O

N
E

Page 23



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
6

7
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

St
ru

ct
ur

e

Le
ve

ls
 o

f m
em

be
rs

hi
p

In
fo

rm
e
d

 - 
Re

ce
iv

e 
ne

w
sl

et
te

rs
 a

nd
 i
nf

or
m

a
tio

n,
 a

nd
 ta

ke
 

p
a
rt
 i
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

.

In
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 A

ct
iv

e
 - 

Re
ce

iv
e 

ne
w

sl
et

te
rs

 a
nd

 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n,
 ta

ke
 p

a
rt
 i
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

, 
a
nd

 p
a
rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n 

LI
N

k 
a
ct

iv
iti

es
 s

uc
h 

a
s 

Ta
sk

 a
nd

 F
in

is
h 

G
ro

up
s 

a
nd

 E
nt

er
 &

 V
ie

w
 

vi
si

ts
 (
fo

llo
w

in
g
 tr

a
in

in
g
 a

nd
 C

RB
 c

he
ck

s)

 
In

fo
rm

e
d
, 

A
ct

iv
e
 &

 B
o
a
rd

 - 
A

ll 
of

 th
e 

a
b
ov

e 
p
lu

s 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 
p
la

nn
in

g
, 
d
ec

is
io

n-
m

a
ki

ng
 a

nd
 w

or
kp

la
n 

d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.

Yo
u 

d
o
n’

t h
a
ve

 to
 b

e 
a
 m

em
b
er

 o
f 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
to

 g
et

 i
nv

o
lv

ed
. 

A
ny

b
o
d
y 

ca
n 

p
a
rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n 

th
e 

LI
N

k 
a
nd

 te
ll 

us
 a

b
o
ut

 th
ei

r 
ex

p
er

ie
nc

es
 o

f 
he

a
lth

 o
r 

so
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 e

ve
n 

if 
th

ey
 a

re
 

no
t a

 m
em

b
er

 o
f 
LI
N

k.
 F

o
r 

th
o
se

 p
eo

p
le

 w
ho

 w
o
ul

d
 li

ke
 to

 b
e 

m
o
re

 i
nv

o
lv

ed
, 
m

em
b
er

sh
ip

 o
f 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
ca

n 
ra

ng
e 

fr
o
m

 b
ei

ng
 

o
n 

th
e 

m
a
ili

ng
 li

st
 a

nd
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 th
e 

ne
w

sl
et

te
r,
 th

ro
ug

h 
to

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
ri
ng

 to
 s

er
ve

 o
n 

su
b
-g

ro
up

s 
o
r 

ru
nn

in
g
 f
o
r 

el
ec

tio
n 

to
 

th
e 

B
o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
o
se

 w
ith

 m
o
re

 ti
m

e 
to

 s
p
a
re

.

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 =
 2

3
6

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 =
 9

2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

A
ct

iv
e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 =
 6

6

“I
 a

m
 a

 p
a
re

nt
/
ca

re
r 

fo
r 

m
y 

so
n 

a
g
ed

 2
0
 w

ho
 h

a
s 

A
sp

er
g
er

 S
yn

d
ro

m
e 

a
nd

 a
no

re
xi

a
. 
I h

a
ve

 
re

ce
nt

ly
 s

et
 u

p
 a

 s
up

p
o
rt
 g

ro
up

 c
a
lle

d
 ‘
C

a
re

 a
nd

 S
ha

re
’ 
o
n 

th
e 

W
ir
ra

l a
nd

 w
hi

ls
t s

ea
rc

hi
ng

 
fo

r 
us

ef
ul

 a
g
en

ci
es

 to
 li

nk
 u

p
 w

ith
 I 

d
is

co
ve

re
d
 th

e 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
w

eb
si

te
. 
I w

a
s 

in
vi

te
d
 a

lo
ng

 
to

 a
 m

ee
tin

g
 to

 fi
nd

 o
ut

 m
o
re

 a
b
o
ut

 w
ha

t W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
d
o
es

 a
nd

 w
a
s 

g
iv

en
 th

e 
o
p
p
o
rt
un

ity
 

to
 a

tte
nd

 a
 ‘
ve

tti
ng

 a
nd

 b
a
rr

in
g
 s

ch
em

e’
 c

o
nf

er
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

 c
o
ur

se
 o

n 
‘r

es
ea

rc
h 

tr
a
in

in
g
’ 
a
nd

 
w

ill
 b

e 
p
ut

tin
g
 th

e 
sk

ill
s 

le
a
rn

ed
 to

 g
o
o
d
 u

se
 w

he
n 

I r
un

 a
 p

ilo
t r

es
ea

rc
h 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
ro

un
d
 a

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ca

ri
ng

 i
ss

ue
. 
I f

o
un

d
 e

ve
ry

b
o
d
y 

a
t W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
w

el
co

m
in

g
 a

nd
 s

up
p
o
rt
iv

e 
a
nd

 I 
ha

ve
 

le
a
rn

ed
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

o
f 
d
ev

el
o
p
in

g
 s

tr
o
ng

 p
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

a
ry

 a
nd

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

ec
to

rs
 

to
 e

na
b
le

 ‘
C

a
re

 a
nd

 S
ha

re
’ 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
ur

 a
im

s 
a
nd

 o
b
je

ct
iv

es
.”

Li
sa

 J
am

es
, 

C
ar

e 
an

d 
Sh

ar
e 

- 
LI

N
k 

m
em

be
r

Is
su

e 
B
a
se

d
 G

ro
up

s

Ra
p
id

 R
es

p
o
ns

e

En
te

r 
&

 V
ie

w
 T

ea
m

C
o
m

m
un

ic
a
tio

ns

C
ro

ss
-B

o
un

d
ry

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

Ti
m

e 
Li

m
ite

d
 G

ro
up

s

B
ed

 B
lo

ck
in

g
 &

 D
is

ch
a
rg

e

Pe
rs

o
na

lis
a
tio

n

W
o
rk

p
la

n 
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t

C
o
m

m
un

ity
 G

ro
up

s
In

d
iv

id
ua

ls

A
ll 

ca
n 

jo
in

W
ir

ra
l 
Lo

ca
l 
In

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 (
LI

N
k

)

Pr
io

ri
tis

e 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 
d
ev

el
o
p
 t
a
sk

 g
ro

up
s

Li
st

en
 t
o
 a

nd
 h

ea
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
s

A
ll 

ca
n 

jo
in

Ta
sk

 &
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
s

In
fo

rm
ed

 M
em

b
er

In
fo

rm
ed

 &
 A

ct
iv

e 
M

em
b
er

In
fo

rm
ed

, 
A

ct
iv

e 
&

 B
oa

rd
 M

em
b
er

Page 24



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
8

9
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

A
ut

ho
ri

se
d 

Re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 fo

r 
En

te
r 

an
d 

V
ie

w

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
ha

s 
th

e 
ri
g
ht

 to
 E

nt
er

 a
nd

 V
ie

w
 c

er
ta

in
 p

re
m

is
es

 
w

he
re

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
a
re

 p
ro

vi
d
ed

 (
ex

cl
ud

in
g
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s)

. 
En

te
r 

a
nd

 V
ie

w
 V

is
its

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

vi
d
en

ce
-b

a
se

d
 r

es
ea

rc
h,

 a
nd

 m
a
y 

b
e 

a
nn

o
un

ce
d
 o

r 
un

a
nn

o
un

ce
d
. 
H

o
w

ev
er

, 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
en

d
ea

vo
ur

s 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 a

ny
 

is
su

es
 a

t a
 ‘
g
ra

ss
-ro

o
ts

’ 
le

ve
l b

ef
o
re

 th
e 

ne
ed

 f
o
r 

En
te

r 
a
nd

 V
ie

w
 

vi
si

ts
 a

ri
se

s.

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 L

IN
k 

m
em

b
er

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

En
te

r 
&

 V
ie

w
 tr

a
in

ed
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g
 S

a
fe

g
ua

rd
in

g
),
 C

RB
 c

he
ck

ed
, 
a
nd

 a
re

 a
ut

ho
ri
se

d
 to

 
ca

rr
y 

o
ut

 v
is

its
 to

 c
a
re

 p
re

m
is

es
 o

n 
b
eh

a
lf 

o
f 
th

e 
LI
N

k.

M
o
re

 i
nf

o
rm

a
tio

n 
a
b
o
ut

 W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
En

te
r 

a
nd

 V
ie

w
 V

is
its

 c
a
n 

b
e 

fo
un

d
 o

n 
Pa

g
e 

2
5
.

El
ec

tio
ns

 2
01

0

To
 a

llo
w

 f
or

 v
a
lu

a
b
le

 w
or

k 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 a
nd

 f
or

 c
on

tin
ui

ty
 o

f 
a
ll 

in
vo

lv
ed

, 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

a
tio

ns
 S

ub
-G

ro
up

 r
ec

om
m

en
d
ed

 to
 th

e 
LI
N

k 
Bo

a
rd

 th
a
t t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

em
b
er

sh
ip

 r
em

a
in

s 
fo

r 
a
 f
ur

th
er

 1
2
 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d
. 
Th

e 
LI
N

k 
m

em
b
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
w

er
e 

a
sk

ed
 

if 
th

ey
 w

er
e 

in
 f
a
vo

ur
 o

f 
th

is
 c

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
- a

ll 
re

sp
on

se
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
w

er
e 

in
 f
a
vo

ur
 o

f 
th

e 
Bo

a
rd

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 i
n 

its
 c

ur
re

nt
 f
or

m
a
t. 

Awaiting
Photo

Awaiting
Photo

DIANE HILL
CHAIRMAN

Older People’s
Parliament

VICE CHAIRMAN
Representing Faith

PETER BARNETT
Representing LGBT

(Lesbian, gay, Bisexual
& Transgencer

VAL ELLIOTT
Representing 

Family Services

JOYCE HAYWARD
Representing

Family Services

ROBIN ELEY JONES
Representing GenderRepresenting 

Mental Health

Representing Housing, 
Regeneration & 
Homelessness

Representing Carers
STANLEY MAYNE

Representing 
Drugs & Alcohol

BARBERA MOODY
Representing Health

Support & Well-Being

DR PETER WALTON
Representing Older People

DIANE MORLEY
Crossroads CareMerseyside Ambulance 

Retired Staff Association 
(MARSA)

Inner Action
MARION MURPHY
Merseyside Society

For Deaf People

REV FR LEON 

Churches Together

LISA JAMES
Representing Physical 

Health Disability

Wirral LINk Board 2009/10

Our Health · Our Care · Our Say

Page 25



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
1
0

1
1

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

2
0

0
9

/
2

0
1

0
2
0
0
8
/
2
0
0
9

S
ta

ffi
ng

 &
 m

a
na

g
em

en
t c

o
st

£
8

2
,6

4
3

.0
0

£
7
8
,2

8
0
.2

0

Pr
em

is
es

 &
 r

un
ni

ng
 c

o
st

s
£

2
7

,2
9

8
.0

0
£
1
6
,6

4
8
.3

5

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t &

 e
ng

a
g
em

en
t c

o
st

s
£

1
1

,9
9

4
.0

0
£
8
,2

3
1
.7

1

M
em

b
er

 c
o
st

s 
&

 v
en

ue
s

£
5

,6
9

8
.0

0
£
5
,4

0
3
.5

2

C
o
nt

in
g
en

ci
es

£
8
,1

4
0
.0

0

To
ta

l
£

1
2

7
,6

3
3

.0
0

£
1
1
6
,7

0
3
.7

8

Su
rp

lu
s

£
5

4
,1

4
3

.0
6

£
4
4
,6

1
4
.7

7

It 
w

a
s 

a
nt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 th

a
t t

he
re

 w
o
ul

d
 b

e 
a
 s

ur
p
lu

s.
 It

 w
a
s 

a
g
re

ed
 

b
y 

W
ir
ra

l C
o
un

ci
l a

nd
 th

e 
LI
N

k 
th

a
t t

he
 b

es
t u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
p
la

nn
ed

 
un

d
er

sp
en

d
 w

o
ul

d
 b

e 
to

 e
nh

a
nc

e 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
S
up

p
o
rt
 T

ea
m

 a
nd

 
st

re
ng

th
en

 th
e 

in
fr
a
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

a
nd

 m
a
na

g
em

en
t t

ea
m

 th
a
t s

up
p
o
rt
s 

LI
N

k.
 T

hi
s 

a
ls

o
 r

es
ul

te
d
 i
n 

th
e 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t o

f 
Li

sa
 P

hi
lli

p
s,

 P
ro

je
ct

 
S
up

p
o
rt
, 
El

a
in

e 
Ev

a
ns

, 
LI
N

k 
S
up

p
o
rt
 O

ffi
ce

r,
 a

nd
 P

hi
l D

a
vi

es
, 

C
o
m

m
un

ic
a
tio

ns
 a

nd
 In

fo
rm

a
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r.
 T

hi
s 

a
ls

o
 r

es
ul

te
d
 i
n 

th
e 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
te

le
p
ho

ne
 s

ys
te

m
 a

nd
 w

eb
si

te
. 
Th

e 
H

o
st

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 i
s 

co
nt

in
ua

lly
 m

o
ni

to
re

d
 a

g
a
in

st
 c

o
nt

ra
ct

 s
p
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n 

b
y 

W
ir
ra

l C
o
un

ci
l’s

 L
IN

k 
Le

a
d
 (
C

a
th

y 
G

ill
).

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
is

 f
un

d
ed

 b
y 

W
ir
ra

l C
o
un

ci
l. 

Th
e 

C
o
un

ci
l h

a
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

ed
 V

o
lu

nt
a
ry

 &
 C

o
m

m
un

ity
 A

ct
io

n 
W

ir
ra

l (
V

C
A
W

) 
to

 a
ct

 
a
s 

ho
st

 f
o
r 

th
e 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
un

til
 M

a
rc

h 
2
0
1
1
.

In
vo

lv
em

en
t, 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t 

&
 N

et
w

or
ki

ng

M
ee

tin
g
s 

in
 P

ub
lic

 (
B
o
a
rd

)
1
6

Pu
b
lic

 M
ee

tin
g
s

1

Ta
sk

 &
 F

in
is

h 
G

ro
up

 M
ee

tin
g
s

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

  
D

is
ch

a
rg

e
W

o
rk

p
la

n 
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t G

ro
up

  
Le

g
a
cy

 Is
su

es
 (
se

e 
p
a
g
e 

1
8
)

1
1

5 3 2

S
ta

nd
in

g
 G

ro
up

 M
ee

tin
g
s

En
te

r 
&

 V
ie

w
 a

nd
 R

a
p
id

 R
es

p
o
ns

e 
 

C
ro

ss
 B

o
un

d
a
ry

 
C

o
m

m
un

ic
a
tio

ns
 

5
*

1
*

6
*

S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 M
ee

tin
g
s

6
5
*
*

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
o
m

m
itt

ee
1
1

Re
g
io

na
l a

nd
 L

o
ca

l H
o
st

 N
et

w
o
rk

s 
fo

r 
LI
N

ks
1
5

Jo
in

t P
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 E

ve
nt

s
7
 *

*
*

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

/
Pr

o
m

o
tio

ns
1
1
 *

*
*
*

Fo
rm

a
l E

nt
er

 a
nd

 V
ie

w
 V

is
its

 
Pa

tie
nt

 E
nv

ir
o
nm

en
t A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 (
PE

A
G

)
A

rr
o
w

e 
Pa

rk
 F

o
ye

r 
  

S
p
ri
ng

V
ie

w
  

N
ur

si
ng

 H
o
m

e 
V
is

its
 (
x3

)
G

P 
Pr

a
ct

ic
es

 (
x3

) 
S
p
ri
ng

V
ie

w
   

D
is

ch
a
rg

e 
Lo

un
g
e 

(x
2
)

1
2

M
a
y 

2
0
0
9

Ja
nu

a
ry

 2
0
1
0

Ja
nu

a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 

Fe
b
ru

a
ry

 &
 M

a
rc

h 
2
0
1
0

Fe
b
ru

a
ry

 &
 M

a
rc

h 
2
0
1
0

M
a
rc

h 
2
0
1
0

M
a
rc

h 
2
0
1
0

Th
em

ed
 C

o
ffe

e 
M

o
rn

in
g
s

 5

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
is

 c
o
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
in

g
 th

a
t a

s 
m

a
ny

 p
eo

p
le

 a
s 

p
o
ss

ib
le

 c
a
n 

p
a
rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n 

th
e 

LI
N

k.
 O

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
a
r 

w
e 

ha
ve

 h
el

d
: 

O
th

er
 E

ve
nt

s

*
S
ee

 A
p
p
en

d
ix

 1
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 i
nf

o
rm

a
tio

n/
no

te
s 

a
b
o
ut

 th
es

e 
ev

en
ts

.

Page 26



A
t a

ll 
o
f 
o
ur

 e
ve

nt
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
a
ct

iv
el

y 
se

ek
in

g
 th

e 
ex

p
er

ie
nc

es
 a

nd
 v

ie
w

s 
o
f 
LI
N

k 
m

em
b
er

s 
a
nd

 th
e 

p
eo

p
le

 w
ho

 
us

e 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

o
n 

th
e 

W
ir
ra

l. 
Is

su
es

 th
a
t y

o
u 

ha
ve

 to
ld

 
us

 a
b
o
ut

 a
re

 r
ec

o
rd

ed
, 
si

g
np

o
st

ed
 a

nd
 m

o
ni

to
re

d
. 
Th

is
 h

a
s 

en
a
b
le

d
 u

s 
to

 i
d
en

tif
y 

tr
en

d
s 

a
nd

 h
el

p
 f
o
rm

ul
a
te

 th
e 

LI
N

k’
s 

w
o
rk

p
la

n.
 E

xa
m

p
le

s 
o
f 
so

m
e 

th
in

g
s 

th
a
t y

o
u 

ha
ve

 to
ld

 u
s 

a
re

:

Y
o
u
 S

a
id

: 
“C

oo
ke

ry
 a

nd
 n

ut
ri
tio

n 
cl

a
ss

es
 f
or

 m
en

 - 
ha

nd
s 

on
”.

W
e
 D

id
: 

 
Se

nt
 H

ea
lth

 A
ct

io
n 

A
re

a
s 

a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 th

e 
ca

lle
r,
 a

nd
 i
nf

or
m

ed
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 te

a
m

 a
t N

H
S 

W
ir
ra

l o
f 
th

is
 s

ug
g
es

tio
n.

Y
o
u
 S

a
id

: 
“L

en
g
th

 o
f 
tim

e 
b
et

w
ee

n 
p
re

-o
p
 a

nd
  

 
 

o
p
er

a
tio

n?
” 

W
e
 D

id
: 

 
S
en

t t
o
 W

U
TH

FT
 f
o
r 

re
sp

o
ns

e:
 D

el
a
ys

 
b
et

w
ee

n 
p
re

 o
p
er

a
tiv

e 
a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 

p
ro

ce
d
ur

e 
ca

n 
b
e 

d
ri
ve

n 
b
y 

a
 n

um
b
er

 o
f 

fa
ct

o
rs

 s
uc

h 
a
s 

b
ed

 c
a
p
a
ci

ty
, 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 
su

rg
eo

ns
 o

p
er

a
tiv

e 
lis

ts
 w

hi
ch

 c
a
n 

th
en

 b
e 

in
flu

en
ce

d
 b

y 
ur

g
en

t c
a
re

 a
d
m

is
si

o
ns

 e
tc

. 
O

ur
 

a
im

 i
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 h
ig

h 
q
ua

lit
y 

o
f 
cl

in
ic

a
l c

a
re

 
a
nd

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

fo
r 

a
ll 

o
ur

 p
a
tie

nt
s 

a
nd

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
 n

um
b
er

 o
f 
p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 

Pa
tie

nt
 F

lo
w

 a
ro

un
d
 th

e 
Tr

us
t. 

A
n 

ex
a
m

p
le

 
o
f 
th

es
e 

p
la

nn
ed

 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

o
p
en

in
g
 o

f 
th

e 
S
ur

g
ic

a
l E

le
ct

iv
e 

A
d
m

is
si

o
ns

 
Lo

un
g
e 

(S
EA

L)
 i
n 

sp
ri
ng

 2
0
1
0
.

Y
o
u
 S

a
id

: 
 “

D
iffi

cu
lty

 i
n 

g
et

tin
g
 to

 M
ill

 L
a
ne

 H
o
sp

ita
l f

ro
m

 
W

a
lla

se
y 

V
ill

a
g
e?

”

W
e
 D

id
: 

 
LI
N

k 
g
a
in

ed
 r

ep
re

se
nt

a
tio

n 
o
n 

N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l 
Pa

tie
nt

 T
ra

ns
p
o
rt
 G

ro
up

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
1
2

1
3

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 &
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n

“A
s 

th
e 

LI
N

k’
s 

le
a
d
 o

ffi
ce

r 
fo

r 
W

ir
ra

l C
o
un

ci
l I

 h
a
ve

 s
ee

n 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
d
ev

el
o
p
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 w
o
rk

in
g
 r

el
a
tio

ns
hi

p
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 
he

a
lth

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 a
g
en

ci
es

 a
nd

 h
a
ve

 s
ee

n 
th

em
 

co
nt

ri
b
ut

in
g
 a

nd
 r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g
 th

e 
vi

ew
s 

o
f 
th

e 
p
eo

p
le

 o
f 

W
ir
ra

l i
n 

ke
y 

p
ie

ce
s 

o
f 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
su

ch
 a

s 
“S

ha
p
in

g
 th

e 
Fu

tu
re

 o
f 
C

a
re

 T
o
g
et

he
r”

, 
“N

ew
 H

o
ri
zo

ns
” 

(m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

) 
a
nd

 p
ro

vi
d
in

g
 a

 v
er

y 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 e
ve

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
th

e 
In

d
ep

en
d
en

t S
a
fe

g
ua

rd
in

g
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

. 
Th

ei
r 

m
em

b
er

sh
ip

 
g
o
es

 f
ro

m
 s

tr
en

g
th

 to
 s

tr
en

g
th

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
b
o
a
rd

 i
s 

b
o
th

 
re

p
re

se
nt

a
tiv

e 
a
nd

 d
iv

er
se

, 
th

ey
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

in
vo

lv
ed

 i
n 

lo
o
ki

ng
 a

t h
o
w

 w
el

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
a
re

 p
ro

vi
d
ed

 a
nd

 h
o
w

 th
ey

 
ca

n 
en

co
ur

a
g
e 

a
ny

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

.

Fe
ed

b
a
ck

 o
n 

th
e 

w
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e 
H

o
st

 O
rg

a
ni

sa
tio

n 
(V

o
lu

nt
a
ry

 
&

 C
o
m

m
un

ity
 A

ct
io

n 
W

ir
ra

l) 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
p
o
si

tiv
e 

a
nd

 
a
 r

ec
en

t r
eo

rg
a
ni

sa
tio

n 
w

ill
 s

ee
 a

 s
tr
uc

tu
re

 th
a
t f

ur
th

er
 

su
p
p
o
rt
s 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 r

o
le

 o
f 
LI
N

ks
”

C
at

hy
 G

ill
Pr

in
ci

pa
l M

an
ag

er
 -

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 E
ar

ly
 In

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

W
ir

ra
l C

ou
nc

il 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f A

du
lt 

So
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

“T
he

 r
el

a
tio

ns
hi

p
 w

ith
 W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
ha

s 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 

si
g
ni

fic
a
nt

ly
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

p
a
st

 y
ea

r.
 A

 r
eg

ul
a
r 

d
ia

lo
g
ue

 h
a
s 

en
su

re
d
 th

a
t w

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

a
b
le

 to
 a

ss
is

t w
ith

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
w

o
rk

 p
la

n 
a
cr

o
ss

 a
 r

a
ng

e 
o
f 
is

su
es

 r
el

a
tin

g
 to

 d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
a
nd

 d
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

ca
re

. 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
m

em
b
er

s 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o
 b

ee
n 

in
te

g
ra

l t
o
 a

 n
um

b
er

 o
f 
im

p
o
rt
a
nt

 w
o
rk

 s
tr
ea

m
s 

a
t t

he
 T

ru
st

 
in

cl
ud

in
g
 D

el
iv

er
in

g
 S

a
m

e 
S
ex

 A
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n 
a
nd

 P
a
tie

nt
 

Fl
o
w

 Im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t a

nd
 S

ea
so

na
l P

la
nn

in
g
. 
W

e 
lo

o
k 

fo
rw

a
rd

 
to

 th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p
 d

ev
el

o
p
in

g
 f
ur

th
er

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
a
re

 e
xc

ee
d
in

g
 th

e 
ex

p
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f 
o
ur

 p
a
tie

nt
s.

” 

M
ic

ha
el

 C
ha

nt
le

r
D

iv
er

si
ty

 &
 In

cl
us

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

/P
at

ie
nt

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

Le
ad

W
ir

ra
l U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 T
ea

ch
in

g 
H

os
pi

ta
l N

H
S 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
Tr

us
t

Page 27



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
1
4

1
5

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Su
cc

es
s 

st
or

ie
s

“C
W

P 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 c
lo

se
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k.
 T

hr
ou

g
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

a
r 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
m

em
b
er

s 
ha

ve
 a

tte
nd

ed
 a

 n
um

b
er

 o
f 
ev

en
ts

 a
rr

a
ng

ed
 

b
y 

C
W

P 
to

 g
et

 i
ns

ig
ht

 i
nt

o 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

e 
p
ro

vi
d
e,

 f
or

 
ex

a
m

p
le

 th
e 

m
ee

t t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

 e
ve

nt
s 

fo
cu

se
d
 o

n 
Bi

p
ol

a
r 

Ill
ne

ss
 a

nd
 A

lc
oh

ol
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

 W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
a
ct

iv
el

y 
in

vo
lv

ed
 i
n 

th
e 

C
W

P 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
a
nd

 a
nn

ua
l 

p
la

nn
in

g
 e

ve
nt

s 
a
nd

 h
a
s 

m
em

b
er

s 
on

 C
W

P 
g
ro

up
s 

a
nd

 c
om

m
itt

ee
s.

 M
em

b
er

s 
of

 C
W

P 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

a
tte

nd
ed

 
a
 n

um
b
er

 o
f 
LI
N

ks
 m

ee
tin

g
s 

a
nd

 e
ve

nt
s 

to
 g

et
 a

n 
un

d
er

st
a
nd

in
g
 o

f 
th

e 
is

su
es

 r
a
is

ed
 b

y 
m

em
b
er

s 
of

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 th
e 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k.

C
W

P 
lo

ok
s 

fo
rw

a
rd

 to
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 to
 w

or
k 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

co
m

in
g
 y

ea
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

p
a
tie

nt
s.

”

Bo
b 

D
av

ie
s

Pa
tie

nt
 a

nd
 P

ub
lic

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t M

an
ag

er
C

he
sh

ire
 a

nd
 W

irr
al

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 N
H

S 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

Tr
us

t (
C

W
P)

“T
hi

s 
a
nn

ua
l r

ep
o
rt
 i
llu

st
ra

te
s 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t o

f 
W

ir
ra

l 
LI
N

k 
in

to
 a

n 
o
rg

a
ni

se
d
, 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro

d
uc

tiv
e 

o
rg

a
ni

sa
tio

n.
 N

H
S
 W

ir
ra

l a
re

 p
le

a
se

d
 to

 h
a
ve

 L
IN

k 
a
s 

b
o
th

 a
 p

a
rt
ne

r 
in

 P
PI

 (
Pa

tie
nt

 a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t) 
a
nd

 
m

o
st

 i
m

p
o
rt
a
nt

ly
 a

s 
a
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

b
o
d
y 

o
n 

b
o
th

 o
ur

 B
o
a
rd

 
a
nd

 P
PI

 c
o
m

m
itt

ee
. 
In

 2
0
1
0
 w

e 
ho

p
e 

to
 c

o
nt

in
ue

 to
 b

ui
ld

 
o
ur

 r
el

a
tio

ns
hi

p
 to

 f
ur

th
er

 i
nc

re
a
se

 th
e 

o
p
p
o
rt
un

iti
es

 f
o
r 

lo
ca

l p
eo

p
le

 to
 p

a
rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n 

th
e 

d
ec

is
io

n 
m

a
ki

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

o
f 
th

e 
PC

T.
”

A
nd

y 
M

ill
s

H
ea

d 
of

 In
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
 P

at
ie

nt
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e
N

H
S 

W
ir

ra
l

Ro
bu

st
 R

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
ro

b
us

t r
ep

re
se

nt
a
tio

n 
fr
om

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
a
 R

ep
re

se
nt

a
tio

n 
Pr

ot
oc

ol
 h

a
s 

b
ee

n 
d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

hi
ch

 c
la

ri
fie

s 
th

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
th

e 
re

p
re

se
nt

a
tiv

e 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
re

q
ue

st
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
p
re

se
nt

a
tiv

es
. 
Th

is
 

a
ls

o 
en

su
re

s 
th

a
t a

ll 
p
a
rt
ie

s 
a
p
p
re

ci
a
te

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

b
ili

ty
 u

p
on

 th
e 

re
p
re

se
nt

a
tiv

e 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 c
om

m
itm

en
t a

nd
 f
ee

d
b
a
ck

. 
Th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
m

ea
su

re
d
 b

y 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r 

re
p
re

se
nt

a
tio

n 
fr
om

 a
ll 

lo
ca

l s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
i.
e.

 N
H

S 
Tr

us
ts

 a
nd

 D
ep

a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
A

d
ul

t S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 k

ey
 g

ro
up

s 
w

hi
ch

 c
a
n 

in
flu

en
ce

 c
ha

ng
e.

 

Jo
in

t P
ro

to
co

l b
et

w
ee

n 
LI

N
k 

an
d 

H
ea

lth
 &

 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
ha

s 
st

a
tu

to
ry

 p
o
w

er
s 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
H

ea
lth

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

o
m

m
itt

ee
 d

o
es

 n
o
t p

o
ss

es
s 

i.
e.

 th
e 

p
o
w

er
 to

 E
nt

er
 &

 V
ie

w
 p

re
m

is
es

. 
Th

er
ef

o
re

 i
t w

a
s 

o
b
vi

o
us

 th
a
t 

th
er

e 
w

a
s 

a
 n

ee
d
 to

 d
ev

el
o
p
 a

 j
o
in

t p
ro

to
co

l. 
Th

e 
o
ut

co
m

e 
to

 th
is

 p
ie

ce
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 e
na

b
le

s 
a
ll 

p
a
rt
ie

s 
to

 u
nd

er
st

a
nd

 th
e 

b
o
un

d
a
ri
es

 o
f 
ea

ch
 o

th
er

s 
w

o
rk

p
la

ns
 a

nd
 p

re
ve

nt
s 

d
up

lic
a
tio

n.
 

It 
a
ls

o
 f
o
rm

a
lis

es
 th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

LI
N

k 
a
nd

 
O

S
C

. 
Th

e 
LI
N

k,
 h

o
w

ev
er

, 
m

a
y 

st
ill

 r
ef

er
 to

 th
e 

O
S
C

 w
he

re
 

re
co

m
m

en
d
a
tio

ns
 a

nd
 v

a
ri
a
tio

ns
 i
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

d
ic

ta
te

. 

D
is

ch
ar

ge
 P

ro
ce

ss

It 
w

a
s 

id
en

tifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

LI
N

k,
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ur
ve

ys
, 
lo

o
ki

ng
 d

ir
ec

tly
 

a
t t

he
 p

a
tie

nt
’s

 j
o
ur

ne
y,

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

ta
lk

in
g
 to

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
a
t 

ke
y 

m
ee

tin
g
s,

 th
a
t a

lth
o
ug

h 
D

is
ch

a
rg

e 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ho
sp

ita
l 

o
n 

d
a
te

 o
f 
a
d
m

is
si

o
n,

 s
o
ci

a
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

b
ec

o
m

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

p
a
tie

nt
 h

a
s 

b
ee

n 
d
ee

m
ed

 m
ed

ic
a
lly

 fi
t. 

 H
o
w

ev
er

, 
th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i
s 

no
w

 b
ei

ng
 r

ed
es

ig
ne

d
, 
th

ro
ug

h 
a
 m

ul
ti-

d
is

ci
p
lin

a
ry

 te
a
m

 a
ro

un
d
 

th
e 

p
a
tie

nt
, 
b
a
se

d
 i
n 

W
a
rd

 4
2
 a

t A
rr

o
w

e 
Pa

rk
 H

o
sp

ita
l. 

Th
e 

o
ut

co
m

e 
o
f 
th

is
 i
s 

b
ei

ng
 c

o
ns

ta
nt

ly
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 b
y 

p
a
rt
ic

ip
a
tio

n 
in

 
th

e 
Pa

tie
nt

 F
lo

w
 G

ro
up

 m
ee

tin
g
s.

D
ig

ni
ty

 in
 C

ar
e

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

 i
s 

a
nd

 w
ill

 r
em

a
in

 a
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k.
 

Th
e 

“D
a
is

y”
 lo

g
o
 i
s 

no
w

 b
ei

ng
 r

ec
o
g
ni

se
d
 a

s 
th

e 
ke

y 
em

b
le

m
 

fr
o
m

 th
e 

ca
m

p
a
ig

n.
 T

hi
s 

ca
m

p
a
ig

n 
w

a
s 

sp
ea

rh
ea

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

LI
N

k 
o
n 

W
ir
ra

l w
ho

 i
d
en

tifi
ed

 th
e 

ne
ed

 f
o
r 

“b
uy

 i
n”

 b
y 

a
ll 

ke
y 

st
a
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

a
ke

 th
e 

ca
m

p
a
ig

n 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

.

Page 28



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
1
6

1
7

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Th
e 

“D
a
is

y”
 lo

g
o
 i
s 

no
w

 b
ei

ng
 r

ec
o
g
ni

se
d
 a

s 
a
 s

ym
b
o
l f

o
r 

D
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 R
es

p
ec

t t
hr

o
ug

h 
th

e 
w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e 
LI
N

k.
 T

he
 i
nt

er
im

 
re

su
lts

 o
f 
th

e 
D

ig
ni

ty
 i
n 

C
a
re

 s
ur

ve
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

p
ub

lis
he

d
 la

te
r 

in
 2

0
1
0
 - 

so
 f
a
r 

re
su

lts
 h

a
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

o
st

ly
 p

o
si

tiv
e 

(8
9
%

 o
f 

re
sp

o
nd

en
ts

 to
 A

p
ri
l 2

0
1
0
 f
el

t t
ha

t t
he

y 
ha

d
 b

ee
n 

tr
ea

te
d
 w

ith
 

d
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 r
es

p
ec

t d
ur

in
g
 th

ei
r 

tr
ea

tm
en

t)

S
o
m

e 
q
uo

te
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 r

es
p
o
nd

en
ts

:

“C
la

tte
rb

ri
d
g
e 

H
o
sp

ita
l A

rt
hr

iti
s 

C
lin

ic
 e

ve
ry

 3
 m

o
nt

hs
 a

nd
 

a
lw

a
ys

 tr
ea

te
d
 w

ith
 r

es
p
ec

t. 
Th

e 
st

a
ff 

he
re

 a
re

 o
ut

st
a
nd

in
g
 

a
nd

 d
ed

ic
a
te

d
 to

 th
ei

r 
w

o
rk

. 
A

ls
o
 v

er
y 

p
o
lit

e 
a
nd

 
un

d
er

st
a
nd

in
g
;”

“I
 h

a
d
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 tr
ea

tm
en

t, 
a
s 

I w
a
s 

in
 a

 w
he

el
 c

ha
ir
 th

is
 

d
a
y 

a
nd

 d
ue

 to
 e

xt
ra

 tr
ea

tm
en

t I
 m

is
se

d
 th

e 
a
m

b
ul

a
nc

e,
 

th
ey

 tr
ie

d
 to

 h
o
ld

 i
t b

a
ck

 b
ut

 c
o
ul

d
 n

o
t. 

S
o
 th

e 
he

lp
 th

a
t 

I r
ec

ei
ve

d
, 
a
b
o
ve

 a
nd

 b
ey

o
nd

 th
ei

r 
no

rm
a
l d

ut
ie

s,
 w

a
s 

un
b
el

ie
va

b
le

.”

“I
 f
el

t t
ha

t t
he

 n
um

b
er

 o
f 
tim

es
 m

y 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
en

t w
a
s 

ca
nc

el
le

d
 w

a
s 

un
a
cc

ep
ta

b
le

. 
I a

ls
o
 w

itn
es

se
d
 a

n 
a
lte

rc
a
tio

n 
b
et

w
ee

n 
st

a
ff 

m
em

b
er

s 
in

 th
e 

p
re

-o
p
er

a
tiv

e 
cl

in
ic

 a
re

a
 (
to

 th
e 

le
ft 

o
f 
re

ce
p
tio

n)
 I 

d
o
 n

o
t f

ee
l I

 s
ho

ul
d
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
p
ri
vy

 to
.”

Si
gn

po
st

in
g

LI
N

k 
co

nt
in

ua
lly

 s
ig

np
o
st

 a
nd

 m
o
ni

to
r 

th
e 

o
ut

co
m

es
 to

 i
d
en

tif
y 

g
a
p
s 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
. 
A

lth
o
ug

h 
LI
N

k 
d
o
es

 n
o
t t

a
ke

 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l i

ss
ue

s 
it 

d
o
es

, 
ho

w
ev

er
, 
re

co
rd

 w
he

re
 i
ss

ue
s 

a
re

 u
nr

es
o
lv

ed
. 
A

 k
ey

 
ex

a
m

p
le

: 
a
 c

a
re

r 
o
f 
a
 p

a
tie

nt
 h

a
d
 c

o
nt

a
ct

ed
 L

IN
k 

fo
r 

a
d
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

su
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 

a
 s

p
o
us

e 
w

ho
 w

a
s 

te
rm

in
a
lly

 i
ll 

a
nd

 e
nc

o
un

te
ri
ng

 
is

su
es

 w
ith

 D
is

ch
a
rg

e.
 L

IN
k 

w
er

e 
a
b
le

, 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

te
lli

g
en

ce
, 
to

 
si

g
np

o
st

 th
e 

ca
re

r 
to

 a
 p

a
tie

nt
 a

d
vo

ca
te

.

D
ue

 to
 r

a
is

ed
 a

w
a
re

ne
ss

 a
nd

 th
e 

he
ig

ht
en

ed
 p

ro
fil

e 
o
f 
th

e 
LI
N

k’
s 

w
o
rk

, 
th

er
e 

ha
s 

b
ee

n 
a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
n 

co
nt

a
ct

 f
ro

m
 m

em
b
er

s 
o
f 

th
e 

p
ub

lic
 f
o
r 

a
d
vi

ce
 a

nd
 s

up
p
o
rt
. 
 It

 i
s 

a
lw

a
ys

 e
xp

la
in

ed
 th

a
t 

LI
N

k 
d
o
es

 n
o
t t

a
ke

 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l i

ss
ue

s.
 H

o
w

ev
er

, 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 

w
ill

 r
ec

o
rd

 th
e 

ca
ll 

a
nd

 s
ig

np
o
st

 to
 th

e 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
ep

a
rt
m

en
t 

w
ith

in
 N

H
S
 T

ru
st

s 
a
nd

 D
ep

t o
f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s.

 W
ir
ra

l 
LI
N

k 
w

ill
 th

en
 i
d
en

tif
y 

tr
en

d
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

a
n 

th
en

 f
o
rm

 th
e 

b
a
si

s 
o
f 
a
 

Ta
sk

 &
 F

in
is

h 
G

ro
up

, 
if 

a
g
re

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
B
o
a
rd

. 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

Sa
m

e 
Se

x 
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n

“I
n 

M
a
y 

2
0
0
9
 tw

o
 m

em
b
er

s 
o
f 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
he

lp
ed

 to
 

co
nd

uc
t a

 tr
us

t w
id

e 
a
ud

it 
in

 p
re

p
a
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

d
el

iv
er

in
g
 

sa
m

e 
se

x 
a
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n 
a
s 

a
n 

el
em

en
t o

f 
th

e 
N

a
tio

na
l 

D
ig

ni
ty

 C
ha

lle
ng

e.
 A

t t
ha

t t
im

e 
th

e 
a
ud

it 
id

en
tifi

ed
 th

a
t a

ll 
w

a
rd

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

tr
us

t w
er

e 
m

ix
ed

 s
ex

.

N
ex

t f
o
llo

w
ed

 a
 d

et
a
ile

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 

th
e 

S
a
m

e 
S
ex

 A
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n 
a
g
en

d
a
. 
Th

is
 i
nc

lu
d
ed

 
w

he
re

 p
o
ss

ib
le

 i
d
en

tif
yi

ng
 w

a
rd

s 
fo

r 
a
ll 

fe
m

a
le

s 
a
nd

 a
ll 

m
a
le

s,
 th

is
 h

a
s 

b
ee

n 
p
o
ss

ib
le

 i
n 

D
M

E 
(D

ep
a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
M

ed
ic

in
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

El
d
er

ly
),
 s

ur
g
er

y 
a
nd

 o
rt
ho

p
a
ed

ic
s.

 T
he

 
ex

ce
p
tio

n 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
in

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

re
a
s 

(C
lin

ic
a
l D

ec
is

io
n 

U
ni

t, 
M

ed
ic

a
l A

ss
es

sm
en

t U
ni

t e
tc

) 
a
nd

 c
ri
tic

a
l c

a
re

 a
re

a
s 

(In
te

ns
iv

e 
Th

er
a
p
y 

U
ni

t/
H

ig
h 

D
ep

en
d
en

cy
 U

ni
t/

C
o
ro

na
ry

 
C

a
re

 U
ni

t) 
a
nd

 s
o
m

e 
m

ed
ic

a
l s

p
ec

ia
lit

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g
 

S
tr
o
ke

, 
C

a
rd

io
lo

g
y,

 R
es

p
ir
a
to

ry
 a

nd
 R

en
a
l. 

In
 th

es
e 

a
re

a
s 

d
es

ig
na

te
d
 m

a
le

/
fe

m
a
le

 b
a
ys

 h
a
ve

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tifi

ed
 w

ith
 

d
es

ig
na

te
d
 w

a
sh

in
g
/
to

ile
t f

a
ci

lit
ie

s.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 i
nt

ro
d
uc

ed
 a

 r
ep

o
rt
in

g
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 f
o
r 

b
re

a
ch

es
 

o
f 
D

el
iv

er
in

g
 S

a
m

e 
S
ex

 A
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n.
 In

 J
a
nu

a
ry

 
2
0
1
0
 a

 W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
m

em
b
er

 w
a
s 

p
a
rt
 o

f 
th

e 
Pe

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 

te
a
m

 s
en

t b
y 

th
e 

S
tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
ea

lth
 A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
o
ur

 
p
ro

g
re

ss
 w

ith
 D

el
iv

er
in

g
 S

a
m

e 
S
ex

 A
cc

o
m

m
o
d
a
tio

n 
a
nd

 
w

e 
ha

d
 a

 v
er

y 
fa

vo
ur

a
b
le

 r
ep

o
rt
. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

n 
a
ct

io
n 

p
la

n 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 d

efi
ci

en
ci

es
 f
o
r 

cr
iti

ca
l c

a
re

 a
re

a
s.

”

Le
sl

ey
 M

et
ca

lfe
D

ep
ut

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 N

ur
si

ng
W

ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 T

ea
ch

in
g 

H
os

pi
ta

l N
H

S 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

Tr
us

t

Page 29



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
1
8

W
ha

t w
e 

ha
ve

 d
on

e 
so

 fa
r

1
9

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

St
ro

ke
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Th
is

 i
s 

b
ei

ng
 m

o
ni

to
re

d
 b

y 
LI
N

k 
o
n 

a
 6

 m
o
nt

hl
y 

b
a
si

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
a
t 
W

ir
ra

l’s
 s

er
vi

ce
 i
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 N

a
tio

na
l i

nd
ic

a
to

rs
 a

nd
 t
ha

t 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 m

ee
t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

o
f 
lo

ca
l s

tr
o
ke

 p
a
tie

nt
s.

 
Th

es
e 

re
su

lts
 h

a
ve

 b
ee

n 
fe

d
 b

a
ck

 t
hr

o
ug

h 
th

e 
p
ub

lic
a
tio

n 
o
f 

LI
N

k 
b
o
a
rd

 m
in

ut
es

 a
nd

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 w
o
ul

d
 b

e 
hi

g
hl

ig
ht

ed
 

a
nd

 q
ue

ri
ed

.

Le
ga

cy
 Is

su
es

A
s 

a
 f
ul

ly
 f
o
rm

ed
 L

IN
k 

B
o
a
rd

, 
it 

w
a
s 

fe
lt 

it 
w

a
s 

im
p
o
rt
a
nt

 to
 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
le

g
a
cy

 i
ss

ue
s 

id
en

tifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

w
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e 
Pa

tie
nt

 
a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t F
o
ru

m
s 

to
 i
nf

o
rm

 th
e 

LI
N

k’
s 

w
o
rk

p
la

n.
  

A
lth

o
ug

h 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
m

a
d
e 

a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 c

o
nt

in
ue

 w
ith

 2
 le

g
a
cy

 
is

su
es

, 
it 

w
a
s 

a
g
re

ed
 th

a
t t

he
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
ss

ue
s 

sh
o
ul

d
 c

o
nt

in
ue

 to
 

b
e 

m
o
ni

to
re

d
 c

lo
se

ly
 a

s 
p
a
rt
 o

f 
a
n 

o
ng

o
in

g
 w

o
rk

p
la

n:

D
en

tis
tr
y 

- A
 L

IN
k 

re
p
re

se
nt

a
tiv

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 m

on
ito

r 
th

is
 i
ss

ue
 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
p
re

se
nt

a
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

N
H

S 
W

ir
ra

l D
en

ta
l B

oa
rd

.
N

H
S
 W

ir
ra

l: 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
ni

ng
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

- W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
ith

 N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l o
n 

its
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o
ni

ng
 p

ri
o
ri
tie

s.
 

O
ve

rn
ig

ht
 S

ta
y 

Po
lic

y,
 C

la
tte

rb
ri
d
g
e 

C
en

tr
e 

fo
r 

O
nc

ol
og

y 
- 

th
is

 h
a
s 

b
ee

n 
in

co
rp

or
a
te

d
 i
nt

o 
th

e 
LI
N

k’
s 

w
or

k 
on

 d
is

ch
a
rg

e.
In

fe
ct

io
n 

C
o
nt

ro
l a

nd
 H

a
nd

 H
yg

ie
ne

 - 
ha

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d
 to

 b
e 

m
o
ni

to
re

d
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
LI
N

k’
s 

w
o
rk

 w
ith

 W
ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

Te
a
ch

in
g
 H

o
sp

ita
l N

H
S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t.

D
ig

ni
ty

 &
 P

ri
va

cy
 - 

th
is

 h
a
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d
 a

s 
p
a
rt
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

ng
er

 
te

rm
 f
o
cu

s 
o
f 
th

e 
LI
N

k’
s 

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

 C
a
m

p
a
ig

n.
 

Im
p
ro

vi
ng

 O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

’s
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

- t
hi

s 
ha

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d
 a

s 
p
a
rt
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 f
o
cu

s 
o
f 
th

e 
LI
N

k’
s 

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

 
C

a
m

p
a
ig

n 
a
nd

 w
o
rk

 w
ith

 th
e 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

’s
 P

a
rl
ia

m
en

t.
Ph

a
rm

a
ci

es
 i
n 

ho
sp

ita
l a

nd
 G

en
er

ic
 p

re
sc

ri
b
in

g
 - 

ha
ve

 
co

nt
in

ue
d
 a

s 
p
a
rt
 o

f 
th

e 
LI
N

k’
s 

w
o
rk

 o
n 

d
is

ch
a
rg

e.

W
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

p
tio

n 
o
f 
d
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 p
ri
va

cy
, 
th

e 
a
b
o
ve

 i
te

m
s 

w
er

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

lo
w

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
nd

 o
ng

o
in

g
 m

o
ni

to
ri
ng

 
w

a
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
ct

io
n.

D
ig

ni
ty

 in
 C

ar
e

W
ir
ra

l L
o
ca

l I
nv

o
lv

em
en

t N
et

w
o
rk

 b
el

ie
ve

s 
th

a
t b

ei
ng

 tr
ea

te
d
 

w
ith

 D
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 R
es

p
ec

t i
s 

a
 b

a
si

c 
hu

m
a
n 

ri
g
ht

 - 
N

o
t a

n 
O

p
tio

na
l E

xt
ra

.

“O
ur

 a
im

 i
s 

to
 g

iv
e 

th
e 

p
eo

p
le

 o
f 
W

ir
ra

l t
he

 o
p
p
o
rt
un

ity
 

to
 c

o
m

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

w
a
y 

ca
re

 a
nd

 tr
ea

tm
en

t h
a
s 

b
ee

n 
g
iv

en
 to

 th
em

 r
ec

en
tly

, 
fin

d
 o

ut
 th

e 
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

ca
re

 a
nd

 a
ls

o
 th

e 
o
ne

s 
th

a
t n

ee
d
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t. 

W
e 

w
ill

 
th

en
 ta

ke
 o

ur
 fi

nd
in

g
s 

a
nd

 f
ee

d
 th

is
 i
nf

o
rm

a
tio

n 
b
a
ck

 to
 

th
e 

p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 th

e 
ca

re
 o

rg
a
ni

sa
tio

ns
 i
nv

o
lv

ed
.

 W
e 

a
re

 d
o
in

g
 th

is
 w

ith
 o

ur
 P

o
st

ca
rd

 C
a
m

p
a
ig

n.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 p

ro
d
uc

ed
 p

o
st

ca
rd

s 
w

he
re

 p
eo

p
le

 c
a
n 

ha
ve

 th
ei

r 
sa

y 
if 

th
ey

 f
ee

l t
he

y 
ha

ve
, 
o
r 

ha
ve

 n
o
t, 

b
ee

n 
tr
ea

te
d
 

w
ith

 d
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 r
es

p
ec

t. 
O

ur
 p

o
st

ca
rd

s 
a
nd

 c
o
lle

ct
in

g
 

b
o
xe

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

p
ilo

te
d
 i
n 

N
ur

si
ng

 H
o
m

es
, 
W

U
TH

FT
 

a
nd

 G
P 

S
ur

g
er

ie
s 

fr
o
m

 M
a
rc

h,
 a

nd
 w

e 
a
re

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 to

 
g
et

 f
ee

d
b
a
ck

 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 p
a
tie

nt
s,

 c
a
re

rs
, 
re

la
tiv

es
 a

nd
 

st
a
ff.

 D
ur

in
g
 th

is
 s

um
m

er
 th

e 
p
o
st

ca
rd

s 
a
nd

 c
o
lle

ct
io

n 
b
o
xe

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
a
va

ila
b
le

 i
n 

Li
b
ra

ri
es

, 
O

ne
 S

to
p
 S

ho
p
s 

a
nd

 
a
ny

w
he

re
 th

e 
g
en

er
a
l p

ub
lic

 f
re

q
ue

nt
ly

 c
o
m

e 
to

g
et

he
r.

Th
e 

LI
N

k,
 h

a
vi

ng
 i
d
en

tifi
ed

 th
e 

im
p
o
rt
a
nc

e 
o
f 
p
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 

w
o
rk

in
g
, 
ha

s 
b
ee

n 
in

st
ru

m
en

ta
l i

n 
se

tti
ng

 u
p
 a

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

up
 to

 w
o
rk

 w
ith

 a
ll 

lo
ca

l k
ey

 p
a
rt
ne

rs
; 
th

e 
D

ep
a
rt
m

en
t 

o
f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l, 
W

ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

Te
a
ch

in
g
 H

o
sp

ita
l N

H
S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t, 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

o
m

m
itt

ee
, 
a
nd

 O
ld

er
 

Pe
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rl
ia

m
en

t. 
Th

is
 h

a
s 

p
ro

ve
d
 p

ro
d
uc

tiv
e 

a
nd

 h
a
s 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 a

 j
o
in

t a
p
p
ro

a
ch

 to
 ta

ki
ng

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 th
e 

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

 C
a
m

p
a
ig

n 
o
n 

a
 w

id
er

 s
ca

le
 a

cr
o
ss

 W
ir
ra

l.”

D
ia

ne
 H

ill
, 

LI
N

k 
C

ha
ir

m
an

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e.

Page 30



H
ow

ev
er

, 
b
ec

a
us

e 
th

ey
 r

es
id

e 
in

 W
es

t C
he

sh
ir
e,

 th
ei

r 
so

ci
a
l c

a
re

 
is

 p
ro

vi
d
ed

 b
y 

C
he

sh
ir
e 

W
es

t a
nd

 C
he

st
er

 C
ou

nc
il 

(C
W

&
C

C
) 

a
nd

 th
ei

r 
d
is

tr
ic

t n
ur

si
ng

 c
a
re

 b
y 

N
H

S 
W

es
te

rn
 C

he
sh

ir
e.

“F
o
ur

 f
o
rm

s 
w

er
e 

d
ev

is
ed

, 
o
ne

 f
o
r 

W
ir
ra

l p
a
tie

nt
s,

 o
ne

 
fo

r 
cr

o
ss

-b
o
un

d
a
ry

 p
a
tie

nt
s,

 o
ne

 f
o
r 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls
 (
G

P’
s,

 
N

ur
se

s 
et

c)
 a

nd
 o

ne
 f
o
r 

A
rr

o
w

e 
Pa

rk
 H

o
sp

ita
l D

is
ch

a
rg

e 
Lo

un
g
e.

 A
ll 

fo
rm

s 
ex

p
la

in
ed

 th
e 

p
ur

p
o
se

 o
f 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

. 
 

Th
e 

p
a
tie

nt
 f
o
rm

s 
a
sk

ed
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 h
a
d
 b

ee
n 

in
 h

o
sp

ita
l, 

w
he

th
er

 th
ey

 h
a
d
 b

ee
n 

a
 p

a
tie

nt
 o

r 
a
 c

a
re

r 
a
nd

 w
he

th
er

 
a
nd

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 h

a
d
 b

ee
n 

a
sk

ed
 a

b
o
ut

 th
ei

r 
ho

m
e 

ci
rc

um
st

a
nc

es
. 
A

 s
p
a
ce

 w
a
s 

a
va

ila
b
le

 f
o
r 

co
m

m
en

t. 
A

 
fr
ee

 p
o
st

a
l a

d
d
re

ss
 w

a
s 

g
iv

en
 f
o
r 

th
e 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

rm
.”

Sh
ei

la
 K

en
ne

dy
, 

A
ct

iv
e 

LI
N

k 
M

em
be

r

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
is

 w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n 

p
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 w

ith
 th

e 
Pa

tie
nt

 F
lo

w
 &

 
S
ea

so
na

l P
la

nn
in

g
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
up

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Tr

us
t t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

. 
A

n 
N

H
S
 &

 D
ep

a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

a
lth

o
ug

h 
d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
p
ro

to
co

l s
ta

te
s 

th
a
t t

he
 d

is
ch

a
rg

e 
p
ro

ce
ss

 
sh

o
ul

d
 s

ta
rt
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
o
f 
a
d
m

is
si

o
n 

th
is

 d
o
es

 n
o
t s

ee
m

 to
 h

a
ve

 
b
ee

n 
ha

p
p
en

in
g
, 
w

ith
 s

o
ci

a
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

no
t b

ei
ng

 i
nv

o
lv

ed
 e

a
rl
y 

en
o
ug

h 
in

 th
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 
Th

e 
in

iti
a
l fi

nd
in

g
s 

fr
o
m

 o
ur

 s
ur

ve
y 

se
em

 
to

 c
o
nfi

rm
 th

is
, 
w

ith
 o

nl
y 

2
2
%

 o
f 
re

sp
o
nd

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 a

sk
ed

 a
b
o
ut

 
th

ei
r 

ho
m

e 
ci

rc
um

st
a
nc

es
 o

n 
a
d
m

is
si

o
n.

 

“W
he

n 
a
 p

a
tie

nt
 i
s 

a
d
m

itt
ed

 to
 a

 w
a
rd

 th
e 

d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
p
ro

ce
ed

in
g
s 

a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 to

 s
ta

rt
 s

tr
a
ig

ht
 a

w
a
y.

 T
hi

s 
d
o
es

 
no

t a
lw

a
ys

 h
a
p
p
en

 b
ec

a
us

e 
st

a
ff 

o
fte

n 
d
o
 n

o
t s

ta
rt
 th

e 
p
ro

ce
d
ur

e 
un

til
 th

ey
 c

o
ns

id
er

 th
e 

p
a
tie

nt
 i
s 

m
ed

ic
a
lly

 fi
t. 

Th
is

 c
a
us

es
 a

 lo
t o

f 
d
el

a
ys

 a
s 

th
ey

 h
a
ve

 n
o
t a

t t
he

 s
ta

rt
 

fo
un

d
 o

ut
 th

e 
ho

m
e 

ci
rc

um
st

a
nc

es
 a

nd
 w

he
th

er
 a

 c
a
re

 
p
a
ck

a
g
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d
 w

he
n 

th
e 

p
a
tie

nt
 i
s 

re
a
d
y 

to
 g

o
 h

o
m

e.

Th
e 

ho
sp

ita
l i

s 
st

a
rt
in

g
 a

 n
ew

 c
ha

rt
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
 th

a
t c

o
ve

rs
 

th
e 

p
a
tie

nt
 j
o
ur

ne
y 

a
nd

 th
ey

 h
o
p
e 

th
a
t m

o
st

 o
f 
th

es
e 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ir
o
ne

d
 o

ut
 s

ho
rt
ly

.”

Ba
rb

ar
a 

M
oo

dy
, 

LI
N

k 
Bo

ar
d 

M
em

be
r

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
2
0

2
1

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Lo
o
k

 o
u
t 

fo
r 

th
e
se

 p
o
st

ca
rd

s 
a
n
d
 c

o
ll
e
ct

io
n
 b

o
x

e
s 

a
n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 y

o
u
r 

sa
y
.

 O
ur

 c
o
lle

ct
iv

e 
a
ct

io
ns

 m
a
y 

ra
is

e 
a
w

a
re

ne
ss

 th
a
t b

ei
ng

 tr
ea

te
d
 w

ith
 

d
ig

ni
ty

 a
nd

 r
es

p
ec

t m
a
tte

rs
 to

 u
s 

in
 a

ll 
a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 
o
ur

 d
a
ily

 li
ve

s.

D
is

ch
ar

ge

Th
e 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

’s
 P

a
rl
ia

m
en

t a
nd

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

o
m

m
itt

ee
 h

a
ve

 a
lr
ea

d
y 

d
o
ne

 a
 s

ub
st

a
nt

ia
l 

a
m

o
un

t o
f 
w

o
rk

 o
n 

d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
in

 W
ir
ra

l.

To
 a

lle
vi

a
te

 a
nd

 ta
ck

le
 c

o
nc

er
ns

 r
a
is

ed
 a

t p
ub

lic
 e

ve
nt

s,
 te

le
p
ho

ne
 

ca
lls

, 
re

p
o
rt
s 

a
nd

 c
o
rr

es
p
o
nd

en
ce

, 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
ha

s 
p
ut

 d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
a
t 

th
e 

fo
re

fr
o
nt

 o
f 
its

 w
o
rk

 lo
ca

lly
 h

a
vi

ng
 i
d
en

tifi
ed

 a
 n

ee
d
 to

 m
a
p
 th

e 
p
a
tie

nt
 j
o
ur

ne
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

he
a
lth

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l c

a
re

. 

A
s 

a
 r

es
ul

t o
f 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

b
o
ut

 th
e 

p
a
tie

nt
’s

 j
o
ur

ne
y,

 W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
B
o
a
rd

 d
ec

id
ed

 to
 lo

o
k 

in
to

 p
o
te

nt
ia

l w
ea

k 
p
o
in

ts
 i
n 

th
e 

d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
p
ro

ce
ss

. 
O

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
ke

y 
p
o
in

ts
 i
d
en

tifi
ed

 w
a
s 

in
 r

el
a
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

tr
a
ns

fe
r 

o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n 
b
et

w
ee

n 
he

a
lth

 c
a
re

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 i
n 

th
e 

d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
p
ro

ce
ss

 f
ro

m
 h

o
sp

ita
l.

It 
w

a
s 

d
ec

id
ed

 to
 d

o 
a
 s

ur
ve

y 
in

 th
e 

W
ir
ra

l w
hi

ch
 h

a
s 

a
 p

op
ul

a
tio

n 
of

 o
ve

r 
3
0
0
,0

0
0
 s

er
ve

d
 b

y 
ov

er
 6

0
 G

P 
Pr

a
ct

ic
es

. 
A

 c
ro

ss
-

b
ou

nd
a
ry

 p
ilo

t s
ur

ve
y 

w
a
s 

fir
st

 to
 b

e 
d
on

e 
co

ve
ri
ng

 th
e 

th
re

e 
G

P 
Pr

a
ct

ic
es

 i
n 

N
es

to
n 

a
nd

 W
ill

a
st

on
 w

he
re

 9
8
%

 o
f 
p
a
tie

nt
s 

w
er

e 
es

tim
a
te

d
 to

 a
tte

nd
 W

ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 T

ea
ch

in
g
 H

os
p
ita

ls
 (
W

U
TH

).
 

W
e
 W

a
n
t 
 Y

o
u
r
 F

e
e

d
b

a
c
k

W
ir

r
a
l 
L
o

c
a
l 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

N
e

tw
o

r
k

b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h

a
t 

b
e

in
g

 t
re

a
te

d
  

w
it
h

 D
ig

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 R
e

s
p

e
c
t 

is
 a

 

b
a

s
ic

 h
u

m
a

n
 r

ig
h

t
- 

N
O

T
 A

N
 O

P
T
IO

N
A

L
 E

X
T
R

A
!

W
ir
ra

l 
L
IN

k
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

 

N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l,
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 W

ir
ra

l 
a
n
d

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

’s
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t

P
le

a
s
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
e

rs
e

 a
n

d
 p

o
s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 W
ir
ra

l 
L

IN
k

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 b
o

x
.

P
le

a
s
e
 t

u
r
n
 o

v
e
r

Page 31



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
2
2

2
3

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

A
n 

a
d
d
iti

o
na

l c
o
nc

er
n 

is
 th

e 
in

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
G

P 
co

m
p
ut

er
 s

ys
te

m
s 

in
 

so
m

e 
p
ra

ct
ic

es
 (
p
a
rt
ic

ul
a
rl
y 

th
o
se

 i
n 

W
es

te
rn

 C
he

sh
ir
e 

PC
T)

 to
 

co
m

m
un

ic
a
te

 w
ith

 th
e 

H
o
sp

ita
l E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
H

ea
lth

 R
ec

o
rd

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 

Th
e 

d
is

ch
a
rg

e 
su

rv
ey

s 
a
re

 p
la

nn
ed

 to
 c

o
nt

in
ue

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

2
0
1
0
. 
In

te
ri
m

 fi
nd

in
g
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

sh
a
re

d
 w

ith
 N

H
S
 W

ir
ra

l a
nd

 w
ill

 
b
e 

a
va

ila
b
le

 o
n 

th
e 

w
eb

si
te

 la
te

r 
in

 th
e 

ye
a
r.
 A

 f
o
llo

w
-u

p
 s

ur
ve

y 
m

a
y 

b
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d
 d

ep
en

d
in

g
 o

n 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

o
ns

e.

M
or

e 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

C
ar

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
El

de
rly

1
  
Th

e 
Ro

ya
l C

o
lle

g
e 

o
f 
Ps

yc
hi

a
tr
is

ts
 P

o
si

tio
n 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

 
In

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l c

o
nt

ex
t o

f 
m

o
re

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ca

re
 f
o
r 

le
ss

 m
o
ne

y,
 

o
ur

 s
ta

rt
 p

o
in

t w
a
s 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 p

o
si

tio
n 

st
a
te

m
en

t P
S
2
/
2
0
0
9
 

fr
o
m

 th
e 

Ro
ya

l C
o
lle

g
e 

o
f 
Ps

yc
hi

a
tr
is

ts
 (
RC

P)
 “

A
g
e 

d
is

cr
im

in
a
tio

n 
in

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s:
 m

a
ki

ng
 e

q
ua

lit
y 

a
 

re
a
lit

y”
 w

hi
ch

 w
a
s 

su
p
p
o
rt
ed

 b
y 

le
a
d
in

g
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 o
rg

a
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 
It 

st
a
te

s 
th

a
t:

he
a
lth

 a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ill
 h

a
ve

 to
 a

d
d
re

ss
” 

- a
lr
ea

d
y 

so
m

e 
tw

o
 th

ir
d
s 

o
f 
b
ed

s 
in

 d
is

tr
ic

t g
en

er
a
l 

ho
sp

ita
ls

 a
re

 o
cc

up
ie

d
 b

y 
o
ld

er
 p

eo
p
le

, 
so

m
e 

tw
o
 th

ir
d
s 

o
f 
w

ho
m

 w
ill

 h
a
ve

 a
 m

en
ta

l d
is

o
rd

er
 ;

b
) 
“r

ec
en

t r
ep

o
rt
s 

ha
ve

 s
ho

w
n 

th
a
t o

ld
er

 p
eo

p
le

 s
uf

fe
r 

se
ri
o
us

 d
is

cr
im

in
a
tio

n 
in

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s”
 - 

a
d
ul

ts
 

o
ve

r 
6
5
 d

o
 n

o
t h

a
ve

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

p
ec

ia
lis

t 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

a
s 

th
o
se

 u
nd

er
 6

5
, 
b
ut

 th
is

 i
s 

st
a
rt
in

g
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

;
c)

 “
a
cc

es
s 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
us

t b
e 

b
a
se

d
 o

n 
ne

ed
 n

o
t 

a
g
e”

 - 
b
ut

 a
 n

ee
d
s-
b
a
se

d
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

ill
 s

til
l r

eq
ui

re
 th

e 
d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t o

f 
co

m
p
re

he
ns

iv
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t-b
a
se

d
 m

en
ta

l 
he

a
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
o
ld

er
 p

eo
p
le

.

2
  
Th

e 
Pr

o
p
o
sa

l f
ro

m
 W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
to

 N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l 
 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

et
te

r 
o
ut

co
m

es
 f
o
r 

p
a
tie

nt
s 

a
nd

 
ca

re
rs

 a
nd

 a
ls

o
 f
o
r 

st
a
ff 

in
 h

o
sp

ita
ls

, 
ca

re
 h

o
m

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
p
ro

p
o
se

d
 a

 th
re

e 
p
a
rt
 p

a
ck

a
g
e 

to
 

N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l :
a
) 
a
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 C

a
re

 T
ea

m
 f
o
r 

O
ld

er
 

Pe
o
p
le

 (
M

H
IC

T)
 s

uc
h 

a
s 

th
e 

La
nc

a
st

er
 m

o
d
el

, 
w

hi
ch

 
b
o
th

 d
el

iv
er

s 
in

te
ns

iv
e 

su
p
p
o
rt
 i
n 

th
ei

r 
o
w

n 
ho

m
es

 to
 

p
eo

p
le

 w
ho

 w
o
ul

d
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
ne

ed
 e

xp
en

si
ve

 i
np

a
tie

nt
 

ca
re

 a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 a

ls
o
 h

el
p
s 

to
 “

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

sk
ill

 a
nd

 
co

m
p
et

en
ce

 o
f 
st

a
ff 

in
 th

e 
p
ub

lic
, 
p
ri
va

te
 a

nd
 v

o
lu

nt
a
ry

 
se

ct
o
r 

to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 c

ha
lle

ng
in

g
 b

eh
a
vi

o
ur

 i
n 

a
 p

er
so

n 
ce

nt
re

d
 w

a
y”

;

b
) 
us

in
g
 th

e 
RC

P 
in

iti
a
tiv

e 
A

cc
re

d
ita

tio
n 

o
f 
In

p
a
tie

nt
 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(A

IM
S
) 
to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 th

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 
th

e 
A

cu
te

 C
a
re

 M
o
d
el

 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

th
e 

ke
y 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 s
a
vi

ng
s 

fr
o
m

 r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 

in
 b

ed
s 

to
 h

el
p
 f
a
ci

lit
a
te

 r
es

o
ur

ce
 tr

a
ns

fe
r 

fr
o
m

 a
cu

te
 

ca
re

 to
 c

o
m

m
un

ity
 c

a
re

 a
nd

 f
ro

m
 a

d
ul

t t
o
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

p
le

’s
 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s;
c)

 i
m

p
ro

vi
ng

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

m
en

ta
l 

he
a
lth

 p
a
th

w
a
y 

fo
r 

o
ld

er
 p

eo
p
le

 f
o
r 

he
a
lth

 th
ro

ug
h 

to
 

so
ci

a
l c

a
re

 b
y 

se
le

ct
in

g
 “

b
es

t b
uy

” 
p
ro

ve
n 

in
no

va
tio

ns
 

fr
o
m

 th
e 

£
6
0
M

 D
ep

a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
H

ea
lth

 f
un

d
ed

 i
ni

tia
tiv

e 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p
s 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
(P

O
PP

s)
.

3
  
Th

e 
Re

sp
o
ns

e 
fr
o
m

 N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l
 

Th
e 

re
sp

o
ns

e 
fr
o
m

 N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l s
ta

te
d
 th

a
t t

he
y 

a
lr
ea

d
y 

p
la

nn
ed

 to
 :

a
) 
d
ev

el
o
p
 In

te
g
ra

te
d
 C

a
re

 a
t H

o
m

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e 
a
d
d
re

ss
in

g
 th

e 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 n

ee
d
s 

o
f 
o
ld

er
 

p
eo

p
le

 ;
b
) 
im

p
le

m
en

t t
he

 A
cu

te
 C

a
re

 M
o
d
el

 f
o
r 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

’s
 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 W
a
rd

s 
in

 W
ir
ra

l ;
 

c)
 r

o
ll 

o
ut

 A
IM

S
 a

nd
 e

nc
o
m

p
a
ss

 th
e 

st
a
nd

a
rd

s 
a
s 

se
t o

ut
 

w
ith

in
 A

IM
S
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

w
a
rd

s.

4
  
Fu

tu
re

 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 b

y 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k
 

Fu
tu

re
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 b

y 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
w

ill
 i
nc

lu
d
e 

:
a
) 
m

o
ni

to
ri
ng

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 to

w
a
rd

s 
a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
M

en
ta

l 
H

ea
lth

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 C
a
re

 T
ea

m
 ;
 

b
) 
p
ro

p
o
si

ng
 th

a
t s

ta
ff 

o
n 

a
cu

te
 m

ed
ic

a
l w

a
rd

s 
b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 i
n 

N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l’s
 p

la
ns

 f
o
r 

d
em

en
tia

 tr
a
in

in
g
 

fo
r 

G
Ps

 a
nd

 c
a
re

 h
o
m

e 
st

a
ff 

w
hi

ch
 i
s 

a
 k

ey
 p

a
rt
 i
n 

re
a
lis

in
g
 i
m

p
ro

ve
d
 o

ut
co

m
es

 a
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

a
nt

 s
a
vi

ng
s 

fr
o
m

 r
ed

uc
in

g
 p

re
sc

ri
b
in

g
 o

f 
a
ty

p
ic

a
l a

nt
ip

sy
ch

o
tic

s 
in

 
ca

re
 h

o
m

es
 ;

 c
) 
he

lp
in

g
 to

 i
d
en

tif
y 

“b
es

t b
uy

” 
p
ro

ve
n 

in
iti

a
tiv

es
 f
ro

m
 

th
e 

PO
PP

s 
w

o
rk

.

M
ur

do
 K

en
ne

dy
, L

IN
k 

Bo
ar

d 
M

em
be

r

Page 32



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
2
4

2
5

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Pe
rs

on
al

is
at

io
n

“W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
b
ec

a
m

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 i
n 

S
o
ci

a
l C

a
re

 w
he

n 
a
tte

nd
in

g
 m

ee
tin

g
s 

to
 r

es
ea

rc
h 

ho
w

 P
er

so
na

l B
ud

g
et

s 
co

ul
d
 b

e 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d
. 
Th

is
 i
nv

o
lv

ed
 d

ev
is

in
g
 m

et
ho

d
s 

o
f 
‘s

el
f-a

ss
es

sm
en

t’ 
a
nd

 ‘
cl

ie
nt

-c
en

tr
ed

 c
a
re

 p
la

ns
’ 
so

 
th

a
t t

ho
se

 r
eq

ui
ri
ng

 s
o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 c
o
ul

d
 m

a
na

g
e 

a
nd

 
p
la

n 
th

ei
r 

o
w

n 
p
er

ce
p
tio

ns
 o

f 
ne

ed
. 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
ha

s 
a
 

re
p
re

se
nt

a
tiv

e 
o
n 

th
e 

‘T
ra

ns
fo

rm
a
tio

n 
Pr

o
g
ra

m
m

e 
B
o
a
rd

’ 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

lo
o
ki

ng
 a

t a
ll 

a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 
so

ci
a
l c

a
re

 p
ro

vi
d
ed

 b
y 

W
ir
ra

l A
d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Pe

rs
o
na

lis
a
tio

n 
g
ui

d
el

in
es

 i
ss

ue
d
.

Jo
hn

 W
eb

b
, 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
nd

 h
is

 
p
ro

je
ct

 te
a
m

 d
es

er
ve

 w
el

l-e
a
rn

ed
 c

o
ng

ra
tu

la
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

w
o
rk

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

in
 k

ee
p
in

g
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

ffe
re

d
 

a
t t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 q

ua
lit

y 
w

hi
ls

t a
nt

ic
ip

a
tin

g
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f 
a
ny

 
ec

o
no

m
ic

 d
o
w

nt
ur

n.
” 

Le
s 

M
ak

in
, 

LI
N

k 
Bo

ar
d 

M
em

be
r 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
ha

s 
a
ls

o
 h

a
d
 a

 s
tr
o
ng

 p
re

se
nc

e 
a
t l

o
ca

l P
er

so
na

lis
a
tio

n 
Ev

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 r

un
 b

y 
th

e 
D

ep
a
rt
m

en
t o

f 
A

d
ul

t S
o
ci

a
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

a
nd

 
a
ls

o
 e

ns
ur

ed
 a

 f
ul

l p
ic

tu
re

 i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 P

er
so

na
lis

a
tio

n 
co

ul
d
 

b
e 

se
en

. 
Th

is
 i
nv

o
lv

ed
 a

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

r 
p
re

se
nt

a
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

B
o
a
rd

. 
W

ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
w

ill
 c

o
nt

in
ue

 to
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
p
er

so
na

lis
a
tio

n 
a
g
en

d
a
 lo

ca
lly

 d
ev

el
o
p
s.

 T
he

 L
IN

k 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 

th
e 

Tr
a
ns

fo
rm

a
tio

n 
Pr

o
g
ra

m
m

e 
B
o
a
rd

, 
b
ri
ng

in
g
 a

 la
yp

er
so

n’
s 

p
er

sp
ec

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
w

id
e-

ra
ng

in
g
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

nd
 i
ss

ue
s 

b
ei

ng
 

d
is

cu
ss

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 g

ro
up

 - 
re

p
o
rt
s 

a
nd

 n
o
te

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
p
o
st

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
w

eb
si

te
. 

En
te

r 
an

d 
V

ie
w

Th
e 

W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k 
ha

s 
m

a
d
e 

se
ve

ra
l E

nt
er

 &
 V

ie
w

 V
is

its
, 
so

m
e 

in
fo

rm
a
l a

nd
 s

o
m

e 
in

 a
 f
o
rm

a
l c

a
p
a
ci

ty
. 
In

fo
rm

a
l v

is
its

 w
er

e 
m

a
d
e 

to
 W

ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 T

ea
ch

in
g
 H

o
sp

ita
l N

H
S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t t

o
 ta

ke
 p

a
rt
 i
n 

th
e 

M
ix

ed
 S

ex
 W

a
rd

 A
ud

its
 a

nd
 p

la
nn

in
g
, 

a
nd

 P
a
tie

nt
 E

nv
ir
o
nm

en
t A

ct
io

n 
G

ro
up

 W
a
lk

a
b
o
ut

s.
 M

o
re

 
fo

rm
a
l v

is
its

 w
er

e 
to

 N
ur

si
ng

 H
o
m

es
/
Re

si
d
en

tia
l H

o
m

es
 a

nd
 G

P 
p
ra

ct
ic

es
. 
Re

p
o
rt
s 

o
n 

th
es

e 
vi

si
ts

 a
re

 a
va

ila
b
le

 o
n 

th
e 

w
eb

si
te

 
a
nd

 i
n 

ha
rd

 c
o
p
y 

fr
o
m

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
S
up

p
o
rt
 T

ea
m

. 

A
 li

st
 o

f 
En

te
r 

a
nd

 V
ie

w
 v

is
its

 d
ur

in
g
 th

e 
ye

a
r 

is
 i
nc

lu
d
ed

 a
s 

A
p
p
en

d
ix

 5

R
e
q
u
e
st

s,
 R

e
p
o
rt

s 
&

 R
e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s 

Th
er

e 
w

er
e 

th
re

e 
fo

rm
a
l r

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n 
to

 
co

m
m

is
si

o
ne

rs
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

d
er

s 
d
ur

in
g
 th

e 
ye

a
r 

(s
ee

 a
p
p
en

d
ic

es
 4

 
&

 6
).
 In

 a
d
d
iti

o
n,

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
m

a
in

ta
in

ed
 a

 d
ia

lo
g
ue

 w
ith

 p
ro

vi
d
er

s 
a
nd

 c
o
m

m
is

si
o
ne

rs
, 
p
a
rt
ic

ul
a
rl
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
p
re

se
nt

a
tio

n 
o
n 

ke
y 

g
ro

up
s,

 to
 ta

ck
le

 i
ss

ue
s 

a
t a

 g
ra

ss
-ro

o
ts

 le
ve

l r
a
th

er
 th

a
n 

w
a
iti

ng
 

to
 m

a
ke

 f
o
rm

a
l r

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n.

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
ha

s 
m

a
d
e 

tw
o
 f
o
rm

a
l r

ec
o
m

m
en

d
a
tio

ns
 to

 
co

m
m

is
si

o
ne

rs
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

d
er

s,
 b

o
th

 o
f 
w

hi
ch

 h
a
ve

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 a

 
fa

vo
ur

a
b
le

 r
es

p
o
ns

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 i
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
vi

ew
. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o
 

co
nt

ri
b
ut

ed
 to

 s
ev

er
a
l c

o
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

, 
a
nd

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 a

 la
rg

e 
nu

m
b
er

 o
f 
in

te
rn

a
l r

ep
o
rt
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

a
ve

 b
ee

n 
sh

a
re

d
 w

ith
 th

e 
g
en

er
a
l p

ub
lic

.

Page 33



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
2
6

W
he

re
 d

o 
w

e 
go

 fr
om

 h
er

e?

2
7

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 fi

na
lis

in
g
 th

e 
W

o
rk

p
la

n 
fo

r 
2
0
1
0
 /

 1
1
. 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 a

re
a
s 

ha
ve

 a
lr
ea

d
y 

b
ee

n 
id

en
tifi

ed
 f
o
r 

in
cl

us
io

n.

Fo
llo

w
-u

p 
w

or
k

D
is

ch
a
rg

e

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
he

a
lth

 c
a
re

 f
o
r 

th
e 

el
d
er

ly

Pe
rs

o
na

lis
a
tio

n

Ra
pi

d 
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts

Pa
tie

nt
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

le
rt
s 

(r
eq

ue
st

 f
o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
tio

n)
Lo

ng
 T

er
m

 C
o
nd

iti
o
ns

N
ew

 P
ro

je
ct

s

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
cc

o
un

ts
 - 

w
e 

w
ill

 p
a
rt
ic

ip
a
te

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

a
r 

(o
n 

a
 q

ua
rt
er

ly
 b

a
si

s)
 to

 e
na

b
le

 m
o
re

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
fe

ed
b
a
ck

H
ea

lth
 C

a
re

 o
f 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

&
 Y

o
un

g
er

 P
eo

p
le

C
Q

C
 S

ta
r 

ra
tin

g
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
fo

r 
nu

rs
in

g
 h

o
m

es
. 
To

o
 m

a
ny

 
in

co
ns

is
te

nc
ie

s 
w

ith
 r

a
tin

g
s.

 

A
ny

 o
th

er
 i
ss

ue
s 

su
g
g
es

te
d
 b

y 
LI
N

k 
m

em
b
er

s 
o
r 

th
e 

p
ub

lic
 c

a
n 

b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 f
o
r 

o
ur

 w
o
rk

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

xt
 1

2
 m

o
nt

hs
 - 

se
ve

ra
l 

ev
en

ts
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 p
la

nn
ed

 to
 g

a
th

er
 y

o
ur

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 
co

nc
er

n.

Th
e 

LI
N

k 
is

 a
ls

o
 k

ee
n 

fo
r 

a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
to

 b
ec

o
m

e 
m

o
re

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 i
n 

ta
ki

ng
 th

es
e,

 o
r 

o
th

er
, 
is

su
es

 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 
If 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 
so

m
e 

tim
e 

to
 c

o
m

m
it 

to
 b

ec
o
m

in
g
 m

o
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

in
 th

e 
LI
N

k,
 

p
le

a
se

 c
o
nt

a
ct

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
S
up

p
o
rt
 T

ea
m

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t, 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t &
 N

et
w

or
ki

ng

LI
N

k
 B

o
a
rd

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s 

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

7
th

 A
p
ri
l 2

0
0
9
 a

t W
ir
ra

l W
a
rd

en
s 

O
ffi

ce
 9

.3
0
a
m

 - 
1
8
 a

tte
nd

ee
s

5
th

 M
a
y 

2
0
0
9
 a

t F
lo

ra
l P

a
vi

lio
n 

H
a
nd

o
ve

r 
M

ee
tin

g
 1

1
a
m

 - 
1
5
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 4
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

2
nd

 J
un

e 
2
0
0
9
 a

t L
ife

 C
en

tr
e 

9
.3

0
a
m

 - 
1
0
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 5
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

7
th

 J
ul

y 
2
0
0
9
 a

t L
ife

 C
en

tr
e 

9
.3

0
a
m

 - 
1
5
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 3
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

4
th

 A
ug

us
t 2

0
0
9
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 9

.3
0
a
m

 - 
1
4
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 3
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

1
st

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
0
0
9
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 9

.3
0
a
m

 - 
1
4
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 4
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

6
th

 O
ct

o
b
er

 2
0
0
9
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 9

.3
0
a
m

 - 
1
1
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 8
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

3
rd

 N
o
ve

m
b
er

 2
0
0
9
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 9

.0
0
a
m

 - 
1
2
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 8
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

1
st

 D
ec

em
b
er

 2
0
0
9
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 9

.3
0
a
m

 - 
1
2
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 6
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

1
4
th

 J
a
nu

a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 2

p
m

 - 
1
1
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 8
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

9
th

 F
eb

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 9

.3
0
a
m

 - 
1
7
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 3
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

2
nd

 M
a
rc

h 
2
0
1
0
 a

t P
a
rk

 P
a
vi

lio
n,

 B
ir
ke

nh
ea

d
 9

.3
0
a
m

 - 
1
7
 a

tte
nd

ee
s,

 4
 a

p
o
lo

g
ie

s

N
o
te

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t,

 E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

&
 N

e
tw

o
rk

in
g
 T

a
b
le

 (
P
a
g
e
 1

0
)

*
 T

he
 T

a
sk

 &
 F

in
is

h 
a
nd

 S
ta

nd
in

g
 g

ro
up

s 
m

et
 to

 s
et

 o
ut

 th
e 

Te
rm

s 
o
f 
Re

fe
re

nc
e.

 It
 w

a
s 

d
ec

id
ed

 to
 

m
er

g
e 

th
e 

En
te

r 
&

 V
ie

w
 a

nd
 R

a
p
id

 R
es

p
o
ns

e 
Te

a
m

s 
to

g
et

he
r 

a
nd

 w
o
rk

 o
n 

a
 p

ro
to

co
l t

o
 i
d
en

tif
y 

ur
g
en

t/
im

p
o
rt
a
nt

 i
ss

ue
s 

a
nd

 h
o
w

 to
 p

ri
o
ri
tis

e.
 C

ro
ss

 B
o
un

d
a
ry

 w
o
rk

 b
eg

a
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

a
s 

in
st

ig
a
te

d
 

b
y 

D
is

ch
a
rg

e 
d
el

a
ys

 f
ro

m
 h

o
sp

ita
l w

he
re

 a
 p

a
ck

a
g
e 

o
f 
ca

re
 w

a
s 

ne
ed

ed
. 
Th

es
e 

g
ro

up
s 

ha
ve

 a
 

cr
o
ss

 c
ut

tin
g
 th

em
e.

A
ll 

m
in

ut
es

 a
nd

 r
ep

o
rt
s 

fr
o
m

 th
es

e 
g
ro

up
s 

a
re

 a
va

ila
b
le

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
ca

lly
 o

r 
in

 h
a
rd

 c
o
p
y 

a
nd

 a
re

 
d
o
w

nl
o
a
d
a
b
le

 f
ro

m
 o

ur
 w

eb
si

te
 :
 w

w
w

.li
nk

w
ir
ra

l.o
rg

.u
k 

*
*
Th

e 
nu

m
b
er

 o
f 
st

a
ke

ho
ld

er
 m

ee
tin

g
s 

w
a
s 

si
g
ni

fic
a
nt

ly
 h

ig
h 

d
ue

 to
 b

ui
ld

in
g
 r

el
a
tio

ns
hi

p
s 

a
nd

 
p
ro

m
o
tio

n 
o
f 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
a
nd

 i
nc

lu
d
es

 :

C
a
th

y 
G

ill
, 
th

e 
LI
N

k 
le

a
d
 f
o
r 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
ri
ty

, 
A

nd
y 

M
ill

s,
 th

e 
LI
N

k 
le

a
d
 f
o
r 

N
H

S
 W

ir
ra

l 
a
nd

 M
ic

ha
el

 C
ha

nt
le

r,
 th

e 
LI
N

k 
le

a
d
 f
o
r 

W
ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 T

ea
ch

in
g
 H

o
sp

ita
l N

H
S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t. 

A
ls

o
 i
nc

lu
d
ed

 i
n 

th
is

 n
um

b
er

 a
re

 C
he

sh
ir
e 

&
 W

ir
ra

l P
a
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
 N

H
S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t, 

C
la

tte
rb

ri
d
g
e 

C
en

tr
e 

fo
r 

O
nc

o
lo

g
y 

N
H

S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t, 

N
o
rt
h 

W
es

t A
m

b
ul

a
nc

e 
S
er

vi
ce

, 
C

a
re

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n 

a
nd

 le
a
d
s 

fo
r 

in
d
iv

id
ua

l p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 a
ll 

o
f 
th

e 
a
b
o
ve

 n
a
m

ed
 o

rg
a
ni

sa
tio

ns
 i
e.

 
A

lc
o
ho

l, 
H

ea
lth

 A
ct

io
n 

A
re

a
s,

 O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

s 
Pa

rl
ia

m
en

t, 
to

 n
a
m

e 
b
ut

 a
 f
ew

. 

A
pp

en
di

ce
s

Page 34



W
irra

l LIN
k

2
8

2
9

A
nnua

l Rep
o
rt 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

*
*
*
 Ind

ep
end

ent S
a
feg

ua
rd

ing
 A

utho
rity  

O
cto

b
er 2

0
0
9

  S
t W

erb
urg

hs O
ld

er Peo
p
les Pa

rlia
m

ent Event  
M

a
y 2

0
0
9
 

  A
nyo

ne &
 Everyo

ne Event W
U

TH
FT 

N
o
vem

b
er 2

0
0
9

  C
rim

e Red
uctio

n Pa
rtnership

 
July 2

0
0
9

  Perso
na

lisa
tio

n Events 
July a

nd
 D

ecem
b
er 2

0
0
9
 

  End
 o

f Life Events 
M

a
rch 2

0
1
0
 x 2

 

*
*
*
*
 C

hief Executives o
f a

ll lo
ca

l N
H

S
 Trusts a

nd
 D

ep
t o

f A
d
ult S

o
cia

l S
ervices

   W
irra

l M
et C

o
lleg

e Freshers Fa
ir a

nd
 C

hester U
ni Freshers Fa

ir
   C

heshire S
ho

w
   S

ea
co

m
b
e C

hild
rens C

entre - A
rea

 C
o
o
rd

ina
to

rs fo
r Extend

ed
 S

cho
o
ls

   M
erseysid

e S
o
ciety fo

r D
ea

f Peo
p
le

   H
uyto

n Lig
htho

use
   Lea

g
ue o

f Friend
s

   Ea
stha

m
 C

linic
   Ro

ta
ria

ns
   S

ta
nd

ing
 W

o
m

ens C
o
nference

Appendix 2 - Activity

Event Date Location Summary

Independent 
Safeguarding 
Event

October 
2009

Life Centre, 
Bebington

Update on the processes and current legislation around 
safeguarding for the LINk & wider community. This was a 
partnership event with the Wirral Voluntary & Community Sector’s 
Network and Wirral LINk. 

Safeguarding
Training
Equality
Inclusion

Mixed Sex Ward 
Audit

May 2009 Arrowe Park 
Hospital

£900,000 had been granted to WUTHFT to investigate and plan 
mixed sex wards at Arrowe Park and Clatterbridge. The LINk 
was heavily involved in the planning process

Representation
Consultation
Improvement
Equality
Dignity & Respect

Patient 
Environment 
Action Group 
(PEAG)

July 2009 Clatterbridge Facilities Dept were implementing a centralisation of domestic 
staff

Environment
Dignity & Respect

Health and 
Wellbeing 
Overview 
& Scrutiny 
Committee 
(OSC)

Ongoing Wallasey 
Town Hall

A protocol for joint working between the LINk and OSC was 
developed; the LINk represented member groups and discussed 
issues relating to the workplan

Representation
Partnership 
Working

Personalisation 
Briefing

July 2009 DASS Update to LINk and other stakeholders on the Personalisation 
agenda locally 

Personalisation 
Agenda

North West 
Regional LINk 
Host Meetings

Ongoing Various Share best practice and ensure cross boundary issues are tackled 
appropriately ie Clatterbridge Centre for Oncology has patients 
receiving treatment from as far away as Cumbria. 

Cross Boundary

Board Handover 
Day

May 2009 Floral Pavilion, 
New Brighton

Handover from Interim Steering Group to Elected Board. 
Appointment of Officers and presentation of Future Work issues 
for consideration on the Work Plan. 

Work Plan 
Appointment of 
board. 

Page 35



W
irra

l LIN
k

3
0

3
1

A
nnua

l Rep
o
rt 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Older People’s 
Conference

May 2009 St Werburghs 
Birkenhead

Promotion of LINk Engagement

Meeting 
with Area 
Coordinators 
Extended School 
Activities

May 2009 Seacombe Promoting the LINk and looking for opportunities for signposting 
and community engagement

Signposting
Engagement
Partnership 
Working

Coffee Morning June 2009 Birkenhead 
Pavilion

Promote the LINk, look for issues for the workplan Work Plan
Engagement

Anyone and 
Everyone Event

18th Nov. 
2009

Arrowe Park Opportunity to demonstrate how Wirral LINk works to represent 
all parts of the community

Partnership
Equality
Diversity

Stakeholder 
Meetings

Regularly Birkenhead Update on all stakeholder activity to identify cross cutting themes 
and seek opportunities for joint working. 

Stakeholder
Joint working

Health 
Action Areas 
Community 
Programme

Sept. 2009 Bebington To develop local knowledge of services in our community
Development 

Fresher’s Fairs Sept. 2009 Wirral 
Metropolitan 
College 
& Chester 
University

Promote the LINk and obtain the views of younger people Involvement
Inclusion

Stakeholder 
CEO’s Event

Sept. 2009 Birkenhead 
Pavilion

All Chief Execs, Chairman of all local trusts including, DASS, 
North West Ambulance and Cheshire & Wirral Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust

Vision
Partnership 

Delivering High 
Quality Services 
through efficient 
design

1st Dec. 
2009 - 9th 
March 2010

The Lauries, 
Birkenhead

Individual LINk members were encouraged to provide their own 
input to this Cheshire & Wirral Partnership Consultation

Consultation
Partnership
Mental Health

Redesigning 
Adult and Older 
People’s Mental 
Health Services

1st Dec. 
2009 - 9th 
March 2010

The Lauries, 
Birkenhead

Individual LINk members were encouraged to provide their own 
input to this Cheshire & Wirral Partnership Consultation

Consultation
Partnership
Mental Health

Shaping the 
Future of Care 
Services

29th October 
2009

Wallasey 
Town Hall

LINk held a workshop to provide a LINk response to this Wirral 
Council consultation. 

Consultation
Partnership
Involvement

New Horizons Oct / Nov 
2009

Bebington 
Civic Centre

Workshop held by LINk to provide a LINk response to this 
Consultation
“Towards a shared vision for Mental Health”

Consultation
Partnership
Mental Health

Options for 
Change

27 October 
2009

Westminster 
House, 
Birkenhead

LINk held a workshop to provide a LINk response to this Wirral 
Council consultation.

Consultation
Partnership
Involvement

Voices into 
Action

Jan. 2010 Wirral-wide LINk took part in the CQC assessment of health and adult social 
care

Consultation

Page 36



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
3
2

3
3

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 &

 C
on

fe
re

nc
es

Tr
a
in

in
g

D
a
te

A
tt

e
n
d
e
e
(s

)
O

u
tc

o
m

e

N
a
tio

na
l A

ss
o
ci

a
tio

n 
o
f 
LI
N

k 
M

em
b
er

s 
C

o
nf

er
en

ce
s

O
ng

o
in

g
A

ud
re

y 
M

ea
co

ck
Pr

o
m

o
tio

n 
o
f 
LI
N

k;
 e

nc
o
ur

a
g
ed

 
C

C
O

 to
 p

a
rt
ic

ip
a
te

 i
n 

N
A

LM
 

ra
d
io

th
er

a
p
y 

&
 c

he
m

o
th

er
a
p
y 

su
rv

ey

D
ig

ni
ty

 i
n 

C
a
re

 
C

o
nf

er
en

ce
, 
Le

ed
s

Ju
ly

 2
0
0
9

D
ia

ne
 H

ill
Id

en
tifi

ed
 d

ig
ni

ty
 c

ha
m

p
io

ns
 

na
tio

nw
id

e

En
d
 o

f 
Li

fe
 W

ee
k 

C
o
nf

er
en

ce
M

a
rc

h 
2
0
1
0

A
ud

re
y 

M
ea

co
ck

W
o
rk

 to
w

a
rd

s 
th

e 
En

d
 o

f 
Li

fe
 

S
tr
a
te

g
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 b

y 
N

H
S
 

a
nd

 s
o
ci

a
l s

er
vi

ce
s

In
d
uc

tio
n 

Tr
a
in

in
g

A
p
ri
l 2

0
0
9

1
4
 L

IN
k 

m
em

b
er

s
H

el
p
ed

 m
em

b
er

s 
un

d
er

st
a
nd

 L
IN

k 
re

m
it 

a
nd

 g
o
ve

rn
a
nc

e

S
a
fe

g
ua

rd
in

g
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

Tr
a
in

in
g

M
a
y 

2
0
0
9

LI
N

k 
S
up

p
o
rt
 T

ea
m

En
su

re
 s

a
fe

g
ua

rd
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 
a
re

 i
n 

p
la

ce
 f
o
r 

th
e 

LI
N

k

In
d
uc

tio
n 

Tr
a
in

in
g

Ju
ne

 2
0
0
9

1
5
 L

IN
k 

m
em

b
er

s
H

el
p
ed

 m
em

b
er

s 
un

d
er

st
a
nd

 L
IN

k 
re

m
it 

a
nd

 g
o
ve

rn
a
nc

e

M
a
rk

et
in

g
 T

ra
in

in
g

Ju
ly

 2
0
0
9

LI
N

k 
S
up

p
o
rt
 T

ea
m

D
ev

el
o
p
 s

o
ci

a
l m

a
rk

et
in

g
 s

ki
lls

Eq
ua

lit
y 

&
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 
Tr

a
in

in
g
 (
w

ith
 W

ir
ra

l 
B
o
ro

ug
h 

C
o
un

ci
l)

S
ep

t. 
2
0
0
9

3
5
 A

tte
nd

ee
s

U
nd

er
st

a
nd

in
g
 a

nd
 p

re
p
a
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

S
in

g
le

 E
q
ua

lit
ie

s 
B
ill

 a
nd

 
a
w

a
re

ne
ss

 o
f 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
a
nd

 
D

iv
er

si
ty

 i
ss

ue
s.

 

Th
ir
d
 S

ec
to

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
Pr

o
g
ra

m
m

e
A

ug
us

t 
2
0
0
9

LI
N

k 
S
up

p
o
rt
 T

ea
m

U
p
d
a
te

 o
n 

th
e 

Th
ir
d
 S

ec
to

r 
In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
o
m

m
un

ity
 R

es
ea

rc
h

O
ct

o
b
er

 
2
0
0
9
 x

 2
1
0
 L

IN
k 

m
em

b
er

s
In

cr
ea

se
d
 u

nd
er

st
a
nd

in
g
 a

nd
 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lis
m

 i
n 

re
g
a
rd

 to
 

re
se

a
rc

h 
fo

r 
LI
N

k.
 

En
te

r 
&

 V
ie

w
 T

ra
in

in
g

Ju
ne

 2
0
0
9

S
ep

t 2
0
0
9

1
5
 A

ct
iv

e 
LI
N

k 
M

em
b
er

To
 u

nd
er

st
a
nd

 th
e 

p
ro

to
co

ls
 

a
nd

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 d
ur

in
g
 E

nt
er

 
&

 V
ie

w
 v

is
its

 a
nd

 a
b
id

e 
b
y 

th
e 

G
o
ve

rn
a
nc

e.

Re
p
o
rt
s 

fr
o
m

 a
ll 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

nd
 c

o
nf

er
en

ce
s 

a
re

 a
va

ila
b
le

 v
ia

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
su

p
p
o
rt
 te

a
m

.

Appendix 4 - Requests for information

Number of requests for information made by Wirral LINk during 2009/103

Of these, number of requests answered within 20 working days3

How many requests related to social care?0

Detail

RequestOrganisationSummaryReply Received 
within 20 days?

Stroke National 
Targets

NHS WirralComparison of acute stroke services in Wirral against regional and 
national levels of achievement against national acute stroke indicator

Yes

Mental Health 
Assertive Outreach 
Teams

Cheshire & Wirral 
Partnership Trust NHS 
Foundation Trust

To confirm numbers of staff in proposed abolition of Assertive 
Outreach Teams and how the effects of these changes will be 
monitored and reported

Yes

Management 
of long term 
conditions

NHS Wirralwhat arrangements are in place to achieve better management of 
long term conditions

Yes

Page 37



W
irra

l LIN
k

3
4

3
5

A
nnua

l Rep
o
rt 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Appendix 5 - Enter and View

Number of Enter and View visits made by Wirral LINk during 2009/10 12

Number of these Enter and View visits relating to health care 9

Number of these Enter and View visits relating to social care 3

Number of Enter and View visits that were unannounced 0

Number of Enter and View visits that were announced 12

Although the Enter & View visits were most on NHS sites, the issues were relating to Health And Social Care issues ie. Discharge from 
Hospital but specifically around Care packages and delayed discharge. 

Detail

Enter and View 
Visit

Organisation Date Summary Announced? Outcome

Springview Unit, 
Clatterbridge

Cheshire & Wirral 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust

22/03/10 Revisit this unit to see activity and 
developments of newly opened 
and refurbished mental health 
wards. 

Yes

Nursing Homes
(3 visits)

Confidential as is 
ongoing. 

10/03/10
03/03/10
05/02/10

Confidential issue received and 
investigated by Wirral LINk

Yes Dignity in Care campaign 
throughout all nursing 
homes within Wirral. 
Particularly doing like for 
like comparison.

Springview Unit, 
Clatterbridge

Cheshire & Wirral 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust

15/01/10 To familiarise the LINk with the 
new relocation of two Mental 
health wards from St. Catherines 
Hospital

Yes A productive and 
informative visit. Further 
visits were schedule March 
2010 when wards are up 
and running. 

Arrowe park 
Hospital 
Discharge Lounge
(2 visits)

Wirral University 
teaching Hospital 
NHS Foundation 
Trust

March 
2010

Research and survey into the 
discharge lounge environment 
and the discharge process

Yes Discharge Survey for 
Discharge Lounge 
patients. Also prompted 
wider Discharge Surveys 
including professionals. 
This survey also went to 
GP practices. 

PEAG WUTHFT Annually To look at the facilities ie. Linen, 
food etc in Hospital for both 
patients and Staff 

Yes LINks involvement brings 
a fresh eye and ensures 
issues are reported and 
actioned for the benefit 
of patients and their 
environment during their 
stay. 

Mixed Sex 
Accommodation

WUTHFT May 2009 Audit of what was the current 
position in relation to Mixed 
Sex Accommodation to single 
sex and plan how to spend the 
£900k received by WUTHFT

Yes Before the audit there 
were no Single Sex 
Wards/Bays. Following 
the audit there were .. 
single sex accommodation 
with private facilities. 

GP practices in 
Neston (x3)

Feb. and 
March 
2010

To encourage the participation of 
the GP Practices in the Discharge 
Survey 

Yes The GPs now have a 
system to send LINk 
Discharge survey form to 
patients newly discharged 
from hospital .

Page 38



W
irra

l LIN
k

3
6

3
7

A
nnua

l Rep
o
rt 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

Appendix 6 - Reports & Recommendations

Number of Reports and / or Recommendations made by Wirral LINk to 
commissioners of health and adult social care services 2

Number of these Reports / Recommendations acknowledged in the required 
timescale 2

Of the Reports / Recommendations acknowledged, number that have led / are 
leading to service review 2

Of the Reports / Recommendations that led to service review, number that have 
led to service change N/A

Number or Reports / Recommendations relating to health services 2

Number or Reports / Recommendations relating to social care services 0

Detail

Name Organisation Date Date 
Acknowledged

Service 
Review?

Service 
Change?

More effective health care services 
for the elderly - based on evidence 
from Royal College of Psychiatrists 
(RCP)

NHS Wirral, Cheshire & Wirral 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

25/01/10 10/02/10 Yes TBC

LINk Representative to sit on NHS 
Wirral Board

NHS Wirral 08/09/09 18/09/09 Yes N/A

A
ppendix 7 - Referrals to O

SC
s

N
um

b
er referra

ls m
a
d
e b

y W
irra

l LIN
k to

 a
n O

verview
 &

 S
crutiny 

C
o
m

m
ittee (O

S
C

)
0

N
um

b
er a

ckno
w

led
g
ed

 b
y the O

S
C

N
/
A

N
um

b
er o

f referra
ls tha

t led
 to

 service cha
ng

e
N

/
A

Page 39



W
ir
ra

l L
IN

k
3
8

3
9

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
o
rt
 2

0
0
9
/
2
0
1
0

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 T
er

m
s 

an
d 

A
cr

on
ym

s

LI
N

k 
Lo

ca
l I

nv
o
lv

em
en

t N
et

w
o
rk

O
S
C

 
H

ea
lth

 &
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

o
m

m
itt

ee

N
H

S
 

N
a
tio

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

C
Q

C
 

C
a
re

 Q
ua

lit
y 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n

V
C

A
W

 
Vo

lu
nt

a
ry

 &
 C

o
m

m
un

ity
 A

ct
io

n 
W

ir
ra

l

A
PH

  
A

rr
o
w

e 
Pa

rk
 H

o
sp

ita
l

W
U

TH
FT

 
W

ir
ra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 T

ea
ch

in
g
 H

o
sp

ita
l N

H
S
 F

o
un

d
a
tio

n 
Tr

us
t

PC
T 

Pr
im

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

st

RC
P 

Ro
ya

l C
o
lle

g
e 

o
f 
Ps

yc
hi

a
tr
is

ts

PO
PP

S
 

Pa
rt
ne

rs
hi

p
s 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

’s
 P

ro
je

ct
s

M
H

IC
T 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 C
a
re

 T
ea

m
 f
o
r 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
p
le

A
IM

S
 

A
cc

re
d
ita

tio
n 

o
f 
In

-P
a
tie

nt
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s

LE
G

A
C

Y
 IS

S
U

ES
 

Th
es

e 
is

su
es

 w
er

e 
in

iti
a
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
Pa

tie
nt

 P
ub

lic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t F
o
ru

m
s 

 
 

a
nd

 th
e 

LI
N

k 
a
d
d
ed

 th
em

 to
 th

ei
r 

w
o
rk

p
la

n.
 T

he
se

 i
ss

ue
s 

a
re

   
 

re
p
o
rt
ed

 o
n 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 r

ep
o
rt
.

�

�
�
�
��
�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�	

�
��
�
���
��
��
���
��
��

	

��

��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
��
���
��
���
��
�
����
��

�
�
�
��
����

�
��
��
��
��

�
�
�
�

��
�	
��
���
��
��
�
����
��
��
��
 
�
��

��
!��
���
!"��
��
���
��
��
��
��
��
���
��#
�$
��
	�
��
�
���
	�
�"
��
	%&
��
�	
���
�#
��
��
����
�!
��
�
#�
"�
��
��
�
#�
��
��
'�
���
�
��
(
��
 
!�
��
��
(
��
��
�)�
��
��
�
�*�
"��
��	
���

	�
+��
���'
��
�
�,
��
��
�
���
�
��
(
��
��
"�
��
�&
�
��
��
��
�!�
��
�!�
��
��
��%�
���
���
�#
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
-�
��

-�
��

-�
��

-�
���
��
��
��
�
%��
	�
���
��
��
��
��
��
�	
%��
��

��
��"
#�
��
��
�
��
�
%��
	�
���
��
��
��
��
��
!�
%��
��
�
���
&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�$
�
��
!.�
��
�
/�

��
!.�
��
�
/�

��
!.�
��
�
/�

��
!.�
��
�
/�*
�

�
��
�
��

��
��
��

��
�	

�
��
��
�

��
���
�
��
��

���
�
��	

�
�

��
�
���
�
��

��
���
��
��
��

���
���

���
��

����
��
�
�
�
�

���
�
��
��
���
�
�
�
��

��

��

 �!
�
�

��!
�"#

��
��
�
���

��
��

��$
��
��

���
�
��
��

��
��

���
���
��%�
�
���
�
��

��
	�

�	

�

��
�%�


��
��$

�
�&

�'�
���
�
�

���
�
��%�
�
��

%�
��

��
�
��(

%�
��

��)
��
���

�%��
��

��
��
��

&��
���

��
��
��
��
��
�
�*�


&	

��
��

���
��

���
�
��

'�
"�
��
��*

��
�
��
�
��
��

��
���

&	

��
��
+
�,�
���

��
���
��

�
��

��
���
���
��

�%��
��
���

��%-
��

���
.
��

��
��

� ������
��
��

��
�

�


��
��

��
��
��


��

%��
���

��%�
��

��
��
��
��
�
�

�

	�
���
���

��
-�
��
�
%��

��
�%/

��
0�

"��
��
��

1!
��
��
��

��
�

�
���
�2

��
�
'�
�%*

�2
��
�
'�
�%*

�2
��
�
'�
�%*

�2
��
�
'�
�%*�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
	�


�
��
�

�
���

��
���
�


	
��
�	
��
��
	�
�
�
�

��
��
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
��
���
�

�
�

 
��
!�

��
�

	�
��
�"
��
��
�
���
�

#�
$�
��
�%
�&
�
�'
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
"�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
���
���
�(
��"
��
�)

��
�'
��
���
��
�&
*��
�+
��
��
�

"�
��
��
'
��
��
��

�
�

��
'
,
�$
��
��
�
��
��
��
�-
!�
��
�&
"&
�(
��

&�
�	
��
'
��
�

.�
	�
!�
��
"�
/
��
��
/
��
��
��
-�
0
��
�
��
��
�/

�
�"
��
&"
&�
(
��
1
�
���
��
�
��
�(
�	
��
��
��
2�
(
��
�	
�3

�*4
��
�
��
�

��

&�
��
(
��
"�
	�
�&
�5
�

��
+�
��
�+
��
�*�
�3

��
��

��
��
�6
��
�	
.�
(
��
���
�!
�

�
��
�
�

��
���
�
���
�
�	

��

��
�
�

���
���
���
�

�
��
���

�
�
���
��
��
��
�

��
�
���
�

�
�
�
�

����
�
�

�
��
��	

�
�
�
�

���
�

�
��
�
 ��

���
!�
 �
���
��
���"

��
�

���
��#

$%
�&
�'
�(

��)
�*
����
���

���
�+
���
���
���
��
,-
��
��
��.
��
/���
��
���)

�	
�0

��1
�2

��
�
�3
�4
�5
�1��

���
���
�

��
���
�
6��
"

����
��7
��8
�9
-:
;	
��
��
#
��
��
�<
��=

��

��>

?��
+��
��
���

-@
��#

��
��
��
,-
��
��
@A
��
�)
�/�
 ��

��B
��
�8�
C
�	
4D

��
��#

5�
4*
E�
��
 �
=�

�F4
�4
��
�

��
���
��7
��
�F�
�1�G

���

��H

-
I	
�)
�	
�J
�1K

�
��
��
B�
L��

�
M
�

�G
)�
��
��I

1���
��

)�
��
��I

1���
��

)�
��
��I

1���
��

)�
��
��I

1���
��

�G�� �������
�)
�@
!�
���
��
;��
2
�

�)
�@
!�
���
��
;��
2
�

�)
�@
!�
���
��
;��
2
�

�)
�@
!�
���
��
;��
2
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�

 
�
�
��
!
�
�
�"

�
��
�#
��
$�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
��
&
�
�#
��

�
�'
�
�
�
�
�

�
�"

��
��
��
	

��
(
��
)
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�*

�
�
�&
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
(
+�
�
�!
�
�
�

�
�
&%
��
�
,�
�
�
�
&�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�&
��
�
�
-
�
��
�
�
!
�
-
�
�
%
�
�"

��
��
��
.�
�&
�
�
��
-
��
�
+-
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
%
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�&
��
�
��
�
�
�&
��
�
�
-
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
-
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�-
�
�
�
�
��
-
�
�,
�
�
.�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
0
�
&%
�
�
�
�!
�
#�
-
��
�.
�
��
�
�$
�
%
�
-
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
%
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
,�
�
�
�
�

��
%
�
-
�
��
�
0
�
��
.�
�
�

�
�#
�
�
��
��
�
0
�
&%
�
�
�
��
%
��
-
�
��
�
�
0
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
-
&�
1�
.�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�#
��
��
��
(
�
�
#�
�
�2
�
,
�
�
&�
��
$�
�

��
(
+�
�
�

"
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�

3
��
$�
�

�
�
&�
�

�
�

�
	



�

�
�


�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
	

�







�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
	

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�

 
�

�
!

"
�
�
�

�
�

 
�

��
�

��
�

�

�
�
��
&%
�

 
�
�4
�
5
�
�$
��
�
,6
�
-
�"

��
��
��

�
,�
��
��
7
�
�7
�
�
�
�
$�
�
�
$!

�
�
�	

�
�

��
8
��
�
�
!
��
$�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�,
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
�
�
�9
�
�
�!
�
��
�
&$
�

5
�
!
��
�
�5
�6
�
�
&�
:
!
6�
:
,�
�
��
�
��
&6
,6
�
;�
�
�
5
�
!
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
!
�
;�
��
�
6�
�
��
�
�"

��
��
��
	

��

��
5
�
!
��
�
�5
�
!
��
�
6�
�
;�
!
��
�

��
,%
�6
�
��
!
��
�

��
$�
!
�
�6
-
&
��
$�
�
&6
,6
-
;�
&�
:
��
&<
�
�
��
��
&$
�
=,
��
��
&$
�
��
�
-
��
>
6<
�
�

�
&$
!
�
��
�
&$
��
$!

�
�6
-
;�
!
�
�
�
,�
!
&6
-
&$

�
��
?�
=�
��
$-
��
-
<�
-
�5
�
�
�
�
�
-
�

5
�
!
��
�
�
�
5
��
!
�
;�
�
�
��
�
&6
�,
6<
�
�

�
&$
!
�
�!
,%
�
�
6@
�!
�&

<�
�
��
�$
!
A
��
�
5
�6
-
!
��
�
��
!
�
�
-
��
:
6-

�1
�5
�
�
�
�
�
;�
&�
:
��
�
!
�@
6-
!
�
;�

�
�
$�

$�

$�
�
�"

��
��
��
9
�
�
�!
�
��
�
5
�6
�
;�
'
��
B-
�
�
��
�

1�
�
��
�
�5
�&
�
;�
!
�
�
�
,�
�

�

>
%
��
�
&�
��


�
�
(

�
�
�
�

C
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�

)
�
�
�
�,
�

��
�	

��
�	
��
��
�	
��
��
�
�

�

�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
 !

��"
��
#$

��
��
�%
&

��
�'
��
�

���
�(�
)�
*
+�,

-.
�/

0�
�1
�
�
�2
��
(�
��
'�
3
�

�

�/
�4
5)
��6
7

��8
9

�*
�%
�

��:
��
�;
<

�=
��
'�
��
>?
	

�,
�5
@

���
'�
A�

���
9

B


��


�C��
�D
'�
E-

�
�
�
�

�
�F

7

�
�

�
�G

.�
�

�
�
�
�

�

��=
�&

H!
��F

 �
'�I
�J
'#

��
�3

(�

��
�K
�
�
��
D>
	

��*

+��
5�'
�3

��
L�
��
$@

�*
+��

M�
H

�
��
��
�

�
�#

��
N
'�
+�J

5'
�F
��
�O

��
�I

��
E��
>

���
-

��F

7

�

Page 40



IM
PR

ES
SI

O
N

S 
D

ES
IG

N
 &

 P
RI

N
T 

0
1

2
7

0
 7

6
7

6
6

1

Our Health · Our Care · Our Say

Wirral Local Involvement Network

VCAW · Fire Station · Exmouth Street · Birkenhead · CH41 4NF
Tel: 0151 203 2111 · info@linkwirral.org.uk · www.linkwirral.org.uk

Wirral LINk Contacts

Wirral Local Involvement Network (LINk)  
VCAW, Fire Station, Exmouth Street, Birkenhead, CH41 4NF 
Phone: 0151 203 2111
E-mail: info@linkwirral.org.uk 
www.linkwirral.org.uk

Host Organisation 
Voluntary & Community Action Wirral (VCAW) 
Charity number 1123267

We would like to remember Mike Benson who sadly passed away last year who had worked tirelessly 
for the LINk and previously with the PPI Forums. Mike was a respected, well thought of and a valuable 
asset to the work of the LINk. He will be sadly missed.

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
9 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, NHS WIRRAL 
 
NHS WIRRAL PUBLIC AND PATIENT INVOLVEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 
APRIL 2009 – MARCH 2010 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report provides an outline of the NHS Wirral Public and Patient Involvement 
Annual Report April 2009-March 2010 and offers an opportunity for discussion 
and amendments of the draft report prior to final NHS Wirral board approval mid 
September 
 
This items falls within the Social Care and Inclusion portfolio. 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 NHS Wirral aims to deliver a patient-centred NHS, in line with the 

principles enshrined within the NHS Constitution, Lord Darzi’s Next Stage 
Review and the recently published five-year development plan for the NHS 
(NHS 2010-2015: From Good to Great). To achieve this patients and the 
public need to be sufficiently well-informed and engaged to access and 
use their NHS services effectively and appropriately to meet their health 
needs. They need to be able to contribute meaningfully in helping to shape 
services and decisions that affect their current and future health and 
wellbeing. 

 
1.2 A Patient and Public Involvement (PPI) Committee is in place to assure 

the PCT Board that the PCT involves patients and the public in a planned 
and proactive way, which is integrated with other local partners wherever 
possible and co-ordinated with staff engagement activities as appropriate. 
Part of its role is to ensure the PCT and its providers are shaping services 
around the needs and preferences of individual users, patients, their 
families and their carers. The attached report is a draft of the Annual 
Report of the PPI Committee for 2009/10. 

 
1.3 The duty for NHS Wirral to report on user involvement in commissioning 

decisions is set out in the NHS Act 2006 under section 242A. This duty 
requires the PCT to report on:  any involvement or consultation, carried out 
by any person, that influences any commissioning decisions or relevant 
decisions it makes. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 43



1.4 The NHS Wirral Public and Patient Involvement Annual Report April 2009 - 
March 2010 has been produced to meet this duty. The duty to report does 
not extend to all involvement activity; for example, information provision 
and hence this activity is not included in the report 

 
2 Overview of report 
 
2.1 The report contains an outline of the different mechanisms used to 

facilitate involvement within NHS Wirral including the Membership 
Scheme, Patient Participation Groups, National Patient Survey Information 
and Co-coordinating complaints, compliments and comments. 

 
2.2  Tables are included summarising the consultations carried out during 

2009/10 which informed key commissioning decisions and service 
developments. Examples are given from our commissioning teams, 
provider services, primary care services and practice based 
commissioning. 

 
2.3  Current consultation activity that is underway is detailed within the report 

as are future plans for 2010/11 and beyond.  
 
2.4 The report is intended as a public document and achieving the balance 

between detailing all activity and ensuring the report is suitable for the 
audience was a challenge. It is hoped that through detailing the various 
mechanisms for involvement and engagement and reporting on key 
service changes that have occurred will enable NHS Wirral to meet its 
statutory duty whilst producing an informative publication for Wirral 
residents.  

 
3  Consultation 
 
3.1 The draft report has been presented to a range of stakeholders for 

comment prior to the production of this latest version. Comments have 
been received from NHS Wirral Corporate Directors Group, NHS Wirral 
Patient and Public Involvement Committee, Wirral Carers Association, and 
Wirral LINk.  

 
4 Financial Implications 
 
 None. 
 
5 Staffing Implications 
 
 None. 
 
6 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
 All major service developments are subject to an Equality Health 

Assessment and Impact Assessments have been carried out on the 
programmes referred to within this proposal. 

Page 44



7 Community Safety Implications 
 
 Public involvement in more deprived areas and with disadvantaged groups 

is essential in addressing short and long-term health issues that can lead 
to or exacerbate community safety. 

 
8 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
 None. 
 
9 Planning Implications 
 
 None. 
 
10 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
 Public involvement in more deprived areas and with disadvantaged groups 

is essential in addressing short and long-term health issues that can lead 
to or exacerbate worklessness. 

 
11 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
 As above, public and patient involvement can help to address some of the 

particular needs of specific communities, and improve some of the health 
and service access factors that can lead to social exclusion  

 
12 Local Member Support Implications 
 
 None. 
 
13 Health Implications 
 
 NHS Wirral strives to develop services which meet the health aspirations 

of patients and the public, the Council and key stakeholders through 
patient and public involvement.  

 
14 Background Papers 
 
 Appendix 1 - Draft NHS Wirral Public and Patient Involvement Annual 

Report April 2009-March 2010 attached. 

Page 45



15 Recommendations 
 
 That the Committee  
 

(1) notes the contents of the report and provides feedback on the 
format and content of the report by no later than Friday 10 
September 2010. 

 
(2) notes that final approval will be sought by NHS Wirral’s Board on 

Tuesday 14 September 2010. 
 
 
KATHY DORAN 
Chief Executive - NHS Wirral 
 

Page 46



 

 

 

 

NHS Wirral 

Public and Patient Involvement 

Annual Report 

April 2009-March 2010 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Martin McEwan, Director of Communications & Engagement 

Andy Mills, Head of Involvement & Patient Experience 

Dawn Holt, Involvement & Patient Experience Manager  

Page 47



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

2 

Foreword 
 

 

Welcome to the first annual patient and public involvement report from NHS Wirral. I have 
recently had the pleasure of joining the primary care trust, NHS Wirral, as a Non-Executive 
Director and have taken up the position of Chair of the Patient and Public Involvement 
Committee. On behalf of my predecessor, Pauline Davis, one of my first responsibilities is to 
present the Committee’s annual report for 2009/10. This report summarises our aims and 
activity in relation to patient and public involvement during this time and sets out clear plans 
and structures to continue to develop this work in the future. It is increasingly important that 
the NHS enhances its efforts to consult, respond and be accountable to people and 
communities. The challenges facing public services in the next few years are considerable 
and we must make sure that services are designed around the needs of patients and the 
public.  
 

Nationally, one of the five pledges to the public in Lord Darzi’s NHS Next Stage Review: 
Leading Local Change is that ‘You will be involved’. Following on from this, the NHS 
Constitution was developed and states that: 
 

“ You have the right to be involved, directly or through representatives, in the planning of 
healthcare services, the development and consideration of proposals for changes in the way 
those services are provided, and in decisions to be made affecting the operation of those 
services.” 
 

NHS Wirral is committed to upholding this right with the express aim of benefiting users of 
services we commission and deliver, improving quality and delivering value for money to the 
taxpayer. We have consistently invested in strengthening the voice of the public in the 
development of local NHS services and we believe we can now show that people across 
Wirral feel informed and supported and able to have their say about their health and well-
being when it matters to them.  
 

We recognise that we are likely to need to make changes to services and that these may 
provoke powerful reactions from those affected. These ‘stakeholders’ can include patients 
and their representatives, carers, members of the public, clinicians, staff and political leaders. 
However, we aim to become more open and transparent about why we are proposing 
changes, what it is we are proposing to change and what we believe the benefits will be for 
the people who use the services.  
 

I hope this report is another step to becoming more transparent and shows how we have 
involved stakeholders in our decision making processes throughout 2009/10. The year has 
been one of investment and development and I look forward to seeing the outcome of our 
investment come into fruition over the years ahead. Notwithstanding the future of the Primary 
Care Trust, Government policy continues to focus on public engagement in the NHS and we 
will look forward to sharing our experiences and knowledge with the new organisations which 
develop over forthcoming years.  

Chris Allen 
Chair 
Patient and Public Involvement Committee. 

Page 48



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

3 

Contents 
 

Foreword – Chair of PPI ................................................................................................2 

Contents .........................................................................................................................3 

List of Tables................................................................................................................4 

List of Figures...............................................................................................................4 

Background....................................................................................................................5 

About Wirral and our consultation landscape. ..............................................................5 

Introduction....................................................................................................................6 

Patient and Public Involvement (PPI) Committee and Partnership Working ................8 

Membership .................................................................................................................9 

Patient Participation Groups.......................................................................................10 

Comments, Compliments and Complaints .................................................................11 
Complaints..............................................................................................................11 
Compliments...........................................................................................................11 

Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs)..........................................................................14 

National Patient Survey Programmes ........................................................................15 

Consultations and Commissioning Decisions 2009/10 ............................................16 

Integrated Commissioning..........................................................................................16 

Practice Based Commissioning (PBC) .......................................................................25 

Regional Projects ........................................................................................................26 

Current Consultation Activity .....................................................................................31 

Future Plans ...............................................................................................................344 

Further Information......................................................................................................35 

Glossary of Terms .......................................................................................................36 

Abbreviations...............................................................................................................39 

 

 

 

Page 49



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

4 

 

Appendix 1 – Communications and Engagement Strategy links with NHS Wirral 
Strategic Plan...............................................................................................................40 

Appendix 2 – Patient and Public Involvement Committee Terms of Reference.....41 

Appendix 3 – PPI Committee Annual Work Plan Report ..........................................45 

 

List of Tables  

 
 
Table 1: NHS Wirral Consultation Activity 2009/10………………………………………..17  

Table 2: NHS Wirral Consultation Activity 2009/10 Primary Care and Provider 

Services…………………………………………………………………………………………21 

Table 3: List of Services Commissioned where the service commenced in 2009/10….25 

Table 4: Regional Consultation Activity 2009/10…………………………………………..26 

Table 5: NHS Wirral Current Evaluation Programmes ...…………………………………31  

Table 6: Current Regional Programmes………………………..…………………………..33 

Table 7: Feedback on draft report ...……………………………..…………………………48 

 

 

List of Figures 

 

Figure 1: Model of Communications and Engagement…………………..………………..7 

Figure 2: HYS/PALS/Complaints System - How Does the Process Work? ……..…….13

Page 50



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

5 

Background  

 
The duty for the Primary Care Trust (PCT), NHS Wirral, to report on user involvement in 
commissioning decisions is set out in the NHS Act 2006 under section 242A. This duty 
requires the PCT to report on:  any involvement or consultation, carried out by any person, 
that influences any commissioning decisions or relevant decisions it makes. 
 
There is no one definition of ‘involvement’ but guidance accompanying the above Act defines 
it as: ‘the act of asking a person for their views on a proposal or issue, before a decision is 
taken’. Terms such as consultation, engagement or involvement can be used to explain this 
act and may be used throughout this document.  
 
Involving people in decisions which affect them may take different forms, depending on the 
circumstances. For example, consultation about a decision that affects only one person might 
involve a discussion with that person. Other proposals may require a full written public 
consultation, as envisaged by the Cabinet Office’s Code of Practice on Consultation. There is 
no ‘one size fits all’, but the general rule is that those who may be affected by the decision 
should have an opportunity to give their views. The duty to report does not extend to all 
involvement activity; for example, information provision and hence will not be included in this 
report.  
 

About Wirral and our consultation landscape 

 
Wirral Primary Care Trust was established in October 2006, and became NHS Wirral in 2008.  
It is coterminous with Wirral Council which helps to enhance partnership working. The 
Council’s Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee can and does request 
reports on the work of the PCT. In addition, Voluntary and Community Action Wirral is the 
host body for Wirral LINk (Local Involvement Network), an independent body made up of 
members of the public with a role to scrutinise the work of the PCT.  Further details of the role 
of LINk and how to join can be found at www.linkwirral.org.uk/. 
 
The Wirral peninsula serves two very diverse populations; in the east, a population with high 
social deprivation and high health need; in the west, an ageing but largely affluent population. 
We are a spearhead PCT which means we are amongst 20% of PCTs in England which have 
high levels of deprivation within our communities.  We are committed to narrowing the gap in 
health inequalities between the Borough and the rest of England. There are also significant 
inequalities within Wirral which we are seeking to address. 
 
Wirral has a resident population of 310,000 people and a GP-registered population of more 
than 331,000 people. NHS Wirral is divided into 3 localities - Bebington and West Wirral, 
Birkenhead, and Wallasey.  

Page 51



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

6 

Introduction 
 
NHS Wirral’s vision is ‘Working together for a healthier future’ and our aspirations for the area 
are “to improve health for all our residents, reduce health inequalities and provide 
personalised care which meets patients expressed needs (NHS Wirral Strategic Plan 2009-
2014).  
 
The Strategic Plan for NHS Wirral (2009-2014) has been developed to respond to the health 
needs of the population of Wirral, and followed extensive communication and engagement 
with the public and partners. An increased focus on Public and Patient Involvement is one of 
the enabling strands of the Strategic Plan.  The Strategic Plan is available on our website at: 
www.wirral.nhs.uk/aboutnhswirral/planspoliciesandpublications/strategicplans/ 
 
We aim to deliver a patient-centered NHS, in line with the principles enshrined within the NHS 
Constitution, Lord Darzi’s Next Stage Review and the recently published five-year 
development plan for the NHS (NHS 2010-2015: From Good to Great).  
 
To achieve this, patients and the public need to be sufficiently well-informed and engaged to 
access and use their NHS services effectively and appropriately to meet their health needs. 
They need to be able to contribute meaningfully in helping to shape services and decisions 
that affect their current and future health and wellbeing. In addition to patients and the public, 
we value the contribution made by family members and carers and their views are sought as 
part of our engagement activity.  
 
Effective communication is a prerequisite for proper engagement and, indeed, engagement 
itself is essentially an exercise in communication between the parties involved. Hence, an 
integrated Communications and Engagement Strategy has been developed, bringing together 
the corporate functions responsible for this spectrum of activity. This need was highlighted in 
a Communications Review carried out in early 2008, with a board-level Director of 
Communications & Engagement appointed in October 2008. A structure for the 
Communications and Engagement Directorate with additional specialist posts was agreed 
and recruitment has been on-going throughout 2009. The Communications and Engagement 
Strategy is available on our website at: 
www.wirral.nhs.uk/aboutnhswirral/planspoliciesandpublications/strategicplans/ 
 
The fundamental driver for effective communications and engagement is to understand our 
key audiences – patients, the public and their carers - and to adapt to meet their future needs. 
Achieving this will mean we will make better decisions and create better outcomes for people. 
Appendix 1 illustrates how the strategy, patient and public involvement and NHS Wirral 
strategic priorities fit together.  
 
The NHS Wirral Communications and Engagement strategy illustrates a model for 
communications and engagement which provides a framework that staff find useful, 
particularly in respect of capturing activity undertaken and reporting this within our assurance 
processes. It also illustrates how we as an organisation try to involve and engage patients, 

Page 52



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

7 

the public and carers in a variety of ways and at differing levels. Examples can be given of 
engagement carried out at all levels depicted within this model – see figure 1 below:  
 
 
Figure 1:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The principle for each of these is to segment audiences to achieve the specific 
communications and engagement objectives for the task in hand. 
 
 

Newsletters  
 

Staff 
Meetings  
 

Joint Forum 
 

Service  
Re-design 
 

Partner 
Briefing  
 

Stakeholder 
Events  
 

Partnership 
Boards  
 
 

Joint Service 
Development  
 

Area 
Forums 
 

Community 
Action Groups  
 

Press 
Adverts  
 

Citizen 
Panels 
 

Expert 
Patients 
 

Service User 
Groups  
 

Focus 
Groups 
 

Service 
Leaflets  
 

A Model for Communications and Engagement 
Examples of Good Practice  

Participate 
 
 
 
 
 

Involve 
 
 
 
 
 

Engage 
 
 
 
 
 

Inform 
 

   Patient             Public             Staff                   Stakeholder   
 
 

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

Target Audience 

Page 53



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

8 

Patient and Public Involvement (PPI) Committee and Partnership Working 

 
A Patient and Public Involvement Committee is in place to assure the PCT Board that the 
PCT involves patients and the public in a planned and proactive way, integrated with other 
local partners wherever possible and engagement activities co-ordinated as appropriate. Part 
of its role is to ensure the PCT and its providers are shaping services around the needs and 
preferences of individual users, patients, their families and their carers. The committee has a 
specific remit which is detailed within its Terms of Reference (see Appendix 3) and a wide 
ranging membership which includes Non Executive Directors of the PCT, Director of 
Communications & Engagement, Joint Director of Public Health, Wirral LINk representatives, 
Voluntary & Community Sector representatives, Social Care, Health & Inclusion Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee representative, Patient representative and Carer representative as well 
as a range of PCT officers. The committee follows an annual work programme and their 
report for 2009/10. Each meeting is recorded and reported back to the PCT Board on a 
regular basis. The minutes for both the Board and PPI Committee meetings are publicly 
accessible through the NHS Wirral website: 
 
http://www.wirral.nhs.uk/aboutnhswirral/board/minutesandmeetings/  
 
NHS Wirral has a close working relationship with the Wirral Local Involvement Network (LINk) 
which is an independent network made up of individuals, community groups and 
organisations working together, to speak as one voice to influence and shape local health and 
social care services. In addition to taking part in the PPI Committee, the Chair of Wirral LINk 
attends the main Board meetings of the PCT. LINk regularly feeds back issues and ideas for 
improvements which are considered in a variety of ways e.g. involvement in a review of 
patient transport services, regular information requests to the PCT to assist their research into 
areas of interest, comments on PCT Quality accounts and Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
registrations in conjunction with the Council’s Health and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC). LINk is an independent organisation and, as such, has developed its own 
work plan. NHS Wirral has worked closely with LINk members on their work plan projects 
such as promoting the LINk Dignity in Care campaign and a review of discharge 
arrangements. 
 
NHS Wirral has also worked closely with the LINk host organization, Voluntary and 
Community Action Wirral (VCAW), to enable appropriate representation processes to exist to 
ensure the third sector has a strong voice in service planning and delivery.  

Page 54



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

9 

Membership 

 
NHS Wirral has a membership scheme which provides the opportunity for patients and the 
public to tell us what they think about our services, and for us to have the opportunity to hear 
what the public and patients have to say.  
 
Because the NHS in Wirral already has large public memberships through the Foundation 
Trust hospitals (Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Cheshire & Wirral 
Partnership and Clatterbridge Centre for Oncology), the NHS Wirral membership scheme is 
not aiming to be a “mass membership” approach, rather one that brings together the 
membership organisations that are already active. As well as the large hospital trusts at one 
end of the scale, this also includes the smaller scale Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) 
based around General Practices (see next section). 
 
Our strategy for signing up individuals is that we are open to anyone in Wirral who would like 
to join, but we will make additional efforts to sign-up those people who are currently under-
represented. 
 
For those who do sign up as a member, we commit to: 
 

• Send out a regular newsletter, updating people on recent developments 

• Invite people to attend focus groups, meetings, workshops and events 

• Ask for opinions on proposed projects 

• Keep people up-to-date with NHS Wirral through email bulletins 

• Tell people about volunteering opportunities 

• Send copies of key corporate publications such as our Annual Report 
 
If there are any areas of healthcare people have a particular interest in, such as mental health 
or diabetes we can keep them updated and involved in those services that matter to them. 
One specialist area is carers and caring and is a means of specifically targeting people who 
care for others to gain their views.  
 
Over the last 12 months members have been involved in a host of activities including:  

• Assessing the PCT website usability 

• Recruitment for GP practice Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) (see overleaf) 

• Consultation on service information leaflets 

• Primary Care Assessment Unit service redesign 

• Consultation on the NHS Constitution 

• Development of social networking sites 
 
During 2009/10 NHS Wirral, Staff all became members of the scheme generating an 
additional 1800 members. Staff views are very important, as are those of patients and the 
public. Most NHS Wirral staff live in Wirral and are often patients themselves or carers of 
patients and, therefore, have insight into both sides of service delivery.  
 

Page 55



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

10 

 

Patient Participation Groups 

 
NHS Wirral is keen to support the establishment and development of Patient Participation 
Groups or Networks in GP practices across the area. Patient groups and networks offer 
opportunities for residents to communicate with their General Practice about their experience 
of Practice services, exchange ideas and suggestions about the development of existing 
services and the planning of futures ones, and then to take action. A group’s activities might 
include such things as holding health information events, consulting with patients about their 
experience of the health service, or producing a newsletter to let people know about the group 
and the services that the Practice offers. At March 2010, there were 27 Patient Participation 
Groups in the Wirral. Examples of activities carried out locally by patient groups include 
developing information resources, facilitating surveys to gather views of patients, contributing 
to surgery development plans and producing patient newsletters.   
 
In addition to the development of practice based groups, locality wide forums have been 
established so that patients from different practices have the opportunity to network and feed 
in directly to the developments at the PCT.  The Wallasey locality has a group already in 
place called the Voice of Wallasey and Bebington and West Wirral have started to scope a 
Patient Matters locality group. Similar plans are at an early stage of discussion in the 
Birkenhead locality.  
 
The National Association for Patient Participation (NAPP) supports the establishment of 
Patients’ Participation Groups and, as such, NHS Wirral is an associate member of NAPP. 
You can find out more about its work and about Patient Participation Groups on the NAPP 
website www.napp.org.uk  
 
 
 

Page 56



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

11 

Comments, Compliments and Complaints 

 
The PCT has a number of ways in which feedback can be captured, analysed and responded 
to.  Figure 2 (see over) illustrates how these work and the relationships between them.  

Complaints 

 
The term “Complaint” has a particular definition within the NHS, backed up by a formal status 
which requires the Chief Executive to take direct responsibility to ensure they are properly 
addressed. During the period April 2009 to March 2010, NHS Wirral received 59 written 
complaints regarding our directly managed services (this does not include independent 
contractors such as GPs, Dentists, Pharmacists etc). Patient feedback gained via our 
complaints process is a valuable means of monitoring and improving services where required, 
to ensure we meet the needs of our patients in the future. Some significant and positive steps 
have been taken in response to complaints made. Improvements arising from complaint 
investigations include: 

 

• All Day Health Centre – additional staff training provided 

• All Day Health Centre – increased service flexibility 

• Speech and Language Therapy Services – team implemented a new system to 
manage waiting times by pooling resources and staff; recruited two new therapists 

• Wirral Admission Prevention Service – improved integration of referrals and 
assessment 

• Unplanned Care – Communication protocols reviewed in respect of information being 
passed from one service to another 

• Wirral Wide Nursing Service – The role and remit of the Integrated Community 
Discharge Team has been clarified. 

Compliments 

 
The PCT also feels it is important to know when its staff and services have had a positive 
effect on people’s lives. Compliments and expressions of thanks are reported to the PCT 
Board.  In 09/10 a total of 200 written compliments and expressions of thanks were officially 
recorded.  Extracts from compliments received include: 
 
Wheelchair therapist. –  “…Thank you for your input with this child. The family are delighted. 
You hear fast enough when there is a problem so wanted to let you know how much of a 
difference you made to this young man…”  
  
Condition Management Programme – “The service has given me the confidence to go back to 
work and training. It has helped me to believe in myself again. They helped me to regain my 
confidence and self-belief. The staff were incredibly welcoming and professional and they had 
the ability to make people feel valued.” 
 

Page 57



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

    
   
   

12 

Community Nursing Teams – “Thanks to each and every one of you for the kind, professional 
and dignified way you cared for our brother. We could never have got through the last few 
weeks without your help and kindness.” 
 
All Day Health Centre – “…I was most impressed with the whole set up from reception staff to 
the Clinical Director taking the time to ring me with the results of the blood test done. 
Congratulations.” 
 
Urgent care services –  “I would give the Unit ten out of ten. The staff reassured me when I 
was quite concerned and they sorted out my diabetes problem within ten minutes. I would like 
to praise the way I was dealt with and the treatment I received. Thank you for all your 
kindness to me. You were all smashing and really put me at ease by explaining the procedure 
(being deaf). Thank you all again from a very grateful patient.” 
  
 
Further information can be found in the NHS Wirral Annual Report 2009/10. 

Page 58



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          13 

Figure 2: HYS/PALS/Complaints System - How Does the Process Work? 

Phase 1: Complaint Received  Phase 2: Complaint Triage       Phase 3: Complaint Management    Phase 4: Organisation Sign-off 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service 
Managers 
/ Staff  

 
Complaint 

 

Resolution 

Service 
Improvement 
 

Learning from 
Complaints 
 
Monitoring the delivery 
of outcomes 

 
 
 

Organisational 
Signoff 

 

 

Ombudsman 

Third 
Party 

Provider

 
Complaints 

Team 

Service 
Managers/
Staff 

Complaints Team responsible 
for: Mentoring 
Coaching and Supervision 
Throughout process 

Third 
Party 

Providers 

Have 
Your  
Say 

Service 
Managers 
/ Staff 

Third 
Party 

Provider

 
Have Your 
Say Team 

 
 

Service 
Managers/

Staff 

Complaints Team responsible 
for: Mentoring 
      Coaching and Supervision 
      Throughout process 

Third 
Party 

Providers 

Patient 
Advisory 
Liaison 
Service 

Service 
Managers 
/ Staff  

Third 
Party 

Providers 

 
PALS 
Team 

Service 
Managers

/Staff 

Complaints Team responsible 
for: Mentoring 
      Coaching and Supervision 
      Throughout process 

Third 
Party 

Providers 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

14 

Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) 

 
NHS Wirral carries out EIAs to establish whether, and how, a policy proposal will affect 
people from different diverse groups. The main purpose of an EIA is to pre-empt the 
possibility that a proposed policy could affect some groups unfavourably. It is an 
assessment for equality and diversity – that is, full consideration of how a proposed 
policy is likely to affect people from diverse backgrounds and circumstances – and 
should be an essential ingredient of all stages of policy development, from conception to 
implementation. 
 
Policies do not affect everyone in the same way. By making sure at an early stage of 
their development that they will not have unfavourable effects on some groups, or by 
taking steps to mitigate these effects, NHS Wirral will be able to: 
 

§ Ensure, as far as possible, that its policies are developed in full recognition of the 
diverse needs, circumstances and concerns of the people who will benefit or be 
affected by them.  

§ Be aware of any inequalities between different diverse groups that could arise, 
directly or indirectly, as a result of the proposed policy, and if so, consider 
alternative ways of achieving its aims.  

§ Deal with the possibility that policy proposals could lead to unlawful 
discrimination.  

§ Encourage greater openness, staff and public involvement in policy making.  
§ Ensure that any services provided meet the needs of all diverse groups.  
§ Increase staff and public confidence in the functions it carries out.  
§ Improve the quality of all of its policies, and its functions. Put staff and public 

interest, in all its diversity, at the heart of policy making.  
§ Ensure that it’s internal and external services do not overlook or exclude any 

groups of people, and that they serve everyone equally well. 
 
With regards to PPI activity some of the projects show good examples of reaching out to 
minority groups. For example, for male circumcision, in addition to consulting with the 
wider general public through a citizen’s panel, we specifically consulted with the Jewish 
community and Muslim community to ensure their voices were heard in the decision 
making processes.   
 
An area for development during 2010/11 is building on work completed to date to 
ensure EIAs are part of the contracted outcomes for the next commissioning round.  

 

Page 60



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

15 

National Patient Survey Programmes 

 
The NHS national patient survey programme has been established to ensure that 
patients and the public have a real say in how NHS services are planned and 
developed. Getting feedback from patients and listening to their views and priorities is 
vital for improving services. The programme enables the Care Quality Commission and 
others to build up a national picture of people's experience for comparisons of: 
 

• performance of different organisations  

• changes over time  

• variations between different patient groups.  
 
The Care Quality Commission is a health watchdog. It exists to promote improvements 
in the quality of health and social care in England. It is legally obliged to assess the 
performance of healthcare organisations in the NHS and award annual ratings of 
performance as well as co-ordinate inspections and reviews of healthcare organisations 
carried out by others. 
 
The patient survey asks patients specific factual questions about what happened to 
them during their recent healthcare experience. These 'reporting' style questions 
highlight where the problems are and what needs to be done to improve care. Once the 
results are received, NHS Wirral makes use of the findings in order to improve their 
services locally. Data from these local surveys can provide evidence for instigating and 
evaluating a range of local quality improvement initiatives.  
 
Surveys are carried out for many types of patient groups, such as inpatients, 
outpatients, cancer care, stroke, maternity, emergency care, primary care and mental 
health. As well as the quality of patients’ recent health care experience, the surveys also 
include some questions regarding age, gender and ethnic group to help identify any 
inequalities of treatment across the country.  
 
The results of surveys carried out in the Wirral can be found by visiting the Care Quality 
Commission’s website at www.cqc.org.uk. If you go to the ‘Find care services’ section 
and then select ‘Healthcare’ followed by ‘Overall performance’, you will be able to select 
a trust or the Wirral as a location. From there you can obtain an overview of how well 
organisations are rated overall, as well as specific survey results in the ‘how patients 
rate this trust’ section. More information on the patient survey programme and how it 
was developed can be found by visiting www.nhssurveys.org 
 

 

Page 61



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

16 

Consultations and Commissioning Decisions 2009/10 
 
NHS Wirral’s primary business is to commission, to plan and buy healthcare for the 
population it serves. A number of organisations provide healthcare services for Wirral 
patients – there are over 350 contracts commissioned from a range of NHS, voluntary 
and community sectors and independent providers. The range of healthcare providers is 
expected to grow. 
 
One national driver in this area has been the World Class Commissioning framework 
aimed at maximising performance in the way health and care services are 
commissioned in the NHS. The vision and competencies describe what this shift will 
involve, and the organisational competencies that Primary Care Trusts will need. The 
World Class Commissioning framework outlines a responsibility for PCTs to 
‘understand, inform, engage and lead’, to work with community partners, engage with 
public and patients, and collaborate with clinicians. 
 
Table 1 overleaf summarises the consultations carried out during 2009/10 which 
informed key commissioning decisions and service developments. The information 
contained in the table has been summarised and further information can be obtained on 
any of the activities listed by contacting the Have Your Say team – details of how to 
contact the team are available at the end of the report.  
 
A significant percentage of our commissioning is expected to remain within our existing 
main contracts with Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, 
Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and NHS Wirral Provider 
Services.  We have maximised the opportunities within the national contract frameworks 
to include patient experience metrics, and work with the trusts to build on the patient 
experience initiatives already underway. We work in partnership to develop the model of 
how patient experience and feedback informs their provision and our commissioning 
decisions. 
 

Integrated Commissioning 

 
Over the last 12 months, the PCT continued to develop integration with the Local 
Authority. Health and Social Care Services are now aligned across the three localities; 
Birkenhead, Wallasey and Bebington & West Wirral. This has enabled staff to work 
together to provide services which are personalised and organised around the needs of 
individuals. Each locality has an Integrated Commissioning Manager who is responsible 
for joint commissioning across health and social care. 
 
 
 

Page 62



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          17 

 
 

 
Consultation  

Theme 

 
Who was consulted, in what way and what 

information was provided? 

 
Feedback from the engagement activity and outcome of 

activity 
NHS Wirral Strategic Plan 
Refresh 

General Population of Wirral through Have Your Say 
team. Health for All – Have your Say document 
provided. 

Initiatives detailed within the Strategic Plan have been developed 
as a result of the consultation and in consultation with patients and 
the public. 

Exploring the need for a 
Male Circumcision Service 
for Religious, Cultural and 
Social Reasons -Local 
patient concern has been 
raised over a lack of local 
provision. 
 
Further PPI exercises 
have taken place as part of 
the procurement process 
to inform the proposed 
recommendation. 

Three listening events were undertaken regarding the 
commissioning of a service for male circumcision 
service for religious, cultural and social reasons.  The 
process involved the Jewish community, the Muslim 
community and the wider general public via a citizen’s 
panel. 
 
 

The Jewish community leaders felt they would not consider a male 
circumcision service for religious, cultural and social reasons as a 
high priority as they have a good network of provision in place and 
the procedure is well managed. If a service was made available it 
may be something they would consider using. From the Muslim 
community the consensus of opinion was that they would like to see 
a standardised male circumcision service for religious, cultural and 
social reasons available to all and, in particular, for the communities 
and faiths that would require the service. The Muslim community 
felt it should be a free service so families with a low income could 
receive a safe and quality service. Nine participants attended a 
Citizens Panel facilitated by an external organisation with PCT 
representation in support. The panel was asked to debate the issue 
of male circumcision service for non clinical reasons. After a 2 hour 
debate the panel concluded that they were keen for the NHS to 
offer a free service to children under 16 requiring male circumcision 
for non medical reasons on the grounds of the protection of 
children’s welfare and health. The panel felt that individuals above 
the age of consent i.e. over 16, who request such a procedure, 
should have access to a service but should meet the cost 
themselves. 
 
A service has been commissioned to meet the above specification 
of need and should be operational by December 2010. 

The Configuration of 
Cervical Cytology 
Reporting Services across 
Merseyside and Cheshire 

The Cancer Network has an active patient 
involvement group who were consulted. 

The patient involvement group supported the proposal which 
contributed to it being commissioned. 

Proposed Expansion of 
Radiotherapy Facilities in 
North Merseyside 

The Cancer Network has an active patient 
involvement group who were consulted. 

The patient involvement group supported the proposal which 
contributed to it being commissioned. 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          18 

 
Consultation  

Theme 

 
Who was consulted, in what way and what 

information was provided? 

 
Feedback from the engagement activity and outcome of 

activity 
Sustainable Communities 
Strategy 

Area Forums and voluntary networks were consulted 
on the content of the strategy. A draft strategy was 
distributed. 

Strategy developed and agreed. 

Public Health Annual 
Report 2008/9 “A Weight 
Off Your Mind: addressing 
overweight and obesity in 
Wirral” 

Service Users sharing Patient Experience stories. All of the services and activities mentioned in this report have the 
close involvement of patients and members of the public. Members 
of the public have also made valuable direct contributions to the 
report by sharing their personal experiences of weight 
management. Examples of this can be seen on pages 7, 13, 24 and 
25 of the original report. 

Communications and 
Engagement Strategy 

Communications plan was developed to enable 
stakeholders to comment on the draft document. 

The strategy was amended and published. 

Independent Living Centre 
and Wheelchair Service 
Relocation to  Hind Street 

Two focus groups were conducted with a mixture of 
Independent Living Centre users and Wheelchair 
Service users. Issues covered included: initial 
reactions to the proposals; perceptions as to how the 
proposed building should look and feel; any issues 
they may have with the building itself; the facilities and 
services that they felt the proposed centre should 
contain; and how service users would like to be kept 
up to date with information about the relocation. 
 
 
In addition to the feedback gained from the focus 
groups with service users, NHS Wirral also asked 
service users to share their views on the proposals via 
a questionnaire which was contained within an 
information leaflet. Users were asked whether or not 
they agreed with the proposal to relocate the 
Wheelchair Service and ILC and for any comments 
they wished to make in relation to this. 

Findings of both quantitative data and at the focus groups showed 
significant support for the proposed relocation by service users. 
Analysis of responses to the survey within the information leaflet 
provided to users of the services revealed strong backing for the 
proposals - with the vast majority of users (92%) in favour of the 
proposed relocation. Despite this positive message, service user 
views were tempered with concerns. The focus group consultation 
showed evidence of more severely disabled users having more 
concerns over the move – these were evidently linked to issues of 
self-efficacy and self-confidence. Those using wheelchairs 
appeared a little over-awed by the prospect of having to negotiate 
the journey from the bus station to the new Centre, particularly 
during peak times, such as Christmas. Parking was a significant 
issue for all group participants, as well as for those responding to 
the NHS Wirral quantitative consultation. Issues of parking were 
three-fold – firstly, the number of spaces available and the 
difficulties of finding a parking space in Birkenhead; secondly, the 
quality of car park and pavement surface around the building; and 
thirdly, the patrolling of spaces to ensure they were only being 
accessed by service users. Service users mentioned the 
introduction of hoists and a wheelchair loan service (during repairs) 
as being desirable and commented on how the service should be 
organised and on the look and feel of the building. The service has 
considered all the feedback received and taken account of it in the 
relocation. The service has now relocated to the new site. 

P
a

g
e
 6

4



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          19 

 
Consultation  

Theme 

 
Who was consulted, in what way and what 

information was provided? 

 
Feedback from the engagement activity and outcome of 

activity 
An independent review of 
the service user and carer 
experience of Psychiatric 
Liaison Service  

Users and Carers of the Psychiatric Liaison Service 
 
The review process included key stakeholder 
meetings, identification of current and ideal pathways, 
workforce review and capacity and demand. 

NHS Wirral committed an additional £490k to enhancing the service 
which included additional opening hours and additional clinical and 
advocacy support. 
Service extension has contributed to reduction in 4 hr A&E wait 
breaches. Service extended and independent advocacy support 
commissioned to support service users and carers with social and 
practical issues.  This resource has enabled clinicians within the 
unit to spend more time with patients as previously a proportion of 
their working hours were spent on dealing with social and practical 
issues. 

Development of an 
Integrated Care Pathway 
for Dementia 

Series of stakeholder workshop and carer forums to 
develop an ideal local pathway for dementia care. 

Local pathway established. Older People Mental Health Strategy 
developed and implemented. Additional carer support services 
commissioned. A development programme of dementia services 
(including Early Onset Dementia) agreed and implemented.  

Review into In Patient and 
Crisis Services for people 
of working age 
 

A number of stakeholder workshops were held which 
included service users and service user groups 

NHS Wirral recognised there was a reduction in occupancy and the 
changing pattern of provision and commissioned a review of 
Inpatient Services for Adults of Working Age in July 2009. 
 
The review identified the need to commission a local Personality 
Disorder Service which is now operational. The review will also 
inform the future commissioning of in-patient and crisis services. 

Review into In Patient and 
Crisis Services for people 
of working age 
 

A number of stakeholder workshops were held which 
included service users and service user groups 

NHS Wirral recognised there was a reduction in occupancy and the 
changing pattern of provision and commissioned a review of 
Inpatient Services for Adults of Working Age in July 2009. 
 
The review identified the need to commission a local Personality 
Disorder Service which is now operational. The review will also 
inform the future commissioning of in-patient and crisis services. 

Developing a locally 
agreed model for Primary  
Care Mental Health 
Services in Wirral 
 

The review included a series of workshops with key 
stakeholders including service users and carers which 
in turn informed the development of a new service. In 
addition, a series of service user/carer interviews and 
focus group meetings were held to ensure the views 
of the people who use the service and their carers 
were taken into account. 

In 2007 a full review of Primary Care Mental Health Services was 
undertaken which led to the decommissioning of existing services 
and commissioning of a new service. 
 
A full tender and procurement process followed to commission a 
new Primary Care Mental Health Service.  The selection process 
included a dedicated service user and carer panel who interviewed 
prospective bidders and contributed to contract award process. 

P
a
g
e
 6

5



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          20 

 
Consultation  

Theme 

 
Who was consulted, in what way and what 

information was provided? 

 
Feedback from the engagement activity and outcome of 

activity 
CCO Local CQUIN goals Patient and carer workshop identified quality 

improvement themes 
Themes captured and developed into local Commissioning for 
Quality & Innovation (CQUIN) metrics 

Dignity Older Peoples Parliament report into dignity at Wirral 
University Hospital Teaching Foundation Trust 
(WUTH) 
 
Report and Trust response discussed at WUTH 
Quality Review meeting 

Findings informed quality metrics in contract 10/11 
 

Quality Reviews Quality Team working with LINK to capture regular 
feedback on quality of provider services 

Concerns raised with provider Quality leads 
 

Carers Development 
Committee 
 

Attendance at Carers Association. Information given 
included reporting on Carers Action Plans.  

Feedback provided was used to inform future actions etc. 
 
Ongoing review of services for carers. To feed into commissioning 
for carers developments. 

Carers Strategic Plan Carers Survey to identify carers experience of access 
to health services for themselves and those they care 
for. 

Informed developments within the Carers Action Plans as part of 
the Carers Strategic Plan. 

NHS Constitution Staffs, Patients and Public were involved through a 
series of focus groups and a world café event. 
Information provided through the Department of 
Health (DOH) was distributed to participants. Initial 
consultation documents were circulated to the board 
via email, people were directed to the National 
exercise conducted through the DOH.  

Comments were gathered and submitted via an NHS Wirral 
response to the Department of Health (DOH).  

 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 6

6



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          21 

Table 2: NHS Wirral Consultation Activity 2009/10 Primary Care and Provider Services 

 

 
Consultation  

Theme 

 
Who was consulted, in what way and what information was 

provided? 

 
Feedback from the engagement activity and outcome of 

activity 

Podiatry 
 

Nail Surgery Satisfaction Survey and focus groups 
 

The survey led to the ability to meet demand for urgent cases 
and support patient’s choice of appointments. 

Nutrition and 
Dietetics 

Diabetes Care Evaluation  (questionnaire & focus group) 
 

Additional clinics put on to meet demand, diabetes education 
provided in both evening and day sessions. 

Safeguarding 
Service 

User satisfaction survey Young peoples views on LAC health 
assessments 

No changes made in year 

Wirral Heart 
Services 
 

Heart Failure Focus Group (changed from Patient satisfaction 
survey from outreach pilot) 

Obtained additional information books on Atrial Fibrillation for 
patients. Reviewed rehab service programme to reduce 
waiting times for access to gyms. Information posters about 
equipment listed above gym equipment for patients. 

Sexual Health and 
Chlamydia Service 

Patient Consultation Exercise 
 

Reviewed all Contraception & Sexual Health (CaSH) clinics 
based on feedback form Patient feedback of waiting times 

Physiotherapy & 
Rehabilitation 
Services 
 

User group 
Patient Subjective Questionnaire 
Telephone Survey/Corporate 

Conducted a 3 month pilot of extended operational times. 
Improved patient awareness of physiotherapy services in PCT 
and WUTH. Improved signposting to services and car park 
within Victoria Central Hospital (VCH) and St Catherine’s 
Hospital (SCH). Telephone survey indicated generally high 
levels of satisfaction with all aspects of the patient journey 

Speech & Language 
Therapy Service 

Stroke Patient/Relatives feedback 
 

Changed feedback process from drop in sessions as per 
request, now telephone contact and face to face sessions at 
relatives request. 

Community 
Equipment Stores 

Patient satisfaction deliveries 
Telephone Survey/Corporate 

Telephone survey was completed by only a small number of 
respondents, but indicated high levels of satisfaction with user 
experiences of the service. 

Infection Control 
Service 

Short questionnaire  Good level of awareness of targeted campaigns and 
satisfaction with training and education workshops. Resulted 
in changes to the information provided on webpage and 
variety of training sessions offered to services 

PCT Community 
Dental Service/ OOH 

Patient Satisfaction questionnaire 
 

Improved signposting to services within venues. 
 

Community Nursing Patient Satisfaction Survey (Provider Services Wide)  No changes made in year 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          22 

Health Visiting 
Service  

Initiative based on Frontline Friday feedback  

Community Nursing 
District Nursing 
Service  

Patient Satisfaction Survey (Provider Services Wide)  
Initiative based on Frontline Friday feedback 

Reviewed operational hours 
 

Active Case 
Management Team 
(Community 
Matrons)  

Patient Satisfaction Survey (Provider Services Wide)  
Initiative based on Frontline Friday feedback 

No changes made in year 
 

Wirral Admission 
Prevention Service  

Patient Satisfaction Survey (Provider Services Wide)  
 

An improvement plan has been developed, which will update 
patient information leaflets as well as staff training. 

Deep Vein 
Thrombosis 

Patient Satisfaction Survey (Provider Services Wide)  Improved signposting to service venue at Arrowe Park 
Hospital (APH). 

Wirral Integrated 
Continence Service  

Telephone Survey/Corporate Telephone survey was completed by only a small number of 
respondents, but indicated high levels of satisfaction with user 
experiences of all aspects of the patient journey 

Parkinson’s 
Specialist Nursing 
Service  

Patient Questionnaire   
 

Changes to the telephone advice line 

Specialist Palliative 
Care Service  

Patient Satisfaction Survey (Provider Services Wide)  
Patient and Carer Service Evaluation Questionnaire 

Feedback was positive on overall service satisfaction. Insights 
have lead to the review and development of the triage 
process, which will be conducted in partnership with 
stakeholders  

Tissue Viability 
Service  

Patient Satisfaction Survey  
 

Proposed simplification of verbal and written information 
shared with patients, including production of easy read format. 

Wirral learning 
Disability health 
Facilitators Service  

Feedback from Health Education Sessions 
 

No changes made in year 

Walk in Centres 
(VCH and APH) 

National Survey (Primary Care Foundation) 
Initiative based on Frontline Friday feedback 

 Responses showed a slightly above average number score 
the service as very good or excellent on timeliness and rate 
help from health professionals reasonably highly compared to 
many other services 

The Warrens 
Development -  a 
one stop primary 
care centre 

Consultation with West Wirral Group Practice and residents living 
within 0.5 miles of the site regarding the proposal to develop a one 
stop primary care centre where the Warrens Nursery formerly 
operated.  
 
Practice patient focus group led the development and final content 
of the consultation leaflet. Leaflets were sent by post to patients 

A total of 2725 patient responses were returned. 1766 strongly 
agreed with the proposal. 669 agreed. 117 disagreed and 173 
strongly disagreed.  
 
It was agreed to proceed with the development.  
 
Planning permission approved by Wirral Metropolitan Borough 

P
a

g
e
 6

8



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          23 

registered over 16 years of age totaling 12105 patients.  
 
The residents’ leaflets were circulated to all homes and 
businesses within half a mile of the site and to homes and 
businesses on roads which continued beyond the measure. 4574 
leaflets were distributed by mailshot with satellite tracking to 
confirm delivery.  
 
Public Meetings were held for patients and residents.  

Council in September 2009, and cleared by the Government 
office for the North West in the Autumn of 2009. 

Proposal for the 
modernisation and 
development of 
primary 
care facilities in NHS 
Wirral: proposal to 
relocate Greenway 
Road Surgery to the 
St Catherine’s 
development 

General Practice Patients - A copy of the consultation leaflet was 
sent to all patients aged 16 and over registered with the practice, 
and leaflets were available in the Surgery throughout the 
consultation period.  
 
Key Stakeholders - A public consultation event was held for the 
practice on 9 June, in the surgery building, between 4 – 7pm.  
Practice and PCT members, along with representatives from the 
Developers and Architects, were on hand to answer any queries. 
Details of the event were clearly highlighted in the consultation 
literature, in the surgery building, and on the PCT and Practice 
websites; the event was therefore made available to a wide range 
of stakeholders.  
 
Tranmere residents group were and still are actively involved.  
 
Consultation literature was produced that would allow respondents 
to comment specifically on the proposals to relocate the General 
Practice. 
 
Work was carried out with the practice to produce a leaflet which 
would convey the specific aspirations of the practice from the 
development and which would seek comments on the principle of 
relocating the practice to the St Catherine’s site. There was 
opportunity for respondents to state whether or not they were in 
agreement with the proposals outlined, and also for additional 
comments/questions to be raised. 

The most significant issues raised by respondents were in 
relation to the availability of free parking at the site and 
accessibility to the site, particularly for those who do not drive. 
76% of respondents agreed with the proposal, 22% disagreed 
whilst 2% made no comment. There were 624 responses 
received by the end of the consultation period (30 
June 2009). 475 voted yes, 138 voted no, 11 did not vote [but 
made a comment] 
 
The main issues raised in the negative responses were: car 
parking at St Catherine's, bigger surgeries mean more waiting 
times; losing personality; if it isn’t broke, don’t fix it; the costs 
of moving; waste of the current building; proximity to chemist 
at current site, do not wish to lose that; harder to access for 
the elderly, disabled and those with children. Positive 
comments made by more than one person included: this is a 
very good idea; in patient’s best interests; extra facilities will 
be excellent; good concentration of services. The main 
conditional issues raised in the positive votes were [as long 
as…]: car parking is available; there is a Chemist; no merge/ 
keep regular GP; appointment time is not affected; the old 
practice is utilized; local labour is used in the building works.  
 
There are currently issues with parking on the St Catherine’s 
site, which have been raised as part of the consultation 
process. However, as part of the redevelopment, it is 
proposed that more than 300 Headquarter staff, 
together with staff from the Wheelchair and Independent 
Living services, plus a number of clinical management staff – 
accounting for around 350/400 cars a day - will be 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          24 

permanently moved off the site. The new development will 
include 525 car parking spaces on site, compared with 
468 at present.  
 
Key Milestones for St Catherine’s were obtaining planning 
permission in September 2009, the full business Case (which 
included information on public engagement) was approved by 
our Board in September 2009 and latterly by the Strategic 
Health Authority in November 2009. A report went to Wirral 
Metropolitan Borough Council Overview and Scrutiny 
committee on 8th September 2009 on the scheme. 

Heswall 
redevelopment 

Practice patients are actively involved.  
 

The proposal was initially agreed and the planning appeal was 
not upheld at an inquiry in January of 2010.  

P
a

g
e
 7

0



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

25 

Practice Based Commissioning (PBC) 

 
Standing instructions to all PBCs Groups include the requirement to consult with 
patient groups regarding any investment discussions. Table 3 sets out where these 
have taken place.  
 

Table 3: List of Services Commissioned where the service commenced in 
2009/10 

 

Service 

Commissioned
What Service is Provided? Commissioner

Angina Service

Preventive health programme to "at risk" 

populations. Modern evidence based angina 

management.   

Wallasey Health 

Alliance

Musculoskeletal 

Clinical Up-Skilling  

Project

General Practitioner Special Interest to attend 

appointments within the Member general 

practice and undertake relevant clinical action 

and/ or observe & advise the GP undertaking 

clinical action.  

Wallasey Health 

Alliance

Facilitated Discharge 

Project

To improve discharge planning from hospital 

and ongoing home care

Wallasey Health 

Alliance

In-House Physio In-House Physiotherapy Service
Leasowe Primary 

Care Centre

Cognitive Behaviour 

Therapy Sessions
Cognitive Behaviour Therapy Sessions

Birkenhead 

Collective

Podiatry Service Podiatry Sessions - Triage and Clinic
Wirral PBC 

Consortium

Physiotherapy 

Service
Physiotherapy Sessions

Wirral PBC 

Consortium

Service for Vulnerable 

People

Home Visits to provide Screening/disease 

prevention

Devaney Medical 

Centre

 
 

 

Page 71



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          26 

Regional Projects 
 
NHS Wirral has also been involved in specialised commissioning on a regional basis in conjunction with other PCTs. Table 4 
details key activities carried out regionally which have influenced policy development in key specialised services.  
 
Table 4: Regional PPI Activity 
 

 
Consultation 

Theme 
 

 
Who was consulted, in what way and what 

information was provided? 
 

 
Feedback from the engagement activity and 

outcome of activity 
 

Bariatric 
Surgery 
Services 

Many of the providers of specialist bariatric surgery have 
patient support groups attached to them. This was an 
informal patient support group meeting. Around 10 
patients were present at the meeting. These were 
patients who had already undergone surgery, either at 
Spire or elsewhere, or who were awaiting surgery. 3 
carers were also present. All patients had 
undergone/were due to undergo surgery as part of the 
NHS contract. Some of the patients attending had also 
participated in primary care trust specialist weight 
management programmes. The North West Specialised 
Commissioning Team’s senior commissioning manager 
for bariatric services, and the Head of Communications, 
were also present, as were members of the nursing team 
from Spire. 
 
These were informal discussions. Commissioners 
explained the need for change. Patients talked about 
their experiences of surgery. Some felt it had been the 
best option for them, others described the complications 

Commissioners gained a great deal of insight about 
the patient experience along this pathway. The 
most powerful message coming from the event was 
the need for PCTs to invest in preparing patients 
for surgery and that efforts should be concentrated 
on specialist weight management initiatives in the 
community as, overall, the vast majority of the 
patients present would have preferred to lose 
weight without resorting to surgery. Commissioners 
have fed their findings into discussions with PCTs 
about the development of community weight loss 
services. Feedback to the patient group was 
informal, conveyed via the Chair of the group. 
Offers were also made to the group for 
commissioners to attend similar meetings in future, 
at their request. 
 
With regards to concerns raised about future 
access commissioners reassured them that those 
deemed in clinical need of surgery would receive it, 

P
a

g
e
 7

2



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          27 

they had suffered as a result of surgery, others reported 
how other forms of weight loss had proved ineffective.  
Services highlighted included specialist weight 
management courses and cognitive behavioral therapy. 
Patients were concerned that people waiting for surgery 
might not be able to access it in the future because their 
Body Mass Index (BMI) was not high enough. 

as per NICE guidance 

Teenagers and 
young adults 
with cancer 

A half-day conference was held at Haydock on 23rd 
September 2009, which attracted around 90 delegates 
from across the region. It was hosted by the North West 
Specialised Commissioning Team in conjunction with the 
North West cancer networks. The purpose of the event 
was to raise awareness, report progress and facilitate 
further engagement across the region on teenagers and 
young adults with cancer. The event aimed to cover the 
issues and challenges faced by this patient groups, and 
the implications for local teams and individuals delivering 
care. 
 

Key stakeholders from across the North West and North 
Wales involved in developing, designing and delivering 
teenage and young adult cancer services across the 
whole of the pathway took part. Several of the attendees 
were young people who had received or were presently 
on treatment for cancer. The conference involved 
presentations from national and internally renowned 
speakers on teenage and young adult cancer medicine 
and management. Issues covered in presentations 
included the importance of adult and paediatric teams 
working together and sharing expertise, the importance 
of good data sets, analysis and interpretation and the 
importance of research in this field to ensure that 
teenagers and young adults receive the best evidence-

Teenagers and young adults with cancer are 
considered to be a very vulnerable group of 
patients with special and specific needs, reflecting 
the transition from childhood to adulthood 
complicated by a cancer diagnosis and treatment. 
This results in complex management problems in 
looking after the young person and their families. 
 
Presentations on the day were followed by a panel 
formed by five young people who, together with the 
presenters, answered questions from the floor. 
There followed round table discussions on key 
areas of service development, focusing on how 
local teams could find potential solutions to the 
challenges posed by the NICE guidance and 
illustrated by patient experience. Patient stories 
about their experiences of being a teenager or 
young adult with cancer gave delegates to the 
conference a new awareness of, and different 
dimension to, cancer in this age group. This clearly 
enhanced the understanding of the delegates and 
was clearly demonstrated by feedback on the day. 
Emergent themes from the discussions were 
collated and shared with attendees and formed the 
basis of future workstreams for local teams and for 
several interested parties who volunteered to help 

P
a
g
e
 7

3



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          28 

based treatments available. There were also 
presentations on the practical issues associated with 
delivering teenage and young adult cancer services and 
the challenges faced by cancer networks. 

take this work forward. 

Expansion of 
haemodialysis 
capacity – E16 
scheme  
 
The expansion 
of 
haemodialysis 
capacity across 
Cheshire and 
Merseyside has 
been made 
possible as the 
result of the 
former 
Government’s 
independent 
sector 
procurement 
programme.  
 

This scheme has been project managed by the North 
West Specialised Commissioning Team from the start, in 
partnership with independent sector provider Fresenius 
Medical Care Renal Services and the Department of 
Health, working in conjunction with the main renal 
centre’s across the zone. 
 
The scheme has resulted in the refurbishment/expansion 
of existing facilities or the building of brand new state-of-
the-art units at six sites across the zone – Halton, 
Clatterbridge, Southport, St Helens, Warrington and 
Macclesfield. 2009/10 saw the opening of units at 
Southport (March 2009) and St Helens (February 2010), 
with Warrington opening in April 2010 and Macclesfield 
due to open in the autumn. When this final unit opens, 
the scheme will have created the potential for an 
additional 2,300 patients to receive their treatment in a 
modern, clean and safe environment. 
 
The main consultation was around the development of a 
range of units. Each of the units has had a site-specific 
project group attached to it to oversee development of 
each unit. Each of these groups includes patient 
representatives, usually – although not always – a 
current patient. Their role is to represent the view of 
fellow patients/carers, and provide feedback from 
meetings to those on the unit. Patient representatives 
attend planning meetings alongside the independent 
sector provider, clinicians and commissioners, as well as 

Planning meetings for Macclesfield are still ongoing 
but patients involved in the scheme elsewhere 
across the patch have had a direct influence on a 
number of issues such as the location of outpatient 
clinics. Patient views have informed the way in 
which outpatient services are delivered, with 
outpatient appointments now taking place at the 
Halton satellite unit, with an increased service at 
Warrington, rather than patients having to travel to 
the main renal centre in Liverpool. This change in 
the way services are provided is the direct result of 
patient views about transport links and the need for 
care closer to home. In terms of the units 
themselves, decisions about the kind of mattresses 
used on the dialysis stations as well as the colour 
of the walls, and the view out of the window, have 
all been influenced by the patient representatives, 
where the contract has allowed. The independent 
sector provider has encouraged patient input 
throughout the development of the various units 
and carries out regular patient satisfaction surveys 
which are viewed by the specialised 
commissioners as part of our monitoring of the 
contract. 
 
The North West Specialised Commissioning Team 
produces a patient newsletter for all patients 
undergoing haemodialysis at a unit which is part of 
the E16 scheme, as well as for those patients at 

P
a

g
e
 7

4



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          29 

a representative of the Kidney Federation and the 
Department of Health. Patients were asked to present 
their views on a number of issues affecting the 
development of the units such as décor, environment 
and facilities e.g. internet access. 
 
 

the main renal centres. This newsletter is written 
and produced by commissioners and is distributed 
to all satellite units. Patients are encouraged to 
contribute articles and photographs and we have 
used this method of communication to cover the 
official openings of all the units so far, so that 
patients can see that progress is being made 
across the zone.  

North West 
Children’s HIV 
Network parent 
consultation 
event -  

The North West perinatal and paediatric HIV 
parent/patient consultations have been running annually 
since 2006 and provide children/young people living with 
HIV and their parents/carers with the opportunity to meet 
medical/social care teams in a relaxed atmosphere to 
talk about getting the best out of HIV tertiary specialised 
services, which are accessed by patients in the North 
West and peripheral areas. 
 
The network consultation event took place in Manchester 
on 13th November and was organised by the Children 
and Young People’s HIV Social Work Team on behalf of 
the North West Perinatal and Paediatric HIV Network, 
which is hosted by the North West Specialised 
Commissioning Team. Due to the sensitivity and 
confidentiality of the subject matter, parents were 
consulted about who should be invited to the 
engagement event. Parents suggested that the event be 
small and informal and that only members of the network 
and clinicians be invited. In total, 17 parents/carers of 
children living with HIV attended as well as paediatric 
HIV specialist clinicians/nurses, support workers and 
specialised commissioners. The half-day workshop event 
consisted of presentations from parents about their 
experiences of caring for children living with HIV, and 

Parents felt they had learned a lot about HIV 
following their child’s diagnosis and were supported 
by medical staff throughout. However, they felt that 
other healthcare professionals e.g. GPs were 
sometimes ignorant about HIV and that there was 
some stigma associated with this group. 

Parents highlighted that disclosing HIV diagnosis to 
children was difficult, and that constant 
encouragement and support from HIV healthcare 
and voluntary support staff was vital. 

In terms of disclosure of diagnosis to children, 
parents/carers and HIV workers agreed that 
parents and staff needed to work together, identify 
somebody that the child can talk to about HIV, find 
out how much the child already knows about their 
condition, assess the child’s maturity and provide 
appropriate information, maintenance of 
confidentiality and on-going support and education. 

One of the issues raised on the day was 
psychological assessment of children living with 
HIV. It is hoped that the appointment of a 
psychologist for the Manchester Children’s HIV 

P
a
g
e
 7

5



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          30 

about the clinical and social support services which have 
helped them and their children; round-table discussions 
which consisted of six groups agreeing and outlining 
important issues for parents/carers and clinical/social 
care staff to consider when providing pre-disclosure 
support, the naming of HIV and post-disclosure support 
to children. Key themes included confidentiality, age-
appropriate information and on-going, continued support; 
and Q&A session whereby a panel of medical 
professionals answered parent/carer questions specific 
to children and young people living with HIV. The session 
finished with lunch and an opportunity to talk informally. 

Team would improve things for some families in the 
North West network. It was noted that other parts 
of the network should review the psychology 
services available to them. 
 
An evaluation of the event was carried out and a 
report was delivered to all those who attended. 
The findings from this event will be used to inform 
the future commissioning of these services. 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e
 7

6



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

31 

Current Consultation Activity 
 
Currently underway is a programme of evaluations linked to the priority areas 
identified within NHS Wirral strategic plan. Details of active projects are listed in Table 
5 below:  

Table 5: NHS Wirral Current Evaluation Programmes 

Programme 
Area 

Priority 

Obesity 
Programme 

§ Explore awareness of the Child Weight management services provided by the 
Lifestyle & Weight management service and MEND (Mind, Exercise, Nutrition…Do it!) 
within the target group, the impact of the services on the target group, users’ 
experiences of the services, the target group’s behavioural and lifestyle changes, the 
appropriateness of the services for the target group and any perceived barriers to 
access. 

§ Explore reasons for non-use and any barriers to accessing the child weight 
management services as perceived by non-users in the target group. 

Health 
Inequalities 
Programme 

§ Explore awareness of the Health Action Areas (HAA) programme within the target 
group, use of other services prior to availability of the HAA programme, the impact of 
the HAA initiative on the target group and users’ experiences of the HAA services,  

§ Assess the appropriateness of the HAA services for the target group and any barriers 
to accessing the HAA programme. 

§ Explore client awareness, perceptions and experiences of Wirral Working for Health 
(WW4H), the impact of the initiative on the target group, the appropriateness of the 
services for the target group and any perceived barriers to access. 

§ Employers’ perceptions of the WW4H service 
§ Staff perceptions of the WW4H service, in terms of the process, delivery and 

perceived effectiveness and any barriers to access staff may be able to identify. 

CVD / Stroke 
Programme 

§ Assess the experience of patient’s referred to the intermediate heart failure service to 
determine how this contributes to their experience of the intermediate care service, 
point of care testing and health check to their overall Cardiovascular disease (CVD) 
risk management 

§ Assess GP and staff’s engagement with the intermediate heart failure service and 
point of care testing 

COPD 
Programme 

§ Assess the experience of patient’s referred to Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary 
Disease (COPD)/Oxygen (O2) service to determine how this contributes to overall 
COPD management 

§ Assess the service provider (GP, Health Care Professionals, etc) experience of how 
COPD/02 contributes to overall COPD management 

§ Assess COPD service user experience of the Primary Care Assessment Unit (PCAU)  
§ Assess service provider experience of the PCAU  

Page 77



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

32 

 
Programme 

Area 
Priority 

Sexual Health 
Programme 

 
 

§ Assess young people’s levels of awareness of the Health Services in Schools (HSIS) 
initiative and associated social marketing campaign 

§ Assess why certain young people, to be identified by NHS Wirral, are not accessing 
the HSIS services and any barriers that may exist to access 

§ Assess perceptions, satisfaction levels, self-assessment of lifestyle changes, 
behaviours, level of knowledge following HSIS implementation 

Alcohol 
Programme 

§ Assess the overall experience of service users of each of the Alcohol services to 
determine how this contributes to overall condition management. 

§ Assess the service users’ experience of (and barriers to) entry to Alcohol services, 
and experience of (and barriers to) effective transition between elements of the 
treatment pathways, including discharge procedures. 

§ Assess the service users’ experiences of aftercare and support services, and their 
effectiveness in reducing relapse and need for hospital re-admission or other 
treatment. 

§ Assess reasons for non take up of services and barriers to access 
§ Assess the service provider (GP, Health Care Professionals, etc) experience of how 

the Alcohol Programme contributes to overall condition management and its wider 
implications, including services that interface with their own. 

Smoking 
Programme 

§ Compare quit rates and other relevant data (such as registration, intent to quit, 
support content and delivery) through ‘Your reason, your way’ campaign compared 
with those from traditional NHS Wirral Stop Smoking Services 

§ Measure awareness of the variety of quit methods available 
§ Establish the most effective methods for engaging with smokers and achieving a quit 

attempt (mobile outreach trailer, web based resource, incentive scheme in 
association with Asda, Black and Minority Ethnic community champions, 
Neighbourhood champions)  

§ Establish the most effective support and follow-up methods (phone, letter, text, email)  
§ Establish barriers to re-engagement with the campaign and positive facilitators to re-

engagement with campaign after a failed quit attempt 
§ Establish reasons for sign up or non-engagement by smokers in comparison to 

traditional services 
§ Consider the cost-effectiveness of this approach 
§ Establish the views of the service providers involved in the social marketing campaign 

with particular regard to their perceptions and experience around effectiveness, 
accessibility, appropriateness and impact 

Mental Health 
Programme 

§ Effectiveness of Columbia team Dialectical behavior therapy (DBT) service (50 
vulnerable families) in respect of user experience and health impact 

End of Life 
Care 

Programme 

§ Initial candidate for evaluation (night sitting service) is still being scoped out. The 
priorities for this evaluation are in development with Programme Manager. 

 

 

 
 

Page 78



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

33 

Table 6: Current Regional Programmes 

Consultation 
Theme 

Details 

Paediatric 
Cardiac 
Surgery 
Review - The 
NHS 
Management 
Board asked 
the National 
Specialised 
Commissioning 
Group to 
examine the 
way that 
children’s heart 
surgery 
services and 
interventional 
cardiology 
services are 
provided in 
England, with a 
view to 
reconfiguration. 
The objective 
of the 
programme is 
to deliver safe 
and sustainable 
services into 
the future. 
 

There are currently 11 children’s heart surgery centers’ in England with 
approximately 30 surgeons conducting children’s heart operations across 
the country. Between them they carry out around 3,800 procedures a 
year. The principles of the programme are delivery of the highest 
standards of care, regardless of where a child lives; services based 
around the needs of the child and their family, taking account of the 
transition to adult services; all relevant treatment, including follow-up, 
must be provided as close as possible to where each family lives. 
 

Site visits to all 11 service providers took place in June 2010, followed by 
a series of patient/carer engagement events. The outcome of the site 
visits and engagement events will inform the discussions of Specialised 
Commissioning Group Chairs, who will meet during the summer to decide 
recommendations for reconfiguration of services.  Formal, facilitated 
patient engagement events were held in each of the regions in June/July 
2010. The North West event took place on 16th June in Warrington and 
was attended by around 80 patients/carers, clinicians, specialist nurses, 
specialised commissioners. Members of the North West Specialised 
Commissioning Group were also invited to attend. The engagement event 
took the form of an overall presentation about the background to the 
review, and an extensive Q&A with an expert panel which included 
national and regional specialised commissioners, local clinicians and a 
member of the national steering group. Information from this event will be 
fed into national discussions about the reconfiguration options. Parents 
attending engagement events around the country – including the North 
West – will receive an email from the national team, asking them to weight 
a number of issues, rating their importance to them. This will be followed 
by full public consultation in the autumn.  
 

Key themes emerging from the patient/carer engagement event were: 
Improved support for patients and families from community services; 
better understanding of paediatric heart conditions among both primary 
and secondary care staff; concern about the future development of 
services, given the current economic climate; the need for more paediatric 
cardiac surgeons; concern about a reduction in the number of paediatric 
intensive care beds; improved antenatal and diagnostic services; travel 
times to surgical centres; problems accessing the right level of treatment 
when dialing 999; transition services for children moving into adult 
services; patient choice; specialist nursing support, and accommodation 
for carers at surgical centres. 
 

There will be a full public consultation in the autumn and the outcome of 
the consultation is expected around April 2011. 

Page 79



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

34 

Future Plans 
 
NHS Wirral is committed to ensuring the voice of patients and the public are at the 
forefront of service developments and improvements both within its own organisation 
and with the wider health economy. Plans are in place to build on the progress made 
during 2009/10 and the foundations are in place across all work streams to guarantee 
the continued focus on patient involvement and engagement and improving the patient 
experience. An example of this includes the insertion of comprehensive schedules that 
have been incorporated into all the main health services contracts detailing the activity 
that providers have to complete, specifically regarding patient and public involvement, 
in order to fulfill the terms of the contract.  
 
NHS Wirral has invested funds into developing systems to capture near real time 
patient experiences.  Capturing experiences at the time patients have them allows for 
organisations to take immediate action and make improvements. Equipment such as 
touch screen survey kiosks and dictaphones have been purchased and will be used 
throughout 2010/11 to develop this methodology further. Specific plans relating to this 
activity can be found in our Involvement Plan and Communications and Engagement 
Strategy. The Communications and Engagement Strategy is available on our website 
at: www.wirral.nhs.uk/aboutnhswirral/planspoliciesandpublications/strategicplans/  
 
 

Consultation on the Report 
 
NHS Wirral has endeavored to be fully inclusive in the development of this report and 
a period of consultation and opportunity for feedback was facilitated throughout July 
and August 2010. Groups consulted included PCT management boards, Wirral LINks, 
Wirral Carers Association, NHS Wirral PPI Committee, Wirral Council Health and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to final approval by NHS Wirral 
Board in September.  
 
 

Page 80



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

35 

Further Information 
 
If you would like any further information on anything referred to within this report or 
would like to provide feedback on the content of the report, please do not hesitate to 
contact us through the Have Your Say Team:  
 

• Call and speak face-to-face to the ‘Have Your Say’ Team at:  
 
 Old Market House 
 Hamilton Street 
 Birkenhead 
 Merseyside 
 CH41 5FL 
 Tel: 0151 647 4251 
 

• Telephone us on our freephone number 0800 085 1547 

• Write to us at  HAVE YOUR SAY, FREEPOST * 

• Complete our online feedback form at: www.wirral.nhs.uk 

• E-mail us at: haveyoursay@wirral.nhs.uk 

• Or text us on 07781 472493. 
 

* This is the full Freepost address to reach the Have Your Say Team. 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

36 

Glossary of Terms  
 
 

All Day Health 
Centre 

The All Day Health Centre (formerly known as the Walk-in 
Centre) offers a drop in service, with no appointment necessary.  

Analysis 

The process of looking for patterns in information to identify cause 
and effect or answer specific questions, such as whether a treatment 
works and what the risks are.  

There are two types of analysis. Quantitative analysis looks for 
patterns in the form of numbers, such as most frequent choice of 
treatment option or average rating of pain during treatment. 
Qualitative analysis looks for patterns of meaning, feeling or beliefs. 
It can lead to a finding such as 'most people who support paying 
more for end of life therapy also believe society should give more to 
those with greater need. 

Body Mass Index 
The body mass index (BMI) is a statistical measure of body weight 
based on a person's weight and height. 

Care Quality 
Commission 

The independent regulator of health and social care. From April 2009, 
the CQC brought together the work of the Commission for Social Care 
Inspection (CSCI), the Healthcare Commission and the Mental Health 
Act Commission. 

Carer 

Person who provides a substantial amount of care on a regular basis, 
and is not employed to do so by an agency or organisation. Carers are 
usually friends or relatives looking after someone at home who is 
elderly, ill or disabled. 

Chronic 

 

Term used to describe a disease, condition or health problem which 
persists over a long period of time. The illness may recur frequently 
and in some cases may lead to partial or permanent disabilities. 
Examples include arthritis, diabetes and hypertension.  

Citizens Panel 
A Citizens' Panel is a large, demographically representative group of 
citizens regularly used to assess public preferences and opinions. 

Commissioning 
The processes local authorities and primary care trusts (PCTs) 
undertake to make sure that services funded by them meet the needs 
of the patient. 

Community 
Equipment  

The range of equipment used for home nursing such as pressure relief 
mattresses and commodes, and equipment for daily living that is 
usually provided by local authorities such as shower chairs and raised 
toilet seats. 

Consultations 
Consultations are an opportunity for stakeholders and the wider public 
to contribute to government policies on a National or local level. 

Contracting 
The practice of organisations purchasing services from the private 
sector, charities or other bodies rather than providing the services 
themselves.  

Page 82



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

37 

Equality and 
Diversity 

Equality involves recognising that everyone should be given access 
to the same opportunities, irrespective of their age, religion, class, 
ethnicity, sexuality or gender.  

Equality Impact 
Assessments 

An equality impact assessment is a tool for identifying the potential 
impact of NHS policies, services and functions on its residents and 
staff. It can help staff provide and deliver excellent services to 
residents by making sure that these reflect the needs of the 
community. 

Evidence Based 
'Evidence-based' decisions or recommendations are based on 
research findings that have been systematically appraised - that is, 
the best available evidence. 

Evaluation 
An assessment of an intervention (for example, a treatment, service, 
project, or programme) to see whether it achieves its aims. 

Expert Patients 
Patients who become experts at managing their condition on a day to 
day basis. 

General Practitioner 
Special Interest 

GPs that supplement their generalist role by delivering a clinical 
service beyond the normal scope of general practice. 

Have Your Say 

The Have Your Say Service provides a confidential service, helping 
you to sort out any concerns you may have about th care you are 
receiving, and guiding you through the different services available from 
the NHS.  

Health Action Areas 
Health Action Areas are designated areas in Wirral that have the 
poorest health.  

Health Inequalities 
Work that contributes to the narrowing of the health gap between 
disadvantaged groups, communities and the rest of the country. 

Independent sector 
An umbrella term for all non NHS bodies delivering health care, which 
includes a range of private companies and voluntary organisations. 

Integrated 
Commissioning 

Joint Commissioning between Health and Social Care Services.  

Learning Disability 
Disabilities that reduce a person's ability to understand new or 
complex information, learn new skills and cope independently. 

Local Involvement 
Networks (LINks) 

Local Involvement Networks (LINks) are individuals and groups from 
across the community who are funded and supported to hold local 
health and social care services to account.  

Metrics 

Metrics are a set of measurements that quantify results. Performance 
metrics quantify the units performance. Project metrics tell you 
whether the project is meeting its goals. Business metrics define the 
business' progress in measurable terms. 

National Association 
of Patient 
Participation 

N.A.P.P. is the umbrella organisation for Patient Participation Groups 
(PPGs) within primary care.  

National Institute for 
Health and Clinical 

Independent organisation that provides national guidance on the 
promotion of good health and the prevention and treatment of ill health 

Page 83



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

38 

Excellence (NICE) 

NHS Constitution 

The constitution brings together in one place details of what staff, 
patients and the public can expect from the National Health Service. It 
explains what you can do to help support the NHS, help it work 
effectively, and help ensure that its resources are used responsibly. 

Non-Executive 
Director 

A non-executive director (NED) is a member of the board of directors 
of NHS Wirral who does not form part of the executive management 
team. He or she is not an employee of the company or affiliated with it 
in any other way. They are public representatives on the board.  

Palliative Care 
Improving the quality of life of patients who have a life threatening 
illness. 

Patient Advice 
Liaison Service 

Services that provide information, advice and support to help patients, 
families and their carers. 

Patient and Public 
Involvement 

Involving the public in shaping a care system’s development, and 
keeping patients well informed of clinical processes and decisions. 

Practice Based 
Commissioning 

PBC engages practices and other primary care professionals in the 
commissioning of services. 

Primary Care 
Assessment Unit 

The Primary Care Assessment Unit is a GP led service situated in 
Ward 43, Arrowe Park Hospital, Wirral Hospital Trust. The aim of the 
service is to provide Primary Care investigation and treatment 
ensuring patients get appropriate care, and avoiding unnecessary 
admission to hospital. 

Primary Care Trust 
NHS bodies with responsibility for delivering health care services and 
health improvements to their local areas. 

Quality Accounts 
Quality Accounts aim to enhance accountability to the public and 
engage the leaders of an organisation in their quality improvement 
agenda. 

Quality Assurance 
Processes 

The process by which the PCT makes sure that the services they pay 
for are of the right quality, safe for patients and are based on patients 
needs.  

Stakeholders 

NHS Wirral has a wide range of stakeholders that all share an interest 
in its work, including patients and the public, local and regional NHS 
organisations, local authorities and social care providers, charities, 
and the voluntary and community sector. 

Strategic Plan 
A plan that every primary care trust (PCT) prepares and agrees with its 
strategic health authority (SHA) on how to invest its funds to meet its 
local and national targets, and improve services.  

Third Sector 
Non public private organisations that are motivated by a desire to 
further social, environmental or cultural objectives rather than to make 
a profit. 

Voluntary and 
community sector 

Groups set up for public or community benefit such as registered 
charities, and non charitable non profit organisations and associations. 

Page 84



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

39 

Abbreviations 
 
APH Arrowe Park Hospital 
BMI Body Mass Index 
CCO Clatterbridge Centre for Oncology 
COPD Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease 
CQC Care Quality Commission 
CQUIN Commissioning for Quality and Innovation 
CVD Cardiovascular Disease 
DBT Dialectical Behaviour Therapy  
DOH Department of Health 
EIAs Equality Impact Assessments 
GP General Practitioner 
HAA Health Action Areas 
HSIS Health Services in Schools 
HYS Have Your Say 
LINks Local Involvement Networks 
MEND Mind, Exercise, Nutrition……Do it! 
NAPP National Association on Patient Participation 
NHS National Health Service 
NICE National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence  
O2 Oxygen 
OOH Out of Hours 
PALs Patient Advice and Liaison Service 
PBC Practice Based Commissioning 
PCAU Primary Care Assessment Unit 
PCT Primary Care Trust 
PPG Patient Participation Group 
PPI Patient and Public Involvement 
SCH St Catherine’s Hospital 
VCAW Voluntary and Community Action Wirral 
VCH Victoria Central Hospital 
WCC World Class Commissioning 
WMO Wirral Multicultural Organisation 
WUTH Wirral University Teaching Hospital 
WW4H Wirral Working for Health 

Page 85



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

          40 

Working together for a healthier future

Involve and 

empower people

Target 

inequalities 

through effective 

partnerships

Ensure 

excellence 

in our health

services 

Be a high 

performance, 

high reputation 

organisation 

Patient and Public Involvement 

Integrated Communications & Engagement Strategy 

Support NHS 

Wirral’s strategic 
priorities 

through effective 
communications 
and engagement 

Improving 

patients 
experience of 

services 
commissioned 
by NHS Wirral  

Informing 
directly-managed 

service plans 

Use a more 
targeted 

approach to 
engage and 

communicate 
our plans and 
proposals for 

services 

Improve internal 

communications 
to support staff, 

clinical and 
contractor 
engagement 

Reputation 

management 

NHS Wirral 

strategic plan: 

aspirations  

The link from the 

strategic plan to the 

Communications 

& Engagement 

Strategy 

Communications 

& Engagement 

Strategic 

Objectives 

Appendix 1 – Communications and Engagement Strategy links with NHS Wirral Strategic 
Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 8

6



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

41 

Appendix 2 – Patient and Public Involvement Committee 
Terms of Reference 
 

Patient & Public Involvement Committee 
Terms of Reference 

 
Constitution 

 
1. The Board hereby resolves to establish the Patient & Public Involvement (PPI) 

Committee as a Committee of the Board.  The PPI Committee has no executive 
powers other than those specifically delegated in these Terms of Reference. 

 
Membership 
 
2. The PPI Committee will be appointed by the Board. 

 
3. The PPI Committee will comprise the following members: 

• Chair (Non Executive Director) 

• Two Non Executive Directors 

• Director of Engagement ((Executive Lead) 

• Joint Director of Public Health 

• Two Wirral LINks representatives  

• Two other Voluntary & Community Sector representatives 

• Patient representative 

• Carer representative 

• Head of Involvement  

• Head of Communications (or representative) 

• Director of Health Systems Management (or representative) 

• Deputy Director of Strategic Partnerships 

• Director of HR 

• Staff-side representative   

• Social Care, Health & Inclusion Overview & Scrutiny Committee representative 
 
and will be chaired by a Non Executive Director.  A quorum will be 4 members and 
must include the Director of Engagement (or other PCT Executive Director), a Non 
Executive Director and a LINks representative. 

 
2. The Committee will also request representation from the following key posts within the 

PCT: 

• Senior managers responsible for PPI at main providers (eg. WUTH)  

• Head of Provider Services 

• One nominated Head of Locality  

• Head of Governance (or representative) 

• Have Your Say Programme Manager (PALS service)  

• Public Health Programme Manager  

• Equality & Diversity Lead 

Page 87



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

42 

• Link Officer 
 
Other senior managers will attend when they have papers to present.  Any Board 
member who is not a member of the Committee may attend as a non-voting observer 
by agreement with the Chair of the Committee. 
 

Attendance 
 
2. The Board & Corporate Support Manager will make arrangements to ensure that the 

Committee is supported administratively.  Duties in this respect will include taking 
minutes of the meeting and providing appropriate support to the Chairman and 
committee members.   

 
3. Agendas and papers will be distributed at least four working days (or three plus a 

weekend) in advance of the meeting. 

 
Frequency 
 

4. The Committee will meet on a quarterly basis.  Additional meetings may be called if 
required.   

 
Authority 
 
5. In order to facilitate the achievement of good governance, the PPI Committee is 

authorised by the Board to investigate any activity within its terms of reference.  It is 
authorised to seek any information it requires from any employee and all employees 
are directed to co-operate with any request made by the PPI Committee. 

 
6. Minutes of the PPI Committee will be presented to the Board.  

 
7. Matters for consideration by the PPI Committee may be nominated by any member of 

the Committee or Executive Director of the PCT. 
 

8. The PPI Committee is authorised by the PCT Board to obtain outside legal or other 
independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of advisers with relevant 
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary. 

 

Function/Purpose of the Committee 
 
9. The purpose/role of the PPI Committee will be to advise the PCT Board in ensuring 

that the PCT involves patients and the public in a planned and proactive way, which is 
integrated with other local partners wherever possible and co-ordinated with staff 
engagement activities as appropriate, in order to shape services around the needs and 
preferences of individual users, patients, their families and their carers. 
 

Duties 
 
10. The PPI Committee will propose its terms of reference for agreement by the PCT 

Board, specifying its composition, governance and reporting arrangements.  

Page 88



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

43 

 
11. In order to fulfill its role effectively, the PPI Committee will: 
 

• ensure that the PCT meets its legal duties as outlined in the NHS Act 2006:  
Section 242 and 244 

• ensure that the PCT engages in meaningful dialogue with the local community, 
patients and public to inform the commissioning and planning of services in 
accordance with Section 11 of the Health & Social Care Act, eg. LINks 

• oversee work to develop new models of stakeholder engagement, in order to 
enhance PCT accountability as a commissioner and provider of healthcare for and 
on behalf of the local population 

• oversee development and implementation of auditable processes for PPI activities in 
all areas of service commissioning and provision, including ensuring appropriate 
involvement at the early stages of new service development or significant redesign  

• in particular, the PPI Committee should assure itself (on behalf of the Board and 
Integrated Governance Committee) that the PCT is fulfilling its responsibilities under 
World Class Commissioning to ensure improvement in panel assessment under 
Competency 3 

• assure itself of the effective involvement of public and patient involvement in 
Practice Based Commissioning plans  

• assure itself of the effective implementation of the PCT Involvement Strategy, co-
ordinating the efforts of all PCT Directorates, and ensure that the supporting Action 
Plan delivers key milestones (including Standards for Better Health, PPI Self 
Assessment Framework, key national policy initiatives etc) within agreed timescales 

• oversee the development of a wider engagement strategy 

• develop quality control processes for patient surveys and other techniques 
employed to assess patient satisfaction with commissioned and PCT provider 
services, and advise the Corporate Directors Group and PCT Board on actions 
required to ensure relevant quality improvements 

• establish and maintain links with other Committees and groups both inside and 
outside the PCT, ensuring a seamless approach to Patient and Public Involvement 

• identify key themes and significant concerns arising from Have Your Say (including 
PALS) contacts, and advise the PCT Board of the need for resulting actions or 
outstanding issues 

• ensure that the PCT meets its statutory obligations with regard to Equality & 
Diversity and adheres to national guidance in respect of such matters as: 

o publishing annual report and accounts  
o holding an Annual General Meeting  
o publishing a Guide to Local Health Services and distributing to all 

households in the Wirral area 
 

Relationship to the Board & Reporting Arrangements 
 

12. The minutes of the PPI Committee shall be formally recorded by the Committee 
Secretary and submitted to the PCT Board.  The Chair of the PPI Committee shall draw 
to the attention of the Board any issues that require disclosure to the full Board, or 
require executive action. Items relating to assurance of Competency 3 of World Class 
Commissioning should also be reported to Integrated Governance Committee. 

 

Page 89



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

44 

13. The Committee will produce an annual report on the decisions it has taken and submit 
for the Board’s consideration. 

 
 
 

Links with Other Committees/Groups 
 
17. The minutes of the Maternity Services Liaison Committee will be submitted for noting. 
 

Review 
 
18. These Terms of Reference shall be reviewed annually by the Patient & Public 

Involvement Committee, with recommendations made to the PCT Board for any 
amendments.  Thereafter, the Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually by the 
PCT Board to ensure they are still appropriate. 

 
 
 
 

Page 90



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

45 

Appendix 3 – PPI Committee Annual Work Plan Report 
 

Patient & Public Involvement Committee 
Annual Report 2009-2010 

 

Frequency of Meetings 
 
1. The Patient & Public Involvement Committee meets quarterly and has held 4 meetings 

from April 2009 – March 2010. 
 

Key Issues 
 
2. The following table details the regular items taken to each Committee and the 

frequency of those submissions: 
 

Frequency Date of Submission Item 

Communications Update 

Complaints, Incidents and Communications Activity 
Reports  

Scrutiny Report 

Committee Workplan  

Update on LINks 

Each 
meeting 

 

Equality and Diversity 
 
3. The table below details the key issues discussed at each meeting: 
 

Date of 
Meeting  
2009/10 

Area Item 

Engagement Communications and Engagement Strategy 

Engagement PCT Membership Scheme 

Engagement Communications and Engagement Proposal to support the 
commissioning of a Male Circumcision (MC) service for non 
clinical reasons. 

Engagement Hospital Discharge Scrutiny Review, The patient experience 
of older people in the Wirral – Response to 
Recommendations 

14 May 

Premises 
Development 

Premises update 

Engagement Carers Development  

• Life Channel video 

• WIRED Carers Information DVD 

Governance  Healthcare Commission Standards for Better Health 

9 July 

Access Scrutiny report – Integrated Care at Home 

Page 91



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

46 

Date of 
Meeting  
2009/10 

Area Item 

Urgent Care Scrutiny report – Primary Care Assessment Unit (PCAU) 

WCC World Class Commissioning Competency 3 update 

Engagement LSP Comprehensive Engagement Strategy 

Governance Governance Issues 

Governance Terms of Reference 

Access Scrutiny Report – Choose and Book 

Cancer Scrutiny report – Cancer Network PPI 

Premises 
Development 

Scrutiny Report – Update on St. Catherine’s and St. Warrens 

Public Health Health and Wellbeing OSC 

Engagement Public Perception Survery 

Engagement Membership Update 

15 October 

Governance Provider Assurances  

Governance NHS Wirral Provider Assurance 

• Wirral University Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

• Primary Care and Provider Services 

Governance Real Accountability Guidance – Committee Annual Report 
and Committee Workplan 

Health 
Inequalities 

Scrutiny Report – Health Action Areas Progress Report 

Learning 
Disabilities 

Scrutiny Report – Learning Disabilities presentation 

Engagement  Communications and Engagement Database/ Promice 

Engagement Communications and Engagement Strategy Refresh 

21 January 

Governance Risks related to Patient and Public Involvement Committee 

 
4. The following table details the decision taken by the Committee and when the Board 

was advised of said decision via the Committee Minutes: 
 

Date of Meeting  
2009/10 

Decision Taken Board advised  
(meeting date) 

14 May There were no decisions for noting. 
 

9 June 2009 

9 July • AS to progress Staff side representative. 

• Head of Governance to be asked to 
come to the next meeting. 

• A full update report on PAL and Have 
Your Say will be brought to the next 
meeting. 

• Head of Complaints to be invited to next 

8 September 
2009 

Page 92



NHS Wirral  PPI Annual Report 2009/10 
 

  
   
  
   

47 

Date of Meeting  
2009/10 

Decision Taken Board advised  
(meeting date) 

meeting. 

15 October There were no decisions for noting. 
 

10 November 
2009 
 

21 January There were no decisions for noting. 
 

13 April 2010 
 

 
 
Chris Allen 

Chair of Committee 

 
Martin McEwan 

Lead Director 

 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
9 SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
REPORT OF THE JOINT DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH, WIRRAL 
 
PROSTATE CANCER  
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Executive Summary 
 
In response to the Council Motion 108: Prostate Cancer in Wallasey and 
Moreton and amendments (Council – 15 February 2010); this briefing paper 
provides a brief overview of prostate cancer and the Prostate-Specific Antigen 
(PSA) Test.  It also outlines the reasons why the National Screening Committee 
has recommended that population screening for prostate cancer should not be 
introduced in England, and information on the Department of Health informed 
choice programme known as ‘Prostate Cancer Risk Management’. 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1  Prostate cancer is second only to lung cancer as England’s biggest cancer 

killer in males.  Each year in the UK about 35,000 men are diagnosed with 
prostate cancer and 10,000 die from the disease.  From 2002 to 2008 
there were 407 deaths from prostate cancer in Wirral.  The number of 
deaths for prostate cancer was about the same as would be expected 
when compared to the rate of death in England as a whole.   

 
1.2 The disease is rare in men under 40 years of age.  The average age at 

diagnosis is 70-74 years.  It is more common in men with a family history of 
the disease and in some ethnic groups.  Black African and black Caribbean 
men in England are three times more likely to get prostate cancer than 
white men, but South Asian men are less likely to get prostate cancer.   

 
1.3 There has been considerable media focus on the disease, along with calls 

for the introduction of a national prostate cancer screening programme. 
 
1.4 Natural History of the Cancer: 
 

1.4.1 No cause of prostate cancer, either genetic or environmental, has 
yet been discovered.  The natural history of the cancer is not fully 
understood and prostate cancer does not behave like other cancers.   

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 95



 

1.4.2. Two common types of prostate cancers are the tumours that grow 
rapidly and can spread to other parts of the body (dubbed ‘tigers’) 
and those that remain localised to the prostate gland and grow very 
slowly (dubbed ‘pussycats’).  The localised slow-growing tumours 
often produce no symptoms and do not shorten life, while full-blown 
treatment (with surgery or radiotherapy) can cause incontinence 
and impotence. 

 
1.4.3 There is no way of predicting which localised, slow-growing prostate 

cancers will become aggressive, grow and spread (i.e. turn from 
‘pussycats’ into ‘tigers’), leaving men and doctors with difficult 
decisions about treatment.   

 
1.5 The Prostate-Specific Antigen (PSA) Test: 
 

1.5.1 The prostate-specific antigen (PSA) test is currently the best 
method of identifying an increased risk of localised prostate cancer.  
The PSA test is a blood test that measures the level of PSA in the 
blood.  PSA is made by the prostate gland, and some of it will leak 
into the bloodstream depending on age and the health of the 
prostate. 

 
1.5.2 However, there are a number of uncertainties surrounding the PSA 

test and the diagnosis and treatment of prostate cancer.  A raised 
PSA level may mean a person has prostate cancer.  However, other 
conditions which are not cancer (for example, enlargement of the 
prostate, prostatitis, urinary infection) can also cause higher PSA 
levels in the blood.  About 2 out of 3 men with a raised PSA level 
will not have prostate cancer.  The higher the level of PSA, the more 
likely it is to be a sign of cancer.  The PSA test can also miss 
cancer. 

 

Benefits and limitations of the PSA test 

The benefits of PSA testing The limitations of PSA testing 

• It may be reassuring if the test result 
is normal 

• It can miss cancer and provide false 
reassurance 

• It may give men an indication of 
cancer before symptoms develop 

• It may lead to unnecessary worry 
and medical tests when there is no 
cancer. 

• It may find cancer at an early state 
when treatments could be of benefit. 

• It cannot tell the difference between 
slow-growing and fast-growing 
cancer. 

• If treatment is successful, the worst 
possible outcomes of more 
advanced cancer, including death, 
are avoided. 

• It may make men worry by finding 
slow-growing cancers that may 
never cause any symptoms or 
shorten your life. 

• Even if the cancer is more advanced 
and treatment is less successful, it 
will usually extend life. 

• 48 men will undergo treatment in 
order to save one life. 

Page 96



 

 1.5.3. Currently, there is no evidence that the benefits of a PSA-based  
  screening programme would outweigh the harms. 
 

1.5.4 The majority of prostate cancers detected by screening are early 
cancers that may become ‘tigers’ but are more likely to be 
‘pussycats’.  Finding more of these cancers leads to distress and 
anxiety and potentially to unnecessary treatment resulting in 
impotence and incontinence.  It may be only when correct 
identification of ‘tigers’ at an early stage and better treatments are 
possible that population screening becomes viable.   

 
1.5.5. New evidence from a prostate cancer screening trial in Europe has 

shown that ‘screening’ reduced mortality by 20 per cent. However, 
this was associated with a high level of over treatment. To save one 
life, 48 additional cases of prostate cancer needed to be treated. 
The UK National Screening Committee has recommended that a 
national prostate cancer screening programme should not be 
introduced in England at this time, but they will continue to keep the 
situation under review.  

 
1.5.6 An informed choice programme, ‘Prostate Cancer Risk 

Management’, has been introduced.  This is to ensure that men who 
are concerned about the risks of prostate cancer receive clear and 
balanced information about the advantages and disadvantages of 
the PSA test and treatment for prostate cancer.  GPs have received 
an information pack to assist them in the counselling of men who 
enquire about testing.  This pack helps primary care teams to 
provide men with information on the benefits and limitations of the 
PSA test.  

 
1.6 Next Steps - The Wirral Cancer Network Group has developed a DRAFT 

Cancer Prevention and Early Detection action plan to ensure progress in 
reducing the burden of cancer In Wirral and to reduce excess deaths from 
cancer. 

 
2 Strategic Action Plan Implementation 
 

This briefing paper relates to the cancer programme in the NHS Wirral 
Strategic Plan 2009-2013. 
 

3 Strategic Recommendations 
 

Not applicable - this is a short briefing paper for information. 
 

4 Data recommendations 
 

None identified within this paper. 
 

Page 97



 

5 Communication recommendations 
 

There are no specific recommendations within this briefing paper.  The 
Prevention and early detection plan includes communication actions relating 
to all cancers. 

 
6 Implementation recommendations  
 

None identified within this paper. 
 

7 Support required from Members 
 

To note the content of the report. 
 

8 Staffing Implications 
 

None identified within this paper. 
 

9 Equal Opportunities Implications 
 

There are no specific recommendations within this briefing paper.  The 
prevention and early detection plan (currently in draft) referred to within the 
paper, aims to reduce inequalities within communities by focussing upon 
those groups who are at greatest risk of cancer. 
 

10 Community Safety Implications  
 

None identified within this paper. 
 

11 Local agenda 21 implications  
 

None identified within this paper. 
 

12 Planning implications  
 

None identified within this paper. 
 

13 Anti-Poverty Implications/Social Inclusion implications  
 

None identified within this paper. 
 

14 Local member Support Implications  
 

None identified within this paper. 
  

15 Background Papers  
 

None. 
 

Page 98



 

16 Recommendations 
 

For Members to note the recommendation by the UK National Screening 
Committee, that a national prostate cancer screening programme should not 
be introduced at this time. 

 
 
Marie Armitage 
Joint Director of Public Health 
 
Teresa Owen  
Consultant in Public Health 
 
Tel: 651 0011 
 
9 August 2010 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL           
 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 
9 SEPTEMBER 2010  
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PRIMARY CARE AND PROVIDER 
SERVICES, NHS WIRRAL 
 
UPDATE ON PODIATRY SERVICE AND WAITING TIMES 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This update has been submitted at the request of the Health and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and covers the following aspects of Podiatry 
provision by NHS Wirral; Scope of Service, Referral, Access and Acceptance 
Criteria, Discharge Criteria, Activity and Performance Management 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The aim of the Community Podiatry Service is to provide equitable 

therapeutic interventions to people of all ages with a Podiatry need, who 
meet the agreed criteria for referral and treatment. 

 
1.2 The service undertakes vascular, neurological and functional lower limb 

assessments which will determine a patient’s suitability for one or more of 
the following clinical services; 

 

• Nail care. 

• Corn/Callus reduction or removal. 

• Wirral Diabetic Register (WDR) foot screenings. 

• Nail Surgery. 

• Biomechanical services (Gait analysis, provision of orthoses/insoles). 

• Footwear and foot health education. 

• Referral to the Therapies and Specialist Nursing Service. 
 
1.3 This is a longstanding service which was developed for patients registered 

with a Wirral GP who, because of their medical condition are unable to 
manage their own foot care.  Routine and maintenance care is provided in 
the community to prevent patients having to travel to hospital.   

 
1.4 Podiatry assessments are available to any member of the public registered 

with an NHS Wirral GP.   
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 101



1.5 Following assessment, ongoing Podiatry treatment will be provided to 
patients who have been diagnosed with one or more of the following 
conditions: 

 

• Diabetes 

• Connective tissue disorders e.g. Rheumatoid Arthritis, Lupus, 
Scleroderma 

• Peripheral vascular disease (PVD) and severe circulatory diseases e.g. 
frostbite, chilblains, any patient with current/past ulceration 

• Peripheral neuropathy 

• Chronic obstructive airway disease 

• Parkinson’s disease (poorly controlled with significant tremor) 

• Registered blind 

• Immuno-deficiency disorders 

• Terminal illness 

• Dermatological conditions whose symptoms require expert Podiatric 
intervention 

• Long term conditions that prevent self-care 

• Health promotion - Podiatry is involved (along with Dietetics & Heart 
Support) with the Wirral wide patient education programme for all newly 
diagnosed diabetics.  

  
1.6 The service works to National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) 

guidelines for the prevention and management of foot problems for people 
with type 2 diabetes.  In accordance with NICE guidance, all diabetic 
patients registered with the Wirral Diabetic Register are offered foot 
screening on an annual basis.  In addition to undertaking foot screenings 
for ‘at risk’ and ‘high risk’ diabetic patients, the service also provides 
training and support to enable ‘low risk’ patients to be seen safely within 
General Practice. 

 
1.7 For other patient groups, future Podiatry intervention is provided on 

medical need and, where necessary, patients are discharged from the 
service once their course of treatment is complete. 

 
1.8 The Podiatry Service is sensitive to the specific needs of individual 

patients and establishes on assessment if: 
 

• The patient has been identified as a vulnerable adult 

• Translation services are required 

• The patient requires a specific risk assessment 

• There are any identified equality and human rights requirements 
 
1.9 Community Podiatry is fully integrated with Wirral University Teaching 

Hospital, providing ward rounds and specialist clinical services for 
orthopaedic and diabetic patients.  Established referral pathways exist 
between the community and hospital trusts providing a seamless service 
for those patients who require on-going Podiatry intervention in primary 
care following discharge from the hospital trust. 

Page 102



 
1.10 The Podiatry Service impacts the local health economy by improving the 

quality of life for patients who are unable to manage their own foot care 
and who would otherwise have to fund treatment themselves from a 
private provider.  Podiatry contributes to the PCT meeting the National 
Service Framework (NSF) in Diabetes, Long Term Conditions and Older 
People.  The service, by providing foot care which helps prevent/reduce 
infections and pain, contributes to keeping patients mobile and helps in 
preventing falls.     

 
1.11 The service provides care in Wirral to patients’ homes (if unable to access 

clinics) and across 10 Community clinic bases, offering a choice of venue 
to the patient and information on waiting times.   

 
1.12 Waiting times for each community clinic are monitored on a weekly basis.  

Equality is maintained by providing additional clinical sessions to those 
clinics with the longest waiting times.  

 
2 Referral, Access and Acceptance Criteria 
 

Clinical Services (including referrals to Biomechanics/Orthotics) 
 
2.1 The Podiatry Service operates an open referral policy and accepts written 

referrals from Patients, their representatives, or any other member of the 
multi-disciplinary team working across primary or secondary care. 

 
2.2 Referrals for routine non-urgent Podiatry services are processed in date 

order and are allocated the first available appointment at their chosen 
clinic. 

 
2.3 Referrals for acute/urgent assessments should be accompanied by a letter 

from an appropriate healthcare professional stating the reasons for 
referral.  Urgent referrals will be prioritised and allocated an appointment 
as soon as possible.  Depending on the nature of the referral, this 
appointment may be at any of the community clinics on Wirral where 
Podiatry services are undertaken. 

 
2.4 It is the service manager’s responsibility to decide whether the referral is 

urgent or non-urgent. 
 

Nail Surgery 
 
2.5 Referrals for nail surgery can be made on a designated ‘nail surgery 

referral form’ which will allow acute cases to be identified and prioritised.  
Nail surgery referrals are managed centrally by the department’s 
administration team.   

 
2.6 Nail surgery appointments are pre-allocated with patients being booked 

into one of four specific nail surgery clinics, with the aim of undertaking the 
surgical procedure immediately following a satisfactory assessment.  

Page 103



Therapies and Specialist Nursing Service for Nursing Homes 
 
2.7 Referrals to the Therapies and Specialist Nursing Service must be made 

by the Nursing Home using the appropriate referral form held in their 
‘Nursing Home File’.  This form should be faxed directly to the 
department’s central administration point. 

 
2.8 In order to access Podiatry services via the Therapies and Specialist 

Nursing Service, patients should be resident in a Wirral nursing home and 
registered for ‘Nursing Care’ by Wirral Social Services. 

 
Domiciliary Services 

 
2.9 Referrals for domiciliary assessments are restricted to those patients who; 
 

- Are visited at home by their GP for their routine medical needs. 
- Require ambulance transportation for hospital visits. 

 
2.10 All referrals must be in writing from a GP or District Nurse with 

confirmation that the patient meets the above criteria. 
 

Referral to other Primary Care / Secondary Care / Social Care 
Services 

 
2.11 Following initial or follow-up assessments, pathways exist to allow onward 

referral to other members of the multi-disciplinary team or outside 
agencies, in line with department, Trust and professional guidelines, 
policies and procedures.  

 
2.12 Response times for initial and follow up appointments are dependant upon 

waiting times at individual community clinics.     
 
2.13 The service will prioritise acute/urgent referrals where necessary and will 

offer these patients the first available appointment.  Diabetic patients who 
have been categorised as ‘high risk’ following assessment or during a 
course of treatment will be actively recalled by the service for future 
appointments in accordance with NICE guidelines. 

 
3 Discharge Criteria 
 
3.1 The Podiatry Service operates to agreed assessment, treatment and 

discharge criteria.  Patients suitable for discharge or whose course of 
treatment is complete are discharged with foot health advice and literature 
where appropriate.  Patients are also advised how to access the service 
again if they experience further problems. 

 

Page 104



4 Activity and Performance Management 
 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
 
4.1 The following KPIs are reported on a monthly basis: 
 

• Average waiting time for initial appointment following receipt of referral 

• Average waiting time for a follow up appointment 
 

4.2 In addition, the clinical and administrative functions of the service are 
monitored for performance and service quality in the following ways; 

 

• Patient satisfaction surveys. 

• Weekly audit of waiting times. 

• Regular internal audit of record keeping. 

• Audit of administrative functions via the Mersey Internal Audit Agency. 
 
4.3 In addition, the service works to agreed protocols for invasive Nail Surgery 

procedures and adheres to the NICE guidelines for the management and 
safe delivery of care for patients with Type II Diabetes. 

 
Clinical Activity and Waiting Times 

 
4.4 The average current waiting times (based on latest figures for July 2010) 

for agreed KPIs are as follows; 
 

• Average waiting time for initial appointment:  43 days 
• Average waiting time for follow-up appointment: 38 days 

 
4.5 The target for both KPIs is 50 days. 
 
4.6 On average, the Podiatry service receives around 500 new referrals every 

month.  This is a combined figure for routine clinical, nail surgery, nursing 
home and domiciliary services and during the last financial year (ending 
March 2010) the service completed in excess of 40,000 individual patient 
contacts. 

 
5 Financial Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
6 Staffing Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
7 Equal Opportunities Implications/Health Impact Assessment 
 
 There are no implications. 
 

Page 105



8 Community Safety Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
9 Local Agenda 21 Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
10 Planning Implications 
 
 There are no implications.  
 
11 Anti Poverty Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
12 Social Inclusion Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
13 Local Member Support Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
14 Health Implications 
 
 There are no implications. 
 
15 Background Papers 
 
 Podiatry Services update for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
16 Recommendations 
 
 That the Committee notes the attached report. 
 
 
JOHN SOUTH  
Director of Primary Care & Provider Services, NHS Wirral 
 
Name:   Michael Milton 
Title:  Head of Podiatry, NHS Wirral 
Ext no:   0151 514 2314 
  
Date:  12 August 2010  
 

Page 106


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 NHS White Paper - 'Liberating the NHS'
	4 Managing the Budget across Health and Social Care
	5 Care Quality Commission Inspection Report
	7 Changes to Independent Living Fund (ILF)
	8 Wirral Local Involvement Network (LINk) Annual Report 2009/10
	9 NHS Wirral Public and Patient Involvement Annual Report - April 2009 - March 2010
	Public and Patient Involvement Report Appendix

	10 Prostate Cancer
	11 Update on Podiatry Service and Waiting Times

